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1. The Appeals Chamber of the International Criminal Tribunal for the Prosecution of Persons
Rcsponmble for Genocide and Other Serious Violations of International Humanitarian Law
Committed in the Territory of Rwanda and Rwandan Cltlzens Responmblc for Genocide and Other
Such Violations Committed in the Territory of Neighbouring States between 1 January 1994 and
31 December 1994 (“Appeals Chamber” and “Tribunal,” respectively) is seized of appeals by
Callixte Kalimanzira (“Kalimanzira”) and the Prosecutor (“Prosecution”) against the Judgement
rendered by Trial Chamber III of the Tribunal (“Trial Chamber”) on 22 June 2009 in the case of

The Prosecutor v. Callixte Kalimanzira (“Trial Judgement™),’
I. INTRODUCTION

A. Background

2. Kalimanzira was born in 1953 in Muganza Commune, Butare Prefecture, Rwanda.? He is an
agronomist by I:rasirni-ng..3 Starting in 1986, Kalimanzira held various positions in the Rwandan
government. These included serving as a sub-prefect of Butare and Byumba Prefecturcs, as an
official in the Ministry of Agriculture and Livestock, and as the director of Rural Development for
the Rwandan Pfcsidcnt’s office.* He joined the Ministry of Interior in January 1992 as secretary.
general and served as directeur de cabinet, the ministry's second most senior official, from

September of that year through the relevant events of 1994.°

3. The Trial Chamber convicted Kalimanzira for instigating and aiding and abetiing genocide
at the Butare-Gisagara roadblock around 22 April 1994, and for aiding and abetting genocide at
Kabuye hill on 23 April 1994 and at the inanguration of Elic Ndayambaje as bourgmestre of
Muganza Commune on 22 June 1994.° In addition, it convicted Kalimanzira for committing direct
and public incitement to commit genocide at the Jaguar roadblock in middle to late April 1994, at
the Kajyanama roadblock in late April 1994, at the Gisagara marketplace at the end of May 1994,
and at the Nyabisagara football field in late May or early June 1994." Kalimanzira was sentenced to

a single term of 30 years of irnprisonrncnt.B

! For ease of reference, two annexes are appended: Annex A — Procedural History and Annex B — Cited Materials and
Defined Terms.

? Trial Judgement, paras. 7, 79.

} Trial Judgement, paras. 79, 80.

* Trial Judgement, paras. 82-84,

5 Trial Judgement, paras. 85, 87, 90.

S Trial Judgement, paras. 293, 393, 474, 739, 745. 7 W\
7 Trial Judgement, paras. 562, 589, 614, 729, 739, 745, \

® Trial Judgement, para. 756.
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B. The Appeals

4, Kalimanzira presents 11 grounds of appeal challenging his convictions and requests the
Appeals'Chamber to telease him.’ The Prosecution responds that all grounds of Kalimanzira's
appeal should be dismissed.'® The Prosecution presents two grounds of appeal challenging the legal
qualification of Kalimanzira’s conviction for genocide in relation to Kabuye hill and the Butare-
Gisagara roadblock as well as his sentence.’ It requests the Appeals Chamber to change the forms
of reSponsibility for these incidents to ordering and committing and to impose a sentence of life

impr'nv,Onmf:nt.12 Kalimanzira responds that the Prosecution’s eippeal should be dismissed."

5. The Appeals Chamber heard oral submissions regarding these appeals on 14 June 2010.

1® Prosecution Response Brief, paras. 1, 264.

1! prosecution Notice of Appeal.

2 prosecution Notice of Appeal, paras. 12-14, 26.
¥ Xalimanzira Response Brief, paras. 11, 16.

? Kalimanzira Notice of Appeal.
5 WA

Case No. ICTR-05-88-A 20 October 2010




852/H
II. STANDARDS OF APPELLATE REVIEW

6. The Appeals Chamber rt_eca'lls the applicable standards of appellate review pursuant to
Article 24 of the Statute. The Appeals Chamber reviews only errors of law which invalidate the

decision of the trial chamber and errors of fact which have occasioned a miscarriage of justice.’*

7. Regarding errors of law, the Appeals Chamber has stated:

Where a party alleges that there is an error of law, that party must advance arguments in support of
the submission and explain how the error invalidates the decision. However, if the appellant’s
arguments do not support the contention, that party does not automatically lose its point since the
Appedls:Chamber may siep in and, for other reasons, find in favour of the contention that there is
an error of law."” '

8. Where the Appeals Chamber finds an error of law in the trial judgement arising from the
application of an incorrect legal standard, the Appeals Chamber will articulate the correct legal
standard and review the relevant factual findings of the trial chamiber accordingly.'® In so doing, the
Appeals Chamber not only corrects the legal error, but, when necessary, also applies the correct
legal standard to the evidence contained in the trial record and determines whether it is itself
convinced beyond reasonable doubt as to the factal ﬁndmg challenged by the appcllant before that

finding may be confirmed on appeal. 1

9. Regarding errors of fact, it is well established that the Appeals Chamber will not lightly
overturn findings of fact made by the trial chamber:

Where the Defence alleges an erroneous finding of fact, the Appeals Chamber must give deference

to the Trial Chamber that received the evidence at irial, and it will only interfere in those findings

where no reasonable trier of fact could have reached the same finding or where the finding is

wholly erroneous. Furthermore, the erroneous finding will be revoked or revised only if the error
occagsioned a miscarriage of justice, s

10. A party cannot merely repeat on appeal arguments that did not succeed at trial, unless it can

demonstrate that the trial chamber’s rejection of those arguments constituted an error warranting the

" Nchamihigo Appeal Judgement, para. 7; Bikindi Appeal Judgement, para. 9; Zigiranyirazo Appeal Judgemen, para.
8. See also Boskoski and Tarfulovski Appeal Judgement, para. 9.
1% Ntakirutimana Appeal Judgement, para. 11 (internal citation omitted). See also Nchamihigo Appeal Judgement, para.
8; Bikindi Appeal Judgement, para. 10; Zigiranyirazo Appeal Judgement, para. 9; Boskoski and Tarlulovski Appeal
]udgcmcnt, para.10.
1® Nchamihigo Appeal Judgement, para. 9; Bikindi Appeal Judgement, para. 11; Zigiranyirazo Appeal Judgement,
para. 10, See also Boskoski and Tardulovski Appeal Judgement, para. 11.

Nchamihigo Appeal Judgement, para. 9; Bikindi Appeal Judgement, para. 11; Zigiranyirazo Appeal Judgement,
?ara 10. See also Bo¥koski and Tardulovski Appeal Judgement, para. 11.
8 Krsti¢ Appeal Judgement, para, 40 (internal citations omitted). See also Nchamihigo Appea! Judgement, para. 10,
Bikindi Appeal Judgement, para. 12, Zigiranyirazo Appeal Judgement, para. 11; Boskoski and Tardulovski Appeal

Judgement, para. 13. . (R \T\ A
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intervention of the Appeals Chamber.'® Arguments which do not have the potential to cause the

impugned decision to be reversed or revised may be immediately dismissed by the Appeals

Chamber and need not be considered on the merits.?

11, In order for the Appeals Chamber to assess arguments on appeal, the appealing party must
provide precise references to relevant transcript pages or paragraphs in the decision or judgement to
which the challenge is made.?! Moreover, the Appeals Chamber cannot be expected to consider a
party’s submissions in detail if they are obscure, c-ontradictory, vague, or suffer from other formal
and obvious insufficiencies.?? Finally, the Appeals Chamber has inherent discretion in selecting
which submissions -merit a -detailed reasoned opinion in writing, and it will dismiss arguments

which are evidently unfounded without providing detailed reasoning.?

WY

¥ Nchamihigo Appeal Judgement, para. 11; Bikindi Appeal Judgement, para. 13; Zigiranyirazo Appeal Judgement,
para. 12. See also BoSkoski and Taréulovski Appeal Judgement, para. 16.

Y Nchamihigo Appeal Judgement, para. 11; Bikindi Appeal Judgement, para. 13; Zigiranyirazo Appeal Judgement,

ara, 12. See also BoSkoski and Tardulovski Appeal Judgement, para. 16.

! practice Direction on Formal Requirements for Appeals from Judgement, 15 June 2007, para. 4(b). See Nchamihigo
Appeal Judgement, para. 12, Bikindi Appeal Judgement, para. 14; Zigiranyirazo Appeal Judgement, para. 13. See also
Boikoski and Taréulovski Appeal Judgement, para. 17.
| 2 Nchamihigo Appeal Judgement, para. 12; Bikindi Appeal Judgement, para. 14; Zigiranyirazo Appeal Judgement,

ara. 13. See also Botkoski and Taréulovski Appeal Judgement, para. 17.
3 Nchamihigo Appeal Judgement, para. 12; Bikindi Appeal Judgement, pars. 14; Zigiranyirazo Appeal Judgement,
para. 13. See also BoYkoski and Tarculovski Appeal Judgement, para. 17.

| 4
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III. APPEAL OF CALLIXTE KALIMANZIRA

A. Alleged Violations of Fair Trial Rights (Ground 1

12.  Kalimanzira submits that the Trial Chamber violated his righf to a fair trial,** In this section
the Appeals Chamber considers three principal questions: (1) whether the Trial Chamber erred in its
consideration of the Prosecution’s alleged violation of its disclosure obligations pursuant to Rule 68
of the Rules; (2) whether the Trial Chamber violated the principle of equality of arms in conducting
the case; and (3) whether the Trial Chamber erred in allowing the Prosecution to examine Defence
witnesses based on material which was not disclosed prior to the commencement of cross-

examination.

1. Rule 68 of the Rules

13.  In the Trial Judgement, the Trial Chamber considered whether the Prosecution violated its
disclosure ob]jgations‘_ under Rule 68 of the Rules with respect to transcripts from the
Nyiramasuhuko et al. case as well as any files concerning its witnesses from Rwandan Gacaca
proce-edit_igs.25 Kalimanzira submits that the Trial Chamber erred in finding that the Prosecution did

not violate its disclosure obligations.”®

14.  The Appeals Chamber considers each category of material in turn, bearing in mind that, as
such decisions relate to the general conduct of trial proceedings, this is a matter that falls within the
discretion of the Trial Chamber.?” A trial chamber’s exercise of discretion will be reversed only if
the challenged decision was based on an incorrect interpretation of governing law, was based on a
patently incorrect conclusion of fact, or was so unfair or unreasonable as to constitute an abuse of

the trial chamber’s discretion.?®

(a) Nyiramasuhuko et al. Transcripts

15. On 16 July 2008, after the close of its case, the Prosecution disclosed the trial transcripts of
seven witnesses who testified in the Nyiramasuhuko et al. case, but not in Kalimanzira's, about the
attack on Kabuye hill in Butare Prefecture.” On 9 February 2009, Kalimanzira sought to exclude
the evidence relating to this attack provided by Prosecution Withesses BXG, BDK, BDC, BWO,

* Kalimanzira Notice of Appeal, paras, 6-12; Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. §-47.

* Trial Judgement, paras. 42-60.

2 K alimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 9-24.

7 The Prosecutor v. Théoneste Bagosora et al., Case No. ICTR-98-41-AR73, Decision on Interlocutory Appeal
Relating to Disclosure Under Rule 66(B) of the Tribunal’s Rules of Procedure and Evidence, 25 Sepiember 2006,
E)ara. 6 (“Bagosora et al. Appeal Decision of 25 September 20067). P \[\
¥ Bagosora et al. Appeal Decision of 25 September 2006, para. 6. \

% Trial Judgement, paras. 51, 52.
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BCF, BBO, and BXK or, in the alternative, to recall them for further cross-examination based on
the Prosecution’s failure to timely disclose the trial transcripts from the Nyiramasuhuko et al.
case.’® On 13 February 2009, the Trial Chamber admitted the transcripts into evidence and denied

Kalimanzira’s requcst.3 !

16.  Kalimanzira renewed his objections in his Final Trial Brief and closing arguments.”? In the
Trial Judgement, the Trial Chamber held that there was no reason to reconsider its decision of
13 February 2009 on this issue.* It reiterated that the Prosecution'did not violate its disclosure
obligations because Kalimanzira did not demonstrate that the material in question was prima facie
exculpatory.® The Trial Chamber ultimately convicted Kalimanzira for aiding and abetting

genocide based on his role in the Kabuye hill incident,*

17. Kalimanzira submits that the Trial Chamber erred in finding that the Prosecution did not
violate its disclosure obligations when it delayed handover of the Nyiramasuhuko et al. material and
requests that the Appeals Chamber reverse his conviction based on the attack on Kabuye hill or
alternatively remand the case for a new trial.*® Kalimanzira contends that the transcripts were
exculpatory and emphasizes that, given the ovérlap in the factual basis of the two trials, they would

have been useful during cross-examination.”’

18. Rule 68 of the Rules provides, inter alia, that the Prosecution “shall, as soon as practicable,
disclose to the Defence any material, which in the actual knowledge of the Prosecutor may suggest
the innocence or mitigate the guilt of the accused or affect the credibility of Prosecution
evidence.”*® The Appeals Chamber recalls that the Prosecution’s obligation to disclose exculpatory
material is essential to a fair trial.*®* The Appeals Chamber has always interpreted this obligation

* Trial Judgement, paras. 50, 51.

* Trial Judgement, paras. 48, 53. See also T. 13 February 2009 pp. 8-11.

* Trial Judgement, para. 48, referring fo Kalimanzira Closing Brief, paras. 1178-1196, T. 20 April 2009 pp. 29, 30.

» Trial Judgement, paras. 49, 60.

M Trial Judgement, para. 58.

% Trial Judgement, paras, 393, 739.

% Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 10-20.

*" Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 12, 13, 17, 18.

* Rule 68(A) of the Rules (emphasis added).

* The Prosecutor v. Edouard Karemera et al., Case No. 98-44-AR73.7, Decision on Interlocutory Appeal Regarding
the Role of the Prosecutor’s Electronic Disclosure Suite in Discharging Disclosure Obligations, 30 June 2006, para. 9
(“Karemera et al. Appeal Decision of 30 June 2006"), The Prosecutor v. Edouard Karemera et al., Case No. 98-44-
AR73.6, Decision on Joseph Nzirorera's Interlocutory Appeal, 28 April 2006, para. 7 (“Karemera et al. Appeal
Decision of 28 April 2006™); The Prosecutor v. Théoneste Bagosora et al., Case Nos. ICTR-9841-AR73, ICTR-98-41-
AR73(B), Decision on Interlocutory Appeals of Decision on Witness Protection Orders, 6 October 2005, para. 44;
Kordi¢ and Cerkez Appeal Judgement, paras. 183, 242; Bla¥kic Appeal Judgement, para. 264; Krstic Appeal
Judgement, para. 180; Prosecutor v. Radoslav Brdanin, Case No. IT-99-36-A, Decision on Appellant’s Motion for
Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 68 and Motion for an Order to the Registrar to Disclose Certain Materials, 7 December
2004, p. 3 (“Brdanin Appeal Decision of 7 December 2004™). <-----K \“

6 .
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broadly.” To establish a violation of the Rule 68 disclosure obligation, the defence must establish
that additional material is in the possession of the Prosecution and present a prima facie case that
the material is exculpatory.*' If the defence satisfies the trial chamber that the Prosecution has failed
to comply with its Rule 68 obligations, then the trial chamber must examine whether the defence

has been prejudiced by that failure before considering whether a remedy is appropriate.42

19.  The Trial Chamber determined that the material at issue was in the possession of the
Prosecution, but that ‘Ka]imanzifa did not demonstrate that it was exculpa‘tory.“ Although the Trial
Chamber correctly articulated the test for assessing disclosure violaﬁons,“ the Appeals Chamber
finds that it ineppropriately applied an elevated standard in assessing whether the material was
exculpatory within the meaning of Rule 68 of the Rules. Specifically, the Trial Chamber noted that
‘the witnesses in the Nyiramasuhuko et al. case did not mention seeing Kalimanzira at Kabuye hill.*
It observed that no questions were asked about him, and the transcripts, thus, “[did] not contradict
the evidence ?dduced in the Kalimanzira trial,™® asserting that the failure “to make mention of
Kalimanzira's presence at Kabuye hill during the period at issue does not mean that Kalimanzifa

could not have been there.”’

20. The Trial Chamber’s analysis appears to focus on the potentially low probative value of the
Nyiramasuhuko et al. evidence. While that is certainly a relevant consideration in assessing whether
an accused was prejudiced by late or non-disclosure of Rule 68 material, the Appeals Chamber
recalls that the defence does not bear the burden of “contradict[ing]” the Prosecution’s evidence.®®
It need only raise a reasonable doubt as to the accused’s participation in a crime.*’ In addition, in
order to establish a violation of disclosure obligations under Rule 68 of the Rules, the defence need

only show that the material is prima facie or “potentially” exculpatory.50 The Appeals Chamber

% Karemera et al. Appeal Decision of 30 June 2006, para. 9. See also Blafkic¢ Appeal Judgement, paras. 265, 266;
Krsti¢ Appeal Judgement, para. 180,
* Kajelijeli Appeal Judgement, para. 262. See also Georges Anderson Nderubumwe Rutaganda v. The Prosecutor, Case
No. ICTR-96-03-R, Decision on Requests for Reconsideration, Review, Assignment of Counsel, Disclosure, and
Clarification, 8 December 2006, para. 36 (“Rutagands Review Decision™); Karemera et al. Appeal Decision of
28 April 2006, para. 13.

12 See Kajelijeli Appeal Judgement, para. 262; Krstic Appcal Judgement, para. 153,

* Trial Judgement, paras. 57, 58.

™ Trial Judgement, para. 56

* Trial Judgement, para. 58,

* Trial Judgement, para. 58.

*7 Trial Judgement, para. 58.

8 ¢f Zigiranyirazo Appeal Judgement, para. 19 (“The Appeals Chamber has recognized that language which suggests,
inter alia, that an accused must ‘negate’ the Prosecution evidence, ‘exonerate’ himself, or ‘refute the possibility’ that he
participated in a crime indicates that the Trial Chamber misapplied the burden of proof.”) (intemal citations omitted),
Muhimana Appeal Judgement, para. 18 (*An accused does not need to prove at trial that a crime ‘could not have
occurred’ or ‘preclude the possibility that it could occur®.”).

* Cf Zigiranyirazo Appeal Judgement, para. 17.

¢ Karemera et al. Appeal Decision of 28 April 2006, para. 13. Rule 68(A) of the Rules states (emphasis added). “The
Prosecutor shall, as soon as practicable, disclose to the Defence any material, which in the actual knowledge of the

7 - AW
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considers ﬁhat Kalimanzira did demonstrate that the absence of any reference to him in the relevant
Nyiramasuhuko et al. testimony is potentially exculpatory. Accordingly, the Appeals Chamber finds
that the Trial Chamber erred in law in assessing whether thetranscripts were in fact exculpatory in

order to determine if a breach of the disclosure obligations under Rulgé 68 of the Rules occurred.

21.  The Appeals Chamber is not convinced, however, that this error invalidated the Trial
Chamber’s decision. Notably, Kalimanzira did receive the material during the course of the trial,
albeit after the close of the Prosecution’s case. The question therefore becomes whether the
Prosecution provided the material “as soon as praéticable,” as required by Rule 68(A) of the Rules.
The Appeals Chamber has recognized that the voluminous nature of materials “in the possession”
of the Prosecution may give rise to delays in disclosure. There is no indication that the
Prosecution acted in bad faith in disclosing the relevant material after the close of its case.
Accordingly, the Appeals Chamber is not convinced that the timing of the Prosecution’s disclosure
violated Rule 68 of the Rules.

22.  In any event, the Appeals Chamber further notes that, beyond asserting that this material
would have been useful for cross-examination, Kalimanzira has not clearly demonstrated how he
would have used any particular part of this material to discredit the Prosecution witnesses. The Trial
Chamber reasonably dcfcnnjned that this type of evidence carried limited probative vatue.”? In
these circumstances, the Appeals Chamber is not convinced that Kalimanzira was prejudiced by the
Trial Chamber’s decision not to exclude Prosecution witnesses or recall them for further cross-

examination.

(b) Gacaca Material

23. The Trial Chamber held that the Defence did not demonstrate that the Prosecution was in

possession of documents from Rwandan Gacaca proceedings related to its witnesses and thus found

Prosecutor may suggest the innocence or mitigate the guilt of the accused or affect the credibility of Prosecution
evidence.” The Appeals Chamber routinely construes the Prosecution’s disclosure obligations under the Rules broadly
in accord with their plain meaning. See Bagosora et al. Appeal Decision of 25 September 2006, para. 8, citing
Karemera et al. Appeal Decision of 30 June 2006, paras. 9-13, Krstic Appeal Judgement, para. 180, Blaskic¢ Appeal
Judgement, paras. 265, 266.
' Karemera et al. Appeal Decision of 30 June 2006, n. 33, citing Bladki¢ Appeal Judgement, para. 300 (*[...] [T]he
voluminous nature of the materials in the possession of the Prosecution may resull in delayed disclosure, since the
material in question may be identified only afier the trial proceedings have concluded.”), Krstic Appeal Judgement,
para. 197 (“The Appeals Chamber is sympathetic o the argument of the Prosecution that in most instances material
requires processing, translation, analysis and identification as exculpatory material. The Prosecution cannot be expected
to disclose material which — despite its best efforts — it has not been able 1o review and assess. Nevertheless, the
Prosecution did take an inordinate amount of time before disclosing material in this case, and has failed to provide a
satisfactory explanation for the delay.”) (internal citation omitted).
52 See Trial Judgement, para. 387 (“The body of evidence reveals that there were thousands upon thousands of refugees
suffering battle and massacre from an indeterminate number of attackers over a large landscape and time span; no
witness alone could amply describe everything that transpired or identify everyone who was present. The Chamber
finds the Defence evidence raises no reasonable doubt on eyewitness accounts that Kalimanzira was at Kabuye hill.”).
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no violation of the Prosecution’s disclosure obligations.> The Trial Chamber also noted that it had
offered its assistance to the Defence in obtaining such material, but that Kalimanzira never acted on

this proposal.s4

24.  Kalimanzira submits that the Trial Chamber erred in finding that the Prosecution did not
violate its disclosure obligations with respect to the Gacaca documents of its witnesses.”” He
contends that the Prosecution refused his requests for assistance to obtain this material. *® According
to’ Kalimanzira, the Prosecution should have assisted him even though he.did not file a formal
request.”’ He emphasizes that the Prosecution has superior facilities to obtain such docﬁments and

was able to do s0 in.connection with the cross-examination of Defence witnesses.”

25.  The Appeals Chamber has previously held that the Prosecution has no obligation to obtain
judicial material related to its witnesses from Rwanda.” As Ka.]imanziré has not shown that the
Prosecution was i'n possession of this rna(:erial, the Appeal's-C_hambef finds no merit in his assertion
‘that it violated its disclosure obligations, Bearing this in ‘-min-d; the -Appeals Chamber also considers
that the Prosecution had no obligation to -assist the Defence in obtaining these documents.*
Although many trial chambers, in the exercise of their discretion, have asked the P.rosecution to use
its good offices to assist defence counsel in obtaining such material,”’ a review of the record reflects
that Kalimanzira n.ever'made a request to this effect, notwithstariding the Trial Chamber’s express

- . = 62
willingness to assist in procuring these documents.

2. Eguality of Arms

26.  In this sub-section, the Appeals Chamber considers two main submissions: (a) whether the
Trial Chamber violated Kalimanzira’s rights by not postponing the commencement of the trial due

to the unforeseeable absence of his lead counsel; and (b) whether the Prosecution’s strategy of

%3 Trial Judgement, para. 44.
* Trial Judgement, para. 47.
35 Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 21-24.
56 K alimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 21, citing T. 20 May 2008 pp. 17, 18 (French), T. 21 May 2008 p. 27 (French).
57 Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, para, 22.
58 Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 22, 23.
% Rutaganda Review Decision, para. 45. See also Kajelijeli Appeal Judgement, para. 263.
® The alleged disparity in resources between the Prosecution and Defence teams is addressed below. See infra para. 34.
®" Rutaganda Review Decision, para, 46, citing The Prosecutor v, Aloys Simba, Case No. ICTR-01-76-T, Decision on
Matters Related to Witness KDD’s Judicial Dossier, 1 November 2004, paras. 11, 15,
52 Prigl Judgement, para, 47 (“In the present case, the issue of procuring Gacaca records arose early in the trial during
the cross-examination of a Prosecution witness, and the Chamber offered to assist the Defence. The Defence indicated
its intention to file a wrilten motion to specify what documents it would request the Prosecution to disclose or seek
assistance to obtain. However, no such motion was ever filed.”) (internal citation omitted).

< Y
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- reducing the number of allegations and witnesses during the course of the trial prejudiced the

preparation of the Defence.®

(a) Absence of Kalimanzira’s Lead Counsel during the First Trial Session

27.  On 19 March 2008, the President of the Tribunal scheduled the opening of the trial in this
case for 28 April 2008.% On 14 April 2008, Kalimanzira filed a motion to postpone the
commencement of the trial until 10 May 2008 in light of the timing of the Prosecution’s disclosure
of unredacted witness statements.® During a status conference on 30 April 2008, the Presiding
Judge granted this motion in part, and set the opening date of the trial for 5 May 2008.% After this
oral decision was i_ssued, Kalimanzira’s ¢o~counsél, Ms. Anta Guissé, informed the Presiding Judge
that Kalimanzira’s lead counsel, Mr. Arthur Vercken, had been hospitalized on 21 April 2008 and
requested a further postponement of the trial until Mr. Vercken’s recovery and arrival in Arusha.”
Ms. Guissé explained that Mr. Vercken was. currently prohibited from traveling, but that he might
be dble to travel during the week of 12-May-_-28.68 |

28.  After hearing the parties, the Presiding Judge decided not to postpone the commencement
dé.te;ﬁg He observed that Ms. Guissé appeared “articulate and competent” and that co-counsel were
normally selected based on qualifications that would allow them to proceed in the absence of lead
counsel.” In addition, he noted that the trial would be heard in half-day sessions, which would
allow additional time for preparation.”’ During the course of further confidential discussions,”
Ms. Guissé requested that cross-examination of Prosecution witnesses be postponed until

Mr. Vercken's return.” The Presiding Judge granted this request in part, but noted that if Mr.

83 Kalimanzira also submits that the Trial Chamber was not impartial in its examination of the witnesses for each party.
See Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 40-42. However, he does not support this argument under this ground of appeal
and instead notes that it is developed in each individual ground. Consequentiy, the Appeals'Chamber will address this
argument in the grounds where it is specifically deveioped.
* The Prosecutor v. Callixte Kalimanzira, Case No. ICTR-05-88-PT, Scheduling Order Regarding the Commencement
of the Trial, 19 March 2008, p. 2.
S5 The Prosecutor v. Callixte Kalimanzira, Case No. ICTR-05-88-1, Motion on Behalf of Callixte Kalimanzira Seeking
a Postponement of the Commencement of Trial, 14 April 2008.
% Trial Judgement, Annex I, para. 771. See aiso T. 30 April 2008 p. 4. The trial did not start on 28 April 2008 as
originally intended dve to a change in the composition of the Bench. See Trial Judgement, Annex I, para. 770.
T, 30 April 2008 pp. 4-6.
58T, 30 April 2008 p. 6.
T, 30 April 2008 p. 9.
T, 30 April 2008 p. 9.
7''T, 30 April 2008 p. 9.
2T, 30 April 2008 p. 9 (“I think it might be rcasonable to allow confidential discussion of this matter, so I will propose
to adjourn the status conference now and to invite counsel on both sides 10 the Judges' Jounge to discuss those matters
which you have suggested should not be discussed in the public domain. So we will rise now and adjourn to the Judges'
lounge.™). .
T, 5 May 2008 p. 5 (I would like to renew the.exceptional request that was made before ~ that is, that the Defence
start ils cross-examination when Mr. Vercken comes. And as I said at the beginning of the hearing, he would probably
be with us next week — maybe Monday [12 May 2008]). And also considering the calendar of activitics for this week,
we request that we only start our cross-examination in the presence of the lead counsel.”). —

i \ \{\
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‘Vercken had not returned by 12 May 2008, Kalimanzira’s co-counsel would be expected to proceed

with cross-examination.”*

29.  During the week of 5 May 2008, the Trial ‘Chamber heard the direct examination of
Prosecution Witnesses BCF, BWO, BXK, BWK, and BDC. On 9 May 2008, Ms. Guissé informed
the Trial Chamber that Mr. Vercken’s condition had deteriorated and that he would not be able to
attend trial proceedings on 12 May 2008 as initia]ly projected.'Jrs Mr. Vercken did not ultimately
attend any day of the first trial session, which lasted from 5 to 22 May 2008. Ms. Guissé therefore
cross-examined the five initial witnesses between 12 and 20 May 2008. From 20 to 22 May 2008,
the Trial Chamber also heard Prosecution Witnesses BDK, BWI, BXG, and BXH, whom Ms.
Guissé cross-examined immediately following their examination-in-chief. Mr. Vercken was present
in Arusha for the second trial session commencing on 16 June 2008. The Presiding Judge

acknowledged his understandable absence during the first session and noted that “[Ms. Guissé]

acquitted herself creditably in [Mr. Vercken’s] absence.””

30. Kalimanzira submits that the Trial Chamber violated his right to equality -of arms by
refusing to delay the trial in Mr, Vercken's medically justified absence.”’ He notes that Ms. Guissé
had only been assigned to the case for a short time (from 22 Novefnber 2007) prior to the
commencement of trial.”® According to Kalimanzira, her role as co-counsel was to act under the
authority of his lead counsel, which was not possible when Mr. Vercken was hospitalized in

Europe.”

31.  According to Kalimanzira, the opening of the trial was the most important part of the case,
particularly because this was when the Prosecution presented most of its witnesses relating to the
most serious charge of gcnocide.30 He submits that proceeding in the absence of Mr. Vercken
prejudiced the preparation of the defence because investigative resources had to be diverted from
the field to assist Ms. Guissé€, who otherwise was not supported by other staff in Arusha; this further .

compounded the difficulties created by the Prosecution’s late disclosure of unredacted statements.®'

T, 5 May 2008 p. 6.

T, 9 May 2008 pp. 1, 2.

T, 16 June 2008 p. 2.

77 Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 25-32.

7% Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 25.

" Kalimanzira Appeal Bricf, paras. 25, 27, 28, citing Directive on the Assignment of Defence Counsel, 14 March 2008,
Articie 15(E).

*® Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 26, 29.

" Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 30, 31. (“\ ™M
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To highlight the disparity, he notes that the Prosecution was represented by three prosecutors during
this period.82

32.  The Appeals Chamber can identify no error in the Trial Chamber’s decision not to postpone
the commencement of trial in the absence of Kalimanzira’s lead counsel. As the Trial Chamber
noted, the purpose of a co-counsel is not only to assist the lead counsel but indeed to conduct the
case in order to allow the proceediﬁgs to continue in the event of an unforeseeable absence of the
lead counsel. A review of the reéord reflects that the Trial Chamber was mindful of the additional
difficulties that this situation imposed on the Defence and accommodated these by, inter alia,

postponing the cross-examination of the first five witnesses."

33,  Significantly, Kalimanzira does not allege that Ms. Guissé’s performance was ineffective.
Indeed, as noted ﬁbove, the Trial Chamber acknowledged her competence both at the outset of the
session and after its conclusion. Furthermore, the record indicates that Ms. Guissé was in fact in
consultation ‘with Mr. Vercken during the first trial session and sought his instruction.* Kalimanzira
also did not seek the recall of any of the witnesses for further cross-examination on the basis of Ms.

Guissé’s performance after Mr. Vercken’s return,

34.  As to the disparity between the Prosecution and the Defence teams during this period, the
Appeals Chamber has held that “the equality of arms principle requires a judicial body to ensure

»8 This principle does not

that neither party is put at a disadvantage when presenting its case.
require, however, material equality between the parties in terms of financial or human resources.®
Therefore, there is no merit in Kalimanzira’s submission that his rights were violated simply

because the Prosecution had a larger team of lawyers during this period.

35.  Finally, although Kalimanzira submits that his investigations were prejudiced by the re-
allocation of resources to assist his co-counsel, he does not substantiate this claim and there is no
indication that he raised this as a problem to the Trial Chamber or sought additional resources or

time to compensate for any prejudice.

82 Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 25.

8 See supra paras, 28, 29.

M See T. 20 May 2008 p. 59 (“Mr. President, at this point, I have a motion. And it's almost 5 p.m. I know under what
special circumstances I find myself, and I would like to make use of the break, between today and tomorrow, (0 forward
the ranscripts of the hearings to my lead counsel so that he can send his observations to me. This is a witness who is
testifying to a number of facts about Mr. Kalimanzira. And given the importance of this testimony, 1 pray you to grant
this motion. And on the second point, maybe on a humanitarian ~ from a humanitarian standpoint, and to consider the
work that the Defence has done over the past two days, and, Mr. President, sir, to grant me this half hour that I'm asking
from the Chamber, once more, in view of the exceptional circumstances in which Mr. Kalimanzira Defence team [sic]
finds itself, and to get the observations of my lead counsel, who is the one who is heading Mr. Kalimanzira's Defence,
1o repeat myself.”). ’

% Nahimana et al. Appeal Judgement, para. 173. W\
% Nahimana et al, Appeal Judgement, para. 220. See also Kayishema and Ruzindana Appeal Judgement, para. 69. N\
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(b) The Prosecution’s Trial Strategy

36. Kalimanzira submits that he had inadequate time and resources to prepare his defence when
compared with the preparation invested in the Prosecution case.®” In this respect, he-emphasizes the
significant resources he devoted to investigating the large number of allegat;ioﬁ-s which were not
pursued, as well as the proposed Prosccuti-on witnesses who were not called.®® He again highlights
the fact that his Defence investigators were diverted from investigations during the first trial session
to assist his co-counsel during his lead counsel’s absence.® Ka;]_jma.nzira also contends that the
Prosecution deployed a large team involving 35 different investigators which investigated him
between 1999 and 2008. He contrasts this effort with ..fhe resources of the Defence, which he asserts
was only able to deploy two investigators for about two and a half months of effective work from

the conclusion of the first trial session on 22 May 2008 to the ﬁling. of the Defence Pre-Trial Brief
in September 2008.% '

37.  The Appeals Chamber is not convinced that Kalimanzira’s Defence team lacked sufficient
resources to prepare its defence. As noted above, the principle of equality of arms does not require
material equality between the parties.gl Kalimanzira’s arguments are only general in nature. They
do not demonstrate that the prepé.ration of his defence was prejudiced by the Prosecution’s efforts to

limit the scope of its case.

3. Late Disclosure of Material Used in Cross-Examination

38. In the Trial Judgement, the Trial Chamber considered Kalimanzira’s challenge to the
Prosecution’s disclosure of certain material intended for use in cross-examination only after cross-
examination had commenced.’? The Trial Chamber noted that it had “encouraged” the parties to
provide each other with the documents they intended to use before cross-examining a witness.”” It
also noted, however, that there was no binding rule to this effect.”® The Trial Chamber identified at
least six instances when the Prosecution provided documents to the Defence after it had already
begun cross-examining the Defence witness.”® The Trial Chamber recalled that it had warned the

Prosecution on five occasions to observe its instruction to distribute the materials in advance and, in

% K alimanzira Appea! Brief, paras. 35-39.

88 Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 34, See also Kalimanzira Reply Brief, paras. 7, 8.

® Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 35.

% Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras, 36-39.

%! Nahimana et al. Appeal Judgement, para. 220. See also Kayishema and Ruzindana Appeal Judgement, para. 69.

%2 Trial Judgement, paras. 37-41,

%3 Trial Judgement, para. 38.

™ Trial Judgement, para. 38. W
% Trial Judgement, para. 40. \
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each case, considered whether the late distribution.caused prejudice and found that it did not.”

Consequently, it concluded that Kalimanzira’s right to.a fair trial was not violated in this res_p(ec:t.';'7

39.  Kalimanzira submits that the Trial Chamber erred m finding no 'vi_olation of his right to a
fair trial.®® He notes that the Trial Chamber was especially influenced by the delayed disclosure of
cross-examination materials in its consideration of Defence Witness Sylvestre Niyonsaba, where it

relied on a late-disclosed document to discredit the witness.”

40.  The Ap_péals‘-Chachr considers that the trial chamiber is best placed to determine both the
modalities for _di-sclosufe of material intended for use in cross-examination and also the amount of
tiine that is sufficient for an accused to prepare his defence based on the sbcciﬁcs of such
disclosure.'™ In this case, the Trial Chamber stated its preference for disclosure prior 1o Cross-
examination, and, when this did not occur, it assessed any possible prejudice to Kalimanzira.'” The
Appeals Chamber can i-den'tify no error in the Trial Chamber’s approach. In any event, thcre is no
indication that the Trial Chamber based its finding that Witness Niyonsaba was a possible fugitive
on the impugned document since his possible criminality equaily followed from Prosecution

evidence describing his actions at a roadblock.'®

4. Conclusion

41.  Accordingly, the Appeals Chamber dismisses Kalimanzira’s First Ground of Appeal.

% Trial J udgement, paras. 40, 41,

¥ Trial Judgement, para. 41,

%% Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 43-46.

% Kalimanzira Appcal Brief, paras. 44, 45, citing Trial Judgement, para. 559; Kalimanzira Reply Brief, para. 9.
1% See Bagosora et al. Appeal Decision of 25 September 2006, para. 12.

"™ Trial Judgement, paras. 38, 40, 41. ‘
"% Trial Judgement, paras. 538, 540, 542, 559. “\ V\
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B. Alleged Errorsin Assessing Authority and Influence (Ground 2)

42.  In sentencing Kalimanzira, tht;, Trial Chamber__considered as an aggravating circumstance
the influence he derived from his '“-proﬁ)incnce and high standing m Butare society” based on his
prior positions and good works in the prefecture as well as his “important status within the Ministry
of the Interior.”'® Kalimanzira submits that the Trial Chamber erred in fact and in law in assessing
his authority and influence in Butare Prefecture.'® In this section, the Appeals Chamber considers
two principal questions: (1) whether Kalimanzira’s influence was properly ple.aded in view of the
omission of de facto éuthqriry in the French version of the Indictment; and (2) whether the Trial

Chamiber erred in assessing ‘his influence in Butare Prefecture.

1. Alleged Defects in the Form of the Indictment

43.  Paragraph 2 of the Indictment alleges that Kalimanzira was “a senjor civil servant” and lists
a number of his previous positions, including his service as sub-prefect of Butare ahd Byumba
Prefectures, coordinator of Agricultural Services for Kigali Prefecture, director of the Rural
Developrhent Section at the Presidency, secretary general of the Ministry of Interior, and directeur
de cabinet of the Ministry of Interior, and his prominent role within the MRND. Sub-part (vii) of
the English version of paragraph 2 of the Indictment concludes by stating:

Consequently, {Kalimanzira] exercised in Butare préfecture, de jure and de facto authority over

bourgmestres, conseillers de secteur, cellule officials, the nyumbakumi (head of each group of 10

houses), administrative staff, gendarmes, communal police, the Inferahamwe, militiamen and

civilians, in that he could order these persons to commit or refrain from comumitting unlawful acts

and discipline or punish them for their unlawful acts or omission (sic). '
44.  The original French version of the same sub-part (vii) of paragraph 2 of the Indictment,
however, omits any reference to de facto authority.105 In view of this, the Trial Chamber concluded
that the omission of de facto authority from the original French version of the Indictment
constituted a defect.'®® The Trial Chamber, however, reasoned that the omission did not cause
Kalimanzira any prejudice because the Defence Pre-Trial Brief discussed “the Prosecution’s
position on Kalimanzira’s alleged control in Butare préfecture as including both de jure and de
facto authority.”’"” Consequently, the Trial Chamber concluded that “[t]he Defence was clearly

aware long ago that Kalimanzira’s alleged de facto authority over the people of Butare was an issue

'® Trial Judgement, para. 750.

104 ¥ alimanzira Notice of Appeal, paras. 13-16; Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 48-57.

195 paragraph 2(vii) of the French version of the Indiciment reads in pertinent part: “[plar conséquent [Kalimanzira ]
exergait dans la préfecture de Butare un contrdie de droit et [sic] sur les bourgmestres, {...1."

1% Trial Judgement, para, 13.

17 Trial Judgement, para. 14, citing Defence Pre-Trial Brief, para. 10. The Appeals Chamber notes that while the Trial
Chamber refers to the Pre-Trial Brief in the text, it erroneously references Kalimanzira's Final Trial Brief. (‘“\ v\
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in this trial ai_ld'formcd part of the Prosecution’s cése.”m Furthermore, it noted that “Kalimanzira’s
de facto authority'[wﬁas] not in serious contention” because “Kalimanzira’s defence is premised on
his high-standing and good reputation throughout Butare society.”?” |
45. Kalimanzira submits that the Trial Chamber erred in finding that this defect was cured based
solely on its mention in the Defence Pre-Trial Brief.!" He argues that this error resulted in
prejudice since the Trial Chamber aggravated his sentence based on his influence in Butare
Prefecture.''!

46.  The Appeals Chamber recalls that charges against an accused and the material facts
supporting those charges must be pleaded wi.th sufficient precision in an indictment so:as to provide
" notice to the accused.''? In reaching its judgement, a trial chamber can only convict the accused of
crimes that are charged in the indictment.''® The Appeals Chamber has also held that “for
sentencing purposes, a Trial Chamber may only consider in aggravation circumstances pleaded in
the Indictment.”'" An indictment lacking sufficient precision in the pleading of material facts is
defective; however, the defect may be cured if the Prosecution provides the accused with timely,

clear, and consistent information detailing the factual basis underpinning the charges.'"

47.  The Appeals Chamber finds that Kalimanzira has not demonstrated that any alleged error on
the part of the Trial Chamber with respect to the pleading of his de facto authority invalidated the
verdict. The allegation that Kalimanzira possessed de facto authority does not underpin any of his
convictions for instigating or aiding and abetting genocide or for committing direct and public
incitement to commit ge.nc.)cide.”6 It is clear that a finding of general influence is not the same as de
Jacto authority,”7 even though the Trial Chamber and the Prosecution, at times, appeared to

conflate these two issues.!’® In any event, the Trial Chamber’s findings concerning Kalimanzira’s

108 Tria] Judgement, para. 14.

1% Trial Judgement, para. 14.

1'% Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 51.

Ul K alimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 50, citing Trial Judgement, para. 750.

2 Muvunyi Appeal Judgement, para. 18; Seromba Appeal Judgement, paras. 27, 100; Simba Appeal Judgement,
para. 63; Muhimana Appeal Judgement, paras. 76, 167, 195; Gacumbitsi Appeal Judgement, para. 49; Ndindabahizi
APpca.l Judgement, para. 16.

" Muvunyi Appeal Judgement, para. 18; Nahimana et al. Appeal Judgement, para. 326; Niagerura et al. Appeal
Judgement, para. 28; Kvocka et al. Appeal Judgement, para. 33.

114 Simba Appeal Judgement, para. 82. :

5 pMuvunyi Appeal Judgement, para. 20; Seromba Appeal Judgement, para. 100; Simba Appeal Judgement, para. 64;
Muhimana Appeal Judgement, paras. 76, 195, 217, Gacumbitsi Appeal Judgement, para. 49. See also Nchamihigo
A?peaj Judgement, para. 338; Mtagerura et al. Appeal Judgement, paras. 28, 65.

118 Trial Judgement, paras. 292, 293, 392, 393, 473, 474, 562, 589, 613, 614, 728, 729, 739.

17 See, e.g., Delalic et al. Appeal Judgement, para. 266.

18 Trial Judgement, paras. 14 (“Kalimanzira’s defence is premised on his high-standing and good reputation throughout
Butare society. Kalimanzira's de facto authority is therefore not in serious contention {...}, 95 (“The Prosecuticn
further submits that Kalimanzira’'s de facto authority derived from his general stature as a prominent member of Butare

™
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authority in Butare Prefecture focus exclusively on his influence.'”® Likewise, the Trial Chamber
found Kalimanzira’s abuse of his influence to be an aggravating sentencing factor, but did not make

the same finding with respect to his de facto authority.'”®

2. Alleged Errors in the Trial Chamber’s Assessment of Evidence

48,  The Trial Chamber found that it was “not disputed” that Kalimanzira was “well-liked, even

121 In reaching this conclusion, it noted that

loved, and highly respected” :in Butare Prefecture.
Kalimanzira was “part of Butare’s intelligentsia and his efforts at sustainable development in his
time as an agronomist were much ai)preciate.d.”l122 It further noted his prior service as a sub-prefect
in Butare Prefecture -as well as his “rise to a seqior national goverhmental positic‘m.”‘-23 The Trial
Chamber concluded that these factors implied “an increased level of reverence from and influence

over the population” in the prefecture.'?

49.  Kalimanzira submits that the Trial Chamber erred in fact in finding that he had any
i.n.ﬂuen.cc in 'Butaifé Prefeétufe in 1994.'%° He argues that this finding is unféasonﬁble gi’ven that he
had not worked there since 1988.!% According to Kalimanzira, the fact that he was one of the few
educated persons from that area also does not permit the conclusion that he was well-kriown."?” In
his view, since the prefecture’s population was mostly made up 6f farmers, the only known

authorities in the area would have been local officials such as bourgmestres, conseillers, and sub-

society, with his power and influence flowing from having served as sous-préfet and then acting préfet of Butare, as

well as his position with the Ministry of the Interior.”).

"9 Trial Judgement, para. 99-(“With respect to his influence in Butare préfecture in particular, it is not disputed that

Kalimanzira was well-liked, even loved, and highly respected. Several witnesses, both Defence and Prosecution,

affirmed this. He formed part of Butare’s intelligentsia and his efforts at sustainable development in his time as an

agronomist were much appreciated. His prior service as a sous-préfet was well-remembered and his rise to a senior

national governmental position was known and admired. In a hierarchical society such as Rwanda’s, Kalimanzira’s high

standing and good reputation, not to mention the incrementally important governmental positions he held throughout his

career, would undeniably imply an increased level of reverence from and influence over the population of Butare
réfecture.™). _

%‘) Trial Judgement, para. 750 (“The Chamber notes Kalimanzira’s prominence and high standing in Butare society as a

former sous-préfet and the fact that he was one of only three people from his area and of his generation to have received

a university education. He was loved and appreciated for his efforts at empowering his community by contributing to

the agricultural development of his native region. The influence he derived from this and his important status within the

Ministry of the Interior made it likely that others would follow his example, which is an aggravating factor.”). The

Appeals Chamber has beld that this formulation indicates that the Trial Chamber implicitly considered an accused’s

abuse of influence. See Simba Appeal Judgement, para. 285. The Appeals Chamber notes that the basis of

Kalimanzira's influence is clearly pleaded in paragraph 2 of the Indictment, which refers to the various senior positions

he held in Rwanda.,

12! Trial Judgement, para, 99.

122 Trjal Judgement, para. 99.

123 Trial Judgement, para. 99.

124 Trial Judgement, para, 99,

125 Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 53-57.

126 K alimanzira Appeal Brief, para, 54. See also Kalimanzira Reply Brief, para. 10. ¢ \ \\J\

12 Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 55. :
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prefects.'® Kalimanzira also highlights the testimony of four Prosecution witnesses who were

‘uncertain as to-or incorrectly identified his position in 1994.'%

50.  The Appeals Chamiber is ndt convinced that Kalimanzira has demonstrated that the Trial
Chamber’s findings concerning his influence in Butare Prefecture were unreasonable. His
arguments are effectively limited to-disagreeing with the conclusions of the Trial Chamber and
advancing his own unsubstantiated interpretation of the evidence. Although he does specifically
identify four Prosecution witnesses who were unfamiliar with his specific position,'® he does not
explain how this evidence undermines the reasonable conclusions that the Trial Chamber reached
after considering the undisputed evidence of his various official positions and activities."'
Furthermore, he fails to appreciate that, while these witnesses may not have known his exact
position, their testimonies still generally corroborate the Trial Chamber’s conclusion that he was

known among the local population.
3. Conclusion

51.  Accordingly, the Appeals Chamber dismisses Kalimanzira’s Second Ground of Appeal.

128 ¥ alimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 55.

129 K alimanzira Appeal Bricf, para. 56, citing T. 9 May 2008 p. 38 (French) (Witness BDC), T. 20 May 2008 p. 41
(Brench) (Witness BDC), T. 19 May 2008 p. 14 (French) (Winess BWO), T. 22 May 2008 p. 6 (French) (Wimess
BXG), T. 16 June 2008 p. 81 (French) (Witness AZM).

1% T 9 May 2008 p. 34 (*Q. And what was [Kalimanzira}? A. He was a civil servant, but I can’t tell you what his
occupation was, exactly.”) (Witness BDC); T. 20 May 2008 p. 34 (“Q. And al the time, what was Mr. Kalimanzira’s
occupation? A. I did not try to know What his occupation was al the time. And I'm not in a position to tell you what it
was.”) (Witness BDC); T. 19 May 2008 p. 12 (“Q. Would you know the duties [Kalimanzira] held at that time? A. 1
simply heard that he lived in Kigali, but I don’t know the post or the position he held at that time.”) (Witness BWO),
T. 22 May 2008 p. 6 (“Q. Witness, do you know a person called Callixte Kalimanzira? A. Yes, I know him. Q. Did you
know what position he held in 19947 A. In 1994, I heard people say that Callixie Kalimanzira was a sous-préfet.”)
(Witness BXG); T. 16 June 2008 p. 64 (*Q. And what was Kalimanzira’'s specific position before April 19947 A, 1
don’t know the specific position he occupied. He is someone I used to see. I never had the opportunity to sit down with
him and have a chat with him. I knew he worked in the ministry that I've mentioned to you, but 1 did not know the
sPecific position he had.”) (Witness AZM). ‘

¥ See Trial Judgement, paras, 79-99. /'\’ N\
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- C. Alleged Errors in Assessing the Alibi (G

52.  The Trnal C-ha.mber _con.vic.ﬁ:d _Kalimanzil;a for instigating and aiding and abetting genocide
at ﬂle'B.ﬁtarefGisagéra roédbloc‘k,:ar.ouﬂd 22 Apnl 1994, for aiding a.hd'-eibetting genocide at Kabuye
hill on 23 April 1994, and for aiding and abetting genocide by his i)resencé at the inauguration of
Elie Ndayambaje a;' bourgmestre -of Muganza Commune on 22 June 1994." Tn addition, it
convicted Kalimanzira for direct and public incitement to commit_-génocide at the Jaguar roadblock
in middle to 'laté ‘April 1994, the Kajyanama road'bl_ock in'late April 1994, 'me-Gisagara marketplace
at the end of May 1 994, and the Nyabisagara football field in late May or early June 1994,

53. In re.spec't of each of these allegations, Kalimanzira presented an alibi, piacing him, for the |
rhost part, at his home in Kigali from 6 to 14 April 1994, working With_the interim government in
Murambi, Gitarama Prefecture, between 14 April and 30 May 1994, and at his home in Butare
Prefecture from 31 May until 30.June 1994.'* Kalimanzira submits that the Trial Chamber erred in
rejecting ‘his alibi.”*® In this section, the Appeals Chamber addresses two principal questions:
(1) whether the Trial Chamber erred in taking into account the lack of his notice of alibi; and

(2) whether the Trial Chamber erred in assessing the underlying alibi evidence.:
1. Notice of Alibi

54.  The Trial Chamber found that Kalimanzira did not provide adequate notice of his intent to
rely on an alibi defence as prescribed in Rule 67(A)(ii)(a) of the Rules.*® The Tﬂdl Chamber
observed that the lack of niotice ""m-ay'su-g-gest that the Defence has tailored ‘the ‘alibi evidence to fit
the Prosecution’s case.”'”’ It therefore decided to take this into consideration in assessing the
alibi,'*® noting that this “may diminish its probative value as it raises the question of whether the
alibi was recently invented to fit the [Prosecution case].”’* In particular, the Trial Chamber
ultimately concluded that the “sudden and belated introduction” of specific alibi evidence in
relation to the Kabuye hill attack “strongly suggests rehearsal and tailoring to fit the Prosecution

case” and the failure to disclose it “support[ed] the inference of recent fabrication.”'*

132 Trial Judgement, paras. 293, 393, 474, 739.

2% Triaj Judgement, paras. 562, 589, 614, 729, 739.

134 Trial Judgement, paras. 101-111, 114, 280, 295, 459, 537, 564, 591, 718.

1% Kalimanzira Notice of Appeal, paras. 18-20, 22; Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 59-91. Kalimanzira has
abandoned his second sub-ground of appeal, which contends that the Trial Chamber failed to consider the entire
Defence evidence. .See¢ Kalimanzira Notice of Appeal, para. 21, Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 62. See also Trial
Judgement, paras. 136, 287, 357, 464, 548, 577, 606, 723.

36 Trial Judgement, paras. 65, 113.

1% Trial Judgement, para. 66.

%8 Tria} Judgement, para. 66.

'3 Trial Judgement, para. 113. —
"0 Trial Judgement, para. 119. : \ \\,\
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55. Kalimanzira argues that. the Trial Chamber acted nnreasonably in faulting him for not
providing more specific notice of his alibi while at the same time acknowledging numerous defects
in the Indictrricn’t, which made it difficult to do so.'*! To illustrate, he notes that the Indictment and
the Prosecution Pre-Trial Brief situated the massacres at Kabuye hill between April and the
beginning of June 1994.'? Given sﬁch broad time-frames, he contends thét he did not have the

ability to invesﬁgate and to advance a more detailed alibi.'*

56. Rule 67(A)(ii)a) of the Rules requ]rcs the defence to not:lfy the Prosecution before the
commencement of trial of its intent to enter a defence of alibi. As the Trial Chamber noted,
Kalimanzira intimated at his initial-appearance and in his Pre-Trial Brief that he was in Gitarama
Prefecture for much of the peﬁod covered by the Indictment.'** However, as the Trial Chamber
correctly determined,'® this information did not conform to Rule 67(A)(i)a) of the Rules, which
requires that “the notification shall specify the place or places at which the accused claims to have
been prcsent at the time of the alleged crime and the names and addresses of witnesses and any
other evidence upon which the accused intends to rely to establish the alibi.” The Appeals Chamber
has held that the manner in which an alibi is presented may impact its credibility.'*® Therefore, it
was within the Trial Chamber’s discretion to take this into account in assessing the alibi evidence in

this case.

57.  Kalimanzira does niot dispute that he did not provide the notice required under the Rules. He
also does not challenge the possible impact that this failure might have on the assessment of his
evidence. Instead, he contests the application of the requirements to him in the circumstances of this
case, noting the Trial Chamber’s finding that a number of the allegations in the Indictment were

defective and that the date ranges for key events were overly broad.

58.  The Appeals Chamber is not convinced that Kalimanzira has shown any error in the Trial
Chamber’s consideration of his alibi notice. For the mosi part, Kalimanzira’s alibi is general,
namely that he spent large portions of time at his home in Kigali, at his office in Gitarama
Prefecture, and at his home in Butare Prefecture. Furthermore, with respect to Kalimanzira’s
specific discussion of the broad time-frame provided by the Prosecution with respect to the
massacre at Kabuye hill, the Appeals Chamber observes that paragraphs 9 and 10 of the Indictment
provide a precise date range of “[o]n or about 23 April 1994.” Therefore, the Appeals Chamber is

11 ¥ alimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 63-67. See also Kalimanzira Reply Brief, para. 12.
142 ¥ glimanzira Appeal Bricf, para. 65.
::: Kdlimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 65.
Trial Judgement, para. 62.
145 Trial Judgement, paras. 62, 64. ~/K \\/\
16 putaganda Appeal Tudgement, para. 242; Musema Appeal Judgement, para. 201.
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not satisfied that any vagueness in the date ranges provided in the Indictment meaningfully

impacted Kalimanzira’s ability to provide notice of his alibi.

2. Alleged Errors in the Assessment of Evidence

59.  Kalimanzira presented evidence of an alibi that consisted of three principal phases.'’ First,
Kalimanzira claimed that he was at his home in Kigali from 6 to 14 April.1994 until he relocated
with the interim government to_Mﬁrambi in Gitarama Prefecture, an assertion that was supported by
his wife, Defence Witness Salomé Mukantwali, in her'testimony.]48_Second, Kalimanzira testified
that he remained in Murambi, for the most part, from 14 April to' 30 May 1994, overseeing the
administration functions of the Ministry of Interior, principally related to the payment of salaries for
employees.’* During this period, he acknowledged traveling to ~Kibun’g0'Prefecturé on 21 April
1994 to install the newly appointed prefect, Anaclet Rudakubana,"” He claimed to have spent the
night there and to have returned to Murambi on the evening of 22 April 1994.""! This phase of the
alibi 'was supported by ‘testimony from a former staff member of the ‘Mini'étry of Interior, Defence
Witness Marc Siniyobewe,'> Third, Kalimanzira testified that, from 31 May until 30 June 1994, he
primarily remained at his home in Butare Prefecture, an assertion which was supported by Witness

Mukantwali’s testimony.'*

60.  The Trial Chamber accepted that Kalimanzira remained in Kigali until he relocated to
Gitarama Prefecture with the interim government.'™ It also found that he attended the installation
ceremony for Prefect Rudakubana in Kibungo Prefecture on 21 April 1994.%% However, the Trial
Chamber was not conﬁince’d that Kalimanzira remained in Kibungb Prefecture on the night of 21
April 1994, traveled to Murambi on 22 April, spent the night there,”*® and returned to work on the
morning of 23 April.157

61. The Trial Chamber considered Kalimanzira and Witness Siniyobewe’s accounts of his
presence in Murambi on 23 April 1994 to be a “recent fabrication.”'* It expressed concern about

Witness Siniyobewe’s “feigned ignorance” of the extremist nature of RTLM's broadcasts,

147 Trjal Judgement, para. 114.

%% Tria] Judgement, paras. 101-103, 114-117.

% Trial Judgement, paras. 104-108, 114, 118-128.
1% Trial Judgement, para. 106.

13! Trigl Judgement, para, 106.

'52 Trial Judgement, paras. 104, 106, 118,

'3 Trial Judgement, paras. 108-111, 114, 129-133.
' Trial Judgement, para. 134.

15 Trial Judgement, paras. 127, 134.

156 Trial Judgement, para. 127. '—i \J\
157 Trial Judgement, paras. 106, 121, 127, 134,

158 Trial Judgement, para. 134.
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especially given his ownership of shares in the orgam'zation."9 The Trial Chamber ultimately found

Witness Siniyobewe’s testimony “ynconvincing.”'®

62.  The Trial Chamber did not accept that Kalimanzira remained in Gitarama Prefecture at all
other times between 14 April and 30 May 1994.""In this respect, it noted that he “lied about
attending a Butare Prefectural Security Council meeting on 16 May 1994 and that he had access to
vehicles and fuel.'®? Therefore, the Trial Chamber concluded that this evidence raised no reasonable
doubt in the testimony of witnesses who saw Kalimanzira at Kabuye hill and elsewhere in Butare
Prefecture during this period.'®

63. The Trial Chamber also did not accept the third phase of Kalimanzira’s alibi, namely that he
remajhed primarily at his home in Butare Prefecture after 31 May 1994.'% In this respect, it noted
that, after being shown transcripts of a Radio Rwanda broadcast, “he could no longer den-y having
attended a civil defence and security meeting in Gikongoro préfecture on 3 June 1994.”'%% The Trial
C‘hamber also recalled 'thaf Kalimanzira “admitted to the possibility that he may have forgotten

about other occasions when he might have left his house during this period.”'® It considered that

Witness Mukantwali’s support of Kalimanzira’s account had “little probative value” in view of their

marita! relationship and the fact that she was not always at home because she worked at a hospital
during this period.m

64. Kalimanzira submits that the Trial Chamber erred in its assessment of his alibi evidence.'®®

He first argues ‘that the Trial Chamber shifted the burden of proof and failed to appreciate relevant
\ circumstantial evidence in relation to his presence in Kibungo Prefecture on the night of 21 April
‘ 1994.' In particular, he p.oints to the Trial Chamber’s statement that it did not “believe” his

version of the events as evidence that it required him to prove his alibi beyond reasonable doubt.'™
Furthermere, Kalimanzira contends that the Trial Chamber unreasonably discounted the extreme

danger of traveling at night given the RPF’s advance.'”’

1% Trial Judgement, para. 120,

1% Trial Judgement, para. 120.

! Trial Judgement, para. 134,

182 Trial Judgement, para. 134.

'8 Trial Judgement, para. 134.

18 Trial Judgement, para. 135.

15 Trial Judgement, para. 135,

::f: Trial Judgement, para. 135. :

Trial Judgement, para. 133, _

168 K alimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 68-91. T \\f\
19 K alimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 69-73.

1% Ralimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 71, guoting Trial Judgement, para. 127. Kalimanzira quotes the French version of
the Trial Judgement which uses the following formulation: “La Chambre n’est pas convaincue que Kalimanzira ait
?assé la nuit du 21 avril 1994 dans la préfecture de Kibungo.” (emphasis added),

7! K alimanzira Appeal Brief, paras, 72, 73.
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65. In addition, Kalimanzira argues that the Trial Chamber’s consideration of hi's tés‘timony is
both unreasonable and biased.'” Specifically, he points to the particular language employed by the
Trial Chamber in rejecting his tesl;imony.'r'r3 Kalimanzira further submits that the Trial Chamber
unréasonably discrcdite-d his evidence after misconstruing his testirﬁony related to his presence at
certain meetings in Butare Prefecture.'™ He also disputes the Trial Chamber’s description of his
testimony on his activities in Gitarama Prefecture as “evasive” and his concern with RPF
infiltration -as “i'xr'rat.ioma;l.”]75 In pafﬁcular. he asserts that the Trial Chamber’s _rejection of the
explenation of his daily tasks in Gitarama Prefecture, as well as of his concern regarding the RPF,
failed to sufficiently account for the difficult circumstances under which he was’ workmg at the

time, the evidence which corroborated his actions, and the realities of the war 176

66.  Finally, Kalimanzira challenges the basis for the Trial Chamber’s rejection of Witness
Siniyobewe’s téstimon-y 7 In particular, he dispﬁtes the Trial Chamber’s characterization of
Witness Slmyobewe as a famﬂy friend, noting that the witness was s:mply a work colleague. 78 In
addition, Kalimanzira contends that it was unreasonable to discount the w1t.ness s testimony based
on his lack of knowledge about RTLM broadcasts or his ownership of shares in the organization. 179
He also challenges the Trial Chamber’s observation that Witness Siniyobewe testified breciscly
with respect to the dates surrounding the attack on Kabuye hill and more generally about other time

periods.'® In his view, the Trial Chamber failed to appreciate the witness’s explanation for this."®'

t

67. The Appe;'«:lls Chamber is not convinced that the Trial Chamber shifted the burden of proof in
assessing Kalimanzira’s alibi, ‘The Appeals Chamber observes that the Trial Chambcr carrectly
stated that “an accused need only produce evidence likely to raise a reasonable doubt in the
Prosecution’s case” and that “Jt]he alibi does not carry a separate burden.”'®? In addition, the Trial
Chamber noted that “the burden of proving the facts charged beyond reasonable doubt [...] always

remains squarely on the shoulders of the Prosecution.”'®® This approach is consistent with the

settled jurisprudence for assessing an alibi.'®* Moreover, the Appeals Chamber cannot identify any

172 K alimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 75-82.

1 K alimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 76, citing Trial Judgement, paras. 117, 122, 125-127, 129, 130, 134.

' Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 77, 78.

'S Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 79-82.

176 K alimanzira Appeal Bricf, paras. 79-82.

'™ K alimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 83-89.

'™ Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 84,

'" Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 85-88. L M
8¢ K alimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 89. \
'®! Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 89.

82 Trial Judgement, para. 112.

'8 Trial Judgement, para. 112, See also Trial Judgement, para. 136.

18 See Zigiranyirazo Appeal Judgement, paras. 17, 18,
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or in its use

error in the Trial Chamber’s conclusion that it did not “believe” Kalimanzira’s alibi'®

of various other formulations relating to this assessment,'*® These formulations simply underscored
the Trial Chamber’s conclusion that it did not find the alibi evidence sufficiently credible to raise a

reasonable doubt in the Prosecution’s case,

68.  The Appeals Chamber is also not satisfied that Kalimanzira has demonstrated any error in
the Trial Chamber’s rejection of his claim that he stayed in Kibungo Prefecture on the night of 21
April 1994, After discussing the evidence that he remained in Kibungo due to security concerns
related to the RPF advance,'® the Trial Chamber found that “[h]aving been assigned two
gendarmes to accompany him on this trip; it makes no sense that Kalimanzira would have waited
until an already precarious situzttion became so dangerous that others started leaving before he or
his protective escorts decided it was safe for him to leave.”'® Beyond disagreéing with this
conclusion, Kalimanzira points to no evidence in the record, other than his own testimony, to
substantiate his claim that it was more dangerous to travel at night than to wait until just hours

before the area fell to the RPF.

69.  Kalimanzira has also not demonstrated any error in the Trial Chamber’s decision not to
accept that he remained primarily in Murambi, Gitarama Prefecture, between 14 Apﬁl and 30"May
1994 and at his home in Butare Prefecture from 31 May onwards. In particular, the Trial Chambér
found Kalimanzira’s description‘ of his activities in Murambi, which primarily focused on the
payment of salaries, to be végue, in contradiction with other evidence as to how civil servants were
paid, and, more importantly, inconsistent with his position and attendance at pronﬁnent meetings, in
particular in the context of an ongoing war.'™ This last factor was also key to the Trial Chamber’s
rejection of Kalimanzira’s claim to have mostly stayed at home while in Butare Prefecture.’® In
this context, the Appeals Chamber finds that it was within the scope of the Trial Chamber’s
discretion to consider as unpersuasive both his claim to have focused entirely on payment matters
while in Murambi and his claim that he stayed at home in Butare Prefecture, out of contact with
local officials.'*"

'®> Trial Judgement, para. 136.

18 See Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 76 (“The Chamber's vocabulary is characterized by bias. The Chamber talks of
‘feigning ignorance’, ‘compuisive, irrational’ fears of RPF infiltrations, ‘caught having lied’, finding Kalimanzira's
version repeatedly ‘unbelievable *, ‘inconceivable °, ‘peculiar °. It blamed him for ‘trivializing the situation’ when he
testified that he atiempted to save some Tutsi as thousands of others were being ‘siaughtered” elsewhere[.] The use of
these words was out of place.”) (emphasis in original), citing Trial Judgement, paras. 117, 122, 125-127, 129, 130, 134.
"7 Trial Judgement, paras. 106, 127.

% Trial Judgement, para. 127. Y,
1 Trial Judgement, paras. 122-124, ’<
1% Trial Judgement, para. 132.

1% See Trial Judgement, paras. 122-124, 132.
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70. . Finally the Appeals Chamber is not convinced that Kalimanzira has shown that the Trial
Chamber’s éssessment of Witness Siniyobewe’s evidence was unreasonable. Even if the Trial
Chamber incorrectly characterized Witness Siniyobewe as a friend rather than a former
subordinate,'*? the Appeals Chamber considers that a degree of caution would still apply to Witness
Siniy.obewe’yé testinion-y. The Appeals Chamber notes that the Trial Chamber’s analysis of Witness
Siniyobewe’s claiméd lack of knowledge concerning the content of RTLM’s broadcasts, and his
ownership of shares in RTLM, fell within the bounds of its discretion. In any event, these issues do
not appear to -bc the main reasons for discrediting Witmess Siniyobewe, The Appeals Chamber
recalls that the Trial Chamber found Witness Siniyobewe’s account of Kalimanzira’s presence in
Murambi, Gitarama Prefecture, on the morning of 23 April 1994 to be unconvincing. In this respect,
the Trial Chamber contrasted the “sudden and belated introduction” of Kalimanzira’s specific alibi
evidence for 23 April 1994, the date of the attack on Kabuye hill, with the more general evidence he

gave with respect to the rest of his time in Murambi,'®

3. Conclusion

71,  Accordingly, the Appeals Chamber dismisses Kalimanzira’s Fourth Ground of Appeal.

(*\\f\

'2 See T. 4 February 2009 pp. 14, 54,
%% Trial Judgement, para. 121.
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D. Alleged Errors Relating to the Inauguration of Elie Ndayambajye (Ground §

72.  The Trial Chamber convicted Kalimanzira for aiding and abetting genocide, in part, based
on his presence at the 22 June 1994 inauguration of Blie Ndayanibaje as bourgmestre of Muganza
Commune, Butare Prefecture, during which Ndayambaje instigated the killing of Tutsis. 19 The
Trial Chamber found that, by his presence, Kalimanzira offered moral support to Ndayambaje's call
to kill Tutsis during the ceremony and thereby aided and abetted subsequent kil]i_ngs.'°5 In making
these findings, the Trial Chamber relied on Witnesses BBB and BCA, who attended the ceremony,

observed Kalimanzira’s presence, and testified about subsequent killings.'®®

73.  Kalimanzira submits that the Trial Chamber erred in convicting him in relation to this
incident.'” In this section,' the Appeals Chamber will consider wh'ether the Trial Chamiber erred in
the assessment of the evidence of the killings. In this respect, Kalimanzira contends that there is
insufficient evidence demOnsfrating that killings in fact followed the ceren'lony.wB The Prosecution
responds generally that Kalimanzira’s arguments lack merit, but does not address the sufficiency of

the evidence relating to the killings."”’

74.  The Appeals C‘hamber recalls that “an aider and abettor carries out acts specifically directed
to assist, encourage, or lend moral support to the perpetration of a certain specific crime, which
have a substantial effect on the perpetration of the crime.”?® The Appeals Chamber has explained
that “{a]n accused can be convicted for aiding and abetting a crime when it is established that his
conduct amounted to tacit approval and encouragement of the crime and that such conduct
substantially contributed to the crime.”?' Where this form of aiding and abetting has been a basis of
a conViction, “it has been the authority of the accused combined with his presence on (or very near
to) the crime scene, especially if considered together with his prior conduct, which all together
allow the conclusion that the accused’s conduct amounts to official sanction of the crime and thus

substantially contributes to i,

75.  In view of Kalimanzira’s position as directeur de cabinet of the Ministry of Interior, it was
reasonable for the Trial Chamber to determine that his silent presence during Ndayamabaje’s

inflammatory speech would have offered tacit approval of its message. The basis of Kalimanzira’s

' Trial Judgement, paras. 291-293, 739.
'3 Trial Judgement, paras. 292, 293.
196 -, Tria! judgement, para. 291,
%7 Kalimanzira Notice of Appeal, paras. 23-29; Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 92-161.
198 K alimanzira Appea! Brief, paras. 117-119, 135, 136.
' prosecution Response Brief, paras. 75-90. See also T. 14 June 2010 pp. 32-37.
® Muvunyi Appeal Judgement, para. 79. See also Seromba Appeal Judgement, para. 44; Blagojevic’ and Jokic Appeal

Judgement, para. 127,
1 Bydanin Appeal Judgement, para. 273. See also Brdanin Appeal Judgement, para. 277. (——K \J\
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conviction, however, rests on the Trial Chamber’s conclusidn that Kalimanzira’s tacit approval not
only sanctioned Ndayamba_]e s message, but in fact substanhally contributed to killings which

occurred after the ceremony

76.  Asthe Trial- Chamber noted, Wltnesses BBB and BCA attest to. k]lhngs occurring after the
meeting. 204 Their accounts regardmg these crimes are vague and devo1d of any detml In particular,
the extent of Witness BBB s description of the killings is that “gfter the speech, people went 10
sweep their houses, that is to say, to kill those persons.”*” Witness BCA’s account is similarly
brief: “As was noticed later on, it meant that [Tutsis and Hutus who opposed the government] who
had been hidden had to be taken out of their hiding sothat they should be 'kilted as well. ">

77.  The Appeals Chamber, Judge Pocar dissenting, considers that it'is unclear from either
account whether the witnesses had first-hand knoWledge of the killings or whether their evidence
was hearsay. "I‘hey refer to no particular .incident, provide no approximate time-frame for the
Killings, and do not give anyidentifying information concerning the assailants or victims. In such
circumstances, the 'Appeals Chamber finds, Judge Pocar dissen_ting, that it is impossible to
determine with any reasonable certainty whether any killings in fact occurred following the meeting

and, if so, the degree to which they were related to the t:erernony-.

78, In the Muvunyi case, the Appeals Chamber reversed a conviction for genocide because the
et/idence of the killings which underpinned the finding of guilt were based on second- or third-hand
testimony that “contmn[ed] no detail on any specific incident or the frequency of the attacks. n207
The Appeals Chamber, Judge Pocar dissenting, can identify no material distinction between the
quality of the evidence in the Muvunyi case and that provided by Witnesses BBB and BCA here

with respect to the occurrence of killings.

79.  Consequently, the Appeals Chamber, Judge Pocar dissenting, is not persuaded that the Trial
Chamber acted reasonably in relying on the evidence of Witnesses BBB and BCA about the
subsequent killings. No reasonable trier of fact could have concluded that Tutsis were killed as a
result of the ceremony in circumstances where it heard no evidence about even a single incident.
Therefore, the Trial Chamber erred in fact in finding that the evidence showed that Kalimanzira’s
presence at the inauguration substantially contributed to subsequent acts of genocide. As a result,

the Appeals Chamber need not address Kalimanzira’s other arguments under this ground of appeal.

2 prdanin Appeal Judgement, para. 277.

203 Trial Judgement, para. 292. \\f\
2 Tyial Judgement, para. 291. See also T. 16 June 2008 p. 20; T. 18 June 2008 pp. 50, 51. (‘\

205 T, 16 June 2008 p. 20,
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80. For the forgoing reasons, the Appeals Chamber, Judge Pocar dissenting, grants
Kalimanzira’s Fifth Ground of Appeal and reverses his conviction for aiding and abetting genocide

based on this event.

< W

267 18 June 2008 pp. 50, 51.
%7 Muvunyi Appeal Judgement, para. 69. See also Muvunyi Appeal Judgement, paras. 68, 70-72.

28
Case No. ICTR-05-88-A 20 October 2010




81.  The Trial Chamber convicted Kalimanzira for aiding and abetting genocide, in part, based
on his involvement in the ‘massacre -of Tutsi civilians at Ka-bliye Hill in Butare Prefecture .bn 23
April 1994.% In 'paifticular, the Trial Chamber found that, sometime ‘before noon on that day,
Kalimanzira became angry while .at the Mukabuga roadblock after learning that Tutsis at the hill
had successfully defended themselves, which demonstrated his knqwledge of the attack and his
intention for Tutsis to be killed there. 209 The Trial Chamber further found that, later that day,
Kahmanzu'a was present when Sub-Prefect Dormmque Ntawukulilyayo instructed Tutsm at the
Gisagara marketplace to seek refuge at Kabuye hill*"® According to the Trial Chamber,
Kalimanzira’s presence showed tacit approval of, and gave credence to, the sub-prefect’s false
assurances of Safety.m The Trial 'Chamber determined that, in a similar fashion, Kalimanzira
stopped Tutsis on the KabuyesGisagara road and told them to go to Kabuye hill, promising them
safety 212 Finally, the Trial Chamber found that Kalimanzira then went to Kabuye hill along with
armed soldiers and pohcemen who, using thelr firearms, massacred Tutsis there, resulting in an
“enormous human t:ragedy.”213 The Trial Chamber concluded that “Kalimanzira’s role in luring
Tutsis to Kabuye hill and his subsequent assistance in providing armed reinforcements substantially
contﬁbuted to the overall attack.”'* The Trial Chamber further concluded that his actions

demonstrated his genocidal intent.*"?

82, Kﬁlimanzira contests his conviction, citing a number of alleged errors.”'® In this section, the
Appeals Chamber considers whether the. Trial Chamber erred in: (1) determining that Kalimanzira
aided and abetted genocide; (2) assessing witness credibility and identification evidence; (3) its
findings relating to the Gisagara marketplace; (4) its findings relating to the Kabuye-Gisagara road;

and (5) its findings relating to Kalimanzira’s presence at Kabuye hill.

1. Alleged Errors in Determining Whether Kalimanzira Aided and Abctted Genocide

83.  The Trial Chamber found that Kalimanzira substantially contributed to the massacre on
Kabuye hill on 23 April 1994 by convincing Tutsis to seek refuge there and by providing armed

208 rin] Judgement, paras. 392, 393, 739.

¥ Trial Judgement, paras. 376, 378, 392.

210 Trial Judgement, paras. 367, 392.

2! Trial Judgement, para. 392.

212 Tria] Judgement, paras. 371, 392.

213 Trial Judgement, para. 393.

24 Tria] Judgement, para. 393.

215 Trjal Judgement, para. 393.

216 ¥olimanzira Notice of Appeal, paras. 17, 30-43; Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 162-341. In his Appeal Brief,
Kalimanzira addresses his Third Ground of Appeal relating to alleged errors concerning the Trial Chamber's

<)
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reinforcements for subsequent attacks on them. 217 The Trial Chambcr also explicitly concluded that
Kahmanzu‘a possessed genocidal intent based on several factors.”"® First, the Trial Chamber
concluded that, on 23 April 1994 Kahmanzu'a became enraged on learnmg that the Tutsis at
Kabuye hill successfully defended themselves and had not been killed and that he asked to be

shown where the Tutsis were,”'” Second, it found that he demonstrated “tacit approval of [Sub-

Prefect] Ntawukulilyayo’s expulsion of Tutsis from the Gisagara marketplace to Kabuyf:-hill.”220

Third, it concluded that Kalimanzira assisted the massacre on Kabuye hill by providing armed
reinforcements to facilitatc the killings.”2! Finally, the Trial Chamber also took into account
Kalimanzira's conduct in relation to the attack along with other actions during the relcvant time

period and concluded that these factors demonstrated his intent to destroy the Tutsi group

4

84.  Kalimanzira contcnds -that the Trial Chamber erred in its assessment of whether he aided
and abetted genocide. First, he asserts that no actioh he took could constitute a “substantial”
contribution to the massacre at Kabuye hill.** Speciﬁ_cally,\‘ Kalimanzira niotes that none of the
Prosecution or Defence witnesses who were -part of the attacking forces reportedk séeing him”at
Kabuye hill except for Prosecution Witness BBO, whose testimony the Trial Chamber did not find
credible.”** Taking his absence from Kabuye hill as a given, Kalimanzira reasons that he could not
‘have influenced those who were attacking Tutsis there and Lhué that he could not have substantially

contributed to the massacre.*?

85.  Kalimanzira further contends that the Trial Chamber failed to adequately justify its finding
that he possessed ‘the required ‘mens rea for aiding and abetting ,genecide‘m He maintains that the
Trial Chamber did not adequately explain how it concluded that he knew of the genocidal intent of
the principal perpetrators, or that he was. ‘aware that his acts contributed to the principal
perpetrators’ criminal 1:'>1an.227 Kalimanzira also asserts that the Trial Chamber erred in discussing
his mens rea for genocide in a separate section of the Trial Judgement applicable to all relevant

counts of the Indictment.”®® He asserts that this section improperly analyzes multiple separate

assessment of his genocidal intent in connection with his Sixth Ground of Appeal. See Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, para.
58.

37 Trial Judgement, para. 393.

218 Trig] Judgement, para. 393. See also Trial Judgement, paras. 733, 734.

219 500 Trial Judgement, para. 733. See also Trial Judgment, paras. 321-324,

220 Tyia) Judgement, para. 734. See also Trial Judgement, para. 367.

2! Trigl Judgement, para. 734. See also Trial Judgement, para. 393.

222 Trig] Judgement, paras. 393, 732-738.

2 Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 196.

24 K limanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 197, 198. See also Kalimanzira Reply Brief, para. 24.

5 K alimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 199-201.

226 K olimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 202-221. 1 \J\
227 g alimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 213-215. \
228 ¥ 3limanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 204-209.
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incidents and also focuses only on genocidal intent, rather than the specific mens rea required for

aiding and aibe._tting.ﬂ29

86.  The Appeals Chamber -has-'explai-ned'that an “aider and abettor commit[s] acts specifically
aimed at assisting, encouraging, or lending moral support for the perpetration of a ,sp\cciﬁc crime,
and that this support ha[s] a SubStantiB] effect on the perpetration of the crime.””° Whether a
particular con‘uibﬁtion qualifies as “substantial” is a “fact-based inquiry”; such assistance need not
“serve as condition precedent for the commission 6f the crime.”®' With regard to the mens rea
required for aiding and abetting, the Appeais Chamber has held that “[t]he requisite mental element
[..] is knowledge that the acts performed 'assist the commissionl of the specific crime of the
principal perpetrator.”?* Specific intent crimes such as genocide require that *‘the aider and abettor

must know of the principal perpetrator’s specific intent.”**

87.  Kalimanzira’s contention that the Trial Chamber erred in finding that he made a substantial
contribution to the killings at Ka"buyc hill is not convinging. T_he Trial ‘Chamiber reasonably
concluded that he substantially contributed to the massacre by encouraging Tutsis to seek refuge at
Kabuye hill and by providing armed reinforcements to those trying to kill the Tutsis there.
Kalimanzira’s assertion that he did not subétantially aid the assault on Kabuye hill rests on his claim
that no credible witnesses who were also principal perpetrators placed him there, 2 HOwever, this
claim does not take into account the evidence provided by Tutsi survivors of the attacks. It was on
the basis of their testimonies that the Trial Chamber placed him at Kabuye hill on 23 April 1994.%%
7I‘rhe Appeals Chamber recalls that it is not necessary for a principal perpetrator to be aware.of the
' aider and abettor’s contribution.?®® It further recalls the Trial Chamber’s finding that the attacks at
Kabuye hill involved a large number of individuals over a broad terrain and long period of time,*’
In this context, it was reasonable for the Trial Chamber to conclude that Kalimanzira provided
substantial assistance to the massacre at Kabuye hill even if this assistance was not known to

principal perpetrators who testified before it.2*®

9 K alimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 206, 218-220.

MSeromba Appeal Judgement, para. 44. See also Muvunyi Appeal Judgement, para. 79; Blagojevic and Joki¢ Appeal
Judgement, para, 127.

1 Blagojevic and Joki¢ Appeal Judgement, para. 134,

2 Muvunyi Appeal Judgement, para. 79.

™ Blagajevic and Joki¢ Appeal Judgement, para. 127,

54 See Kalimanzira Appeal Bricf, paras. 196-201, See also Kalimanzira Reply Brief, para. 24.

35 See Trial Judgement, paras. 379-383, 393,

D6 see Tadic Appeal J udgement, para, 229.

37 See Trial Judgement, paras. 386, 387.

3% The Appeals Chamber further recalls that “the actus reus of aiding and abetting a crime may occur before, during, or
after the principal crime has been perpefrated, and that the location at which the actus reus takes place may be removed
from the location of the principal crime.” Blafkic Appeal Judgement, para. 48, See also Blagoje Simic Appeal
Judgement, para. 85, /\p RJ\
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88.  Kalimanzira is equally unconvincing insofar as he contends that the Trial Chamber erred in
separating its discussion of mens rea from the assessment of factual issues 'reldting to Kabuye hill.
Contrary to Kalimanzii'a’s suggestion, the Trial Chamber specifically addressed his intent with
respect to the events at Kabuye hill in a.separate section of the Trial Judgement and incorporated
those findings into its analysis regarding Kabuye hill.”® The Appeals Chamber can identify no error
in the structure of this approach.

89.  The content of the Trial Chamber’s mens rea analysis, however, is problematic. The Trial
Chamber limited its analysis to diécussing Kalimanzira’s specific intent to destroy the Tutsi group.
It did not make specific findings on the mens rea of the princiﬁal perpetrators or of his knoWle ge
of their intent,**® which, as noted above, is required to sustain a conviction for aiding and abetting
genocide.z‘“ The Appeals Chamber considers however that the evidence before the Trial Chamber
was sufficient to support a finding that the principal perpetrators acted with genocidal intent in view

of how the attack unfoided and the context in which it occurred.

90.  The Trial Chamber’s ﬁn'dings‘also support its implicit conclpsion that Kalirrianzir_a knew of
the principal perpetrators’ ,-genocidal intent. Even before the massacre at Kabuye hill, the anger
Kalimanzira demonstrated at the Mukabuga roadblock when informed that the Tutsis at Kabuye hill
had successfully defended thcinselvés and had not been killed strongly suggested that he was aware
of the principal perpetrators’ genocidal plans.?*® This conclusion is confirmed by Kalimanzira’s
personal observation of the siege at Kabuye hill, which involved significant numbers of armed
individuals surrounding and shooting at Tutsi refugees who had been told that Kabuye hill was a
place of safety.” These findings compel the conclusion that Kalimanzira knew that the armed
reinforcements which he provided would' aid in the destruction, in whole or in part, of the Tutsi

ethnic group.

91. For the foregoing reasons, the Appeals Chamber is not convinced that the Trial Chamber
erred in its analysis of the requirements needed to convict for aiding and abetting genocide.

Accordingly, this sub-ground of appeal is dismissed.

2 See Trial Judgement, paras. 393, 733, 734.

40 Soe Trial Judgement, paras, 733, 734, See also Trial Judgement, paras. 392, 393.

%! The Appeals Chamber reiterates that in order to enter a conviction for aiding and abeiting genocide it is not
necessary to prove that the aider and abettor himself had genocidal intent. See Ntakirutimana Appeal Judgement, para.

. 501; Krsti¢ Appeal Judgement, para. 140.

242 Trial Judgement, paras, 376, 392. '_‘ \J\
3 Trial Judgement, para. 734
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2. Alleged Errors in the Trial Chamber’s Consideration of WimesSes’ Credibility and Provision of

Tdentification Evidence

92.  The Trial Chamber found that both Defence and Prosecution witnesses agreed on the broad
outlines of the assault on Kabuye hill and on certain elements of events at the Gisagara
marketplace.”* It also noted that in the context of these two events, Defence witnesses’ failure to
see Kalimanzira did not preclude his presence.*** With regard to the idcnﬁﬁbation of Kaiirn_anz_ir.a,
the Trial Chamber guestioned Prosecution Witness BBO’s explanation of hdw ‘he niet Kalimanzira,
.ahd doubted his ability to identify Kalimanzira at Kabuye hill. It determined that it would not rely
on his testimony ‘without corroboration by reliable evidence.*® The Trial Chamber also noted that
Prosecution Witness BWO had met Kalimanzira on multiple occasions prior to 23 April 1994 and,
partly on this basis, Tound that he would have been able to identify Kalimanzira.**’ The Trial
Judgment did not refer to identiﬁqatidn evidence when assessing the testimony of Prosecution

Witnesses BDC, BCF, or BWK.**

93.  Kalimanzira asserts that the Trial Chamber erred in its analysis of witnesses’ testimony by
focusing on the suffering of Prosecution witnesses, but not oh that of Defence witnesses.”* He
suggests that this demenstrates that the Trial Chamber inappropriately excused _chtradictions and

20 He also

weaknesses in Prosecution witnesses’ testimony on the basis of their past suffering.
asserts that the Trial Chamber erred in accepting Defence witnesses’ testimony regarding the events

in question, but not taking into account their testimony that they did not see Kalimanzira.>!

94.  Kalimanzira further asserts that the Trial Chamber’s analysis of identification evidence was
flawed and incomplete. He suggests in his Appeal Brief, and states in his Reply Brief, that the
identifications at issue were made under difficult circumstances and thus should have been the
subject of careful analysis by the Trial Chamber.?*? He submits that the Trial Chamber was unduly
influenced by the Prosecution’s practice of having its witnesses identify him from the witness stand

233

and thus did not discuss identification evidence in the Trial Judgment.”~ Kalimanzira also provides

specific analysis of the identification evidence provided by Witnesses BBO, BCF, BDC, BWK, and

**4 See Trial Judgement, paras. 365, 386.

* Trigl Judgement, paras. 365, 387.

26 Tria) Judgement, para. 375.

7 Trial Judgement, para. 383.

8 See Trial Judgement, paras. 372-391.

9 K alimanzira Appedl Brief, paras. 166-168.

20 Kalimanzira Appedl Brief, paras. 169, 170. See also Kalimanzira Reply Brief, para. 19. : (X \f\
) Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 174.

2 go¢ Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 179; Kalimanzira Reply Brief, para. 20.

) Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 176-178.
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BWO in their testimony.254 Kalimanzira focuses especially on Witness BWK, noting that she

testiﬁed‘to meeting him only ence prior to 23 April 1994, when he was identified by a third party.
Kalimanzira also observes that she again required assistance in order to identify him on

23 April 19947

95. The Prosecution responds that the Trial Chamber gave careful consideration to the
testimony of Sutvivof wi_tnesses for both the Prosecution and the Defence. It contends that
differences in the Trial Chamber’s description of these witnesses did not amount to an error.?® It
also suggests that the Trial Chamber appropriately chose to accept ‘aspects of .the Defence
witnesses’ testimony without finding that it:under-fnined the testimony of Prosecution witnesses.”’
The Prosecution further contends that the Trial Chamber acted within its discretion in not
specifically discussing the identification e.vidence of certain witnesses. The Prosecution asserts that
there were no difficult 'circumstances with regard to identification that would reqhire a more
rigorously reasoned op1n10n on this issue. 258 With regard to Witness BWK it notes that she
_provided “detailed ev1dence regarding her first encounter with Kahmanzlra and notes that her

meeting with him on 23 A-pn-l 1994 “must have been clearly memorable to her.”259

96. The Appeals Chamber recalls that in assessing witness testimony, At falls to the Trial
Chamber to take the approach it considers most appropriate for the assessment of evidence.”*® A
trial chamber “is [...] not obliged in its Judgement to recount and justify its findings in relation to
'every submission made at trial.”?®' In addition, “ngither the Rules nor the jurisprudence of the
Tribunal oblige[} i[a] Trial ‘Chamber to require a particular type of identification evidence.”?%
- However, 1dent1ﬁcat:|ons made in difficult circumstances, such as darkness, obstnlcted view, or
traumatic events,”® requlre careful and cautious analysis by a trial chamber. 284 1 addition, in-court
identification evidence should be assigned “little or no credence” given the signals that can identify
an accused aside from prior acquaintancc.265 The Appeals Chamber further recalls that *“[a] Trial

Chamber has the discretion to cautiously consider hearsay evidence and has the discretion to rely on

34 K alimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 182-192. See also Kalimanzira Reply Brief, paras. 21, 22.
5 K alimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 188-190.
2% prosecution Response Brief, paras. 93, 94.
7 prosecution Response Brief, para. 95.
¥ prosecution Response Brief, paras. 97-99, 106. The Prosecution also provides specific analysis of the identification
evidence provided by Witnesses BWO, BDC, BCF, BBO, and BWK, and concludes that their identifications were
reliable. See Prosecution Response Brief, paras. 100-105.
% prosecution Response Brief, para. 104.
0 Rutaganda Appeal Judgement, para. 207.
::; Muhimana Appeal Judgement, para. 176.
Kamuhanda Appeal Judgement, para. 298.
3 See, e.g., Kupreskic Appeal Judgement, para. 40, ‘—T\\(\
4 See, e.g., Bagilishema Appeal Judgement, para. 75. See aiso Kupreskic Appeal Judgement, para. 39.
3 K amuhanda Appeal Judgement, para. 243
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jt.208 However, “the weight and probative value to be afforded to that evidence will usually be less
than that accorded to the evidence of a witness who has given it under oath and who has been cross-

examined,”%"’

97.  Kalimanzira provides no relevant evidence or analysis to support his contention that the
Trial Chamber inappropriately excused -wéaknesses in Prosccuti_ori witnesses’ testimony on the
basis of their past suffering. The Appeals Chamber also finds that the Trial Chamber acted within
its discretion in acccpting Defence witnesses’ fes-timony regarding evenrts‘ at Gisagara marketplace
and Kabuye hill, while also concluding that their failure to see Kalimanzira did not preclude his
presence at these locations. Large numbers of individuals were involved in these two events, and
the Trial Chamber’s conclusmns rcga:dmg Kabuye hill - that “no witness alone could amply
describe everything that transpired or 1dent1fy everyone who was prcsent - applies to the events at

Gisagara marketplace with equal force.”®

98. 'The Appeals Chamber notes that Kalimanzira points to no evidence and provides ne
analysis in relation to his assertion that -identifications occurred under difficult circumstances.
Therefore, this contention is summarily dismissed. The Appeals Chamber further notes that
Kalimanzira appears to contradict himself by claiming that the in-court identification by
Prosecution witnesses led the Trial Chamber to ignore the issue of identification evidence, while at
the same time referring to Trial Chamber analy51s of such identification evidence rclatlng to
Witnesses BBO and BWO.?® In any event, the evaluation in the Trial Judgement of individual
witness testimonies demonstrates that, for the most part, the Trial Chamber reasonably discussed
identification evidence when this was relevant to assessing a witness’s credibility. Thus, analysis of
identification evidence was reasonably used both to explain the Trial Chamber’s caution in
accepting Witness BBO's evidence, and to help justify the finding that Witness BWO was credible.
The absence of any analysis of identification evidence with respect to Witnesses BDC and BCF
from the Trial Judgement is also reasonable. Both testified that they had seen Kalimanzira more
than once prior to 23 April 1994, and their testimonies partially corroborated each other, lending
them additional credibility.””

99, By contrast, the Trial Chamber’s failure to discuss identification evidence with regard to
Witness BWK'’s uncorroborated identification testimony is problematic. In her testimony, Witness

BWK stated that she only saw Kalimanzira once before 23 April 1994, when she overheard a

266 Karera Appeal Judgement, para. 39 (internal citalions omitted).

87 Karera Appeal Judgement, para. 39.

88 Trial Judgement, para. 387. See also Muhimana Appeal Judgement para. 113 (noting the limited probative vaiue of
claims by witnesses who did not see an accused during large scale attacks).

* Compare Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, para 178, with Kalimanzira Appcal Brief, paras. 185, 191, "K\\[\
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cenversation about him in a bar he had entered. 27! The extent to which he was identified even in this

circumstance is unclear. Dunng the examination-in-chief, Wltness BWK explalned that she

mn whlle on Cross-

overheard the bannan 1dent1fy Kahmanz:ra by mame to the bar owner,
-examination she tesnﬁed that she -overheard the barman tdentify Kahmanmra as the “gentleman
from Kirarambogo™.?” Wlmess BWK also explained that, although she thou-ght Kalimanzira
seemed familiar when she met him on the Kabuye-Gisagara road oh: 23 Aprﬂ 1994, she only linked
him to the 1nd1V1dual from the bar when a rnan named Gakeri, who was escortmg her and other
Tutsis, identified him as Kahmanmra Consequently, it follows that the basis of Witness BWK s
identification of Kalimanzira on both occasions is he'aISay. While a conviction may be based on this
type of evidence, caution is warranted in such circumstances.?” In this case, glven the unclear
nature of Kalimanzira's identification by the barman, and Witness BWK's .uncer-tainty over
Kalimanzira’s identity when she met him at the Kabuye-Gisagara road, the Trial Chamber should
have explicitiy explained why it accepted Witness BWK’s identification -evidenee. The Appeals
Chambcr., .S;qud:ge Pocar dissenting, considers that its failure .te provide such justiﬁcation'.coristituted

an error of law.,

100. In view of the Trial Chamber $ Iega.l error, the Appeals Chamber, J udge Pocar dlssentmg,
will proceed to cons1der the relevant ev1dence 276 The Appeals Chamber, Judge ‘Pocar dlssentmg, 1s
particularly concemed by the uncertainty over whether and to what extent’ Kalimanzira was even
identified by name prior to the meeti'ng on the Kabuye-Gisagara road. The Appeals Chamber, Judge
Pocar dissenting, also notes that there is no indication as to the credibility of either individual who
identified Kalimanzira to Witness BWK on the record. In thesé circumstances, the "Appeals
Chamber, Judge Pocar dissenting, considers that reliance on Witness 'BWK"S uncorroborated

identification evidence 1s unsafe.

101, For the foregoing reasons, the Appeals Chamber, Judge Pocar dissenting, grants
Kalimanzira’s appeal, in part, insofar as it relates to identification evidence by Witness BWK. The
impact of this finding will be considered later in this section. The Appeals Chamber dismisses

Kalimanzira's remaining arguments in this sub-section.

™ See T, 5 May 2008 p. 18; T. 9 May 2008 pp. 33, 34.
) See T. 9 May 2008 pp. 15, 16.
ij’; T. 9 May 2008 p. 16.
T. 19 May 2008 p. 56. —
24T, 9 May 2008 p. 18. \ N
2 Muvunyi Appeal Judgement, para. 70.
See supra para. 8.
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3. Alleged Errors Relating to Events at Gisagara Marketplace (April Event)

102. The Trial Chamber based its analysis of the events at the Gisagara marketplace primarily on
the evidence of ‘Pl'O'SGCUﬁC_m Witnesses B-’CF, BDC, and BWO, and Defence Wi.‘messes AMI14 and
FCS. ¥ Tt concluded that on 23 April 1994 Kalimanzira stood next to Sub-Prefect Ntawukulilyayo
..as the latter told Tutéis gathered at the'Gisagara marketplace to travel to Kabuye hill and promised
them protection there.”™ The Trial Chamber found that the expulsions of Tutsi refugees from the
Gisagara marketplace 'took-p'lace in waves over several days.279 The Trial Chamber reasoned that
most discrepancies within .and among witnesses’ testimonies 'and their prior statements were
immaterial, and in any event based on factors such as their participation in different waves of
expulsion, the passage of time, misrecorded statements, caution in testifying, and the chaotic

. : 0
circumstances at the Gisagara markn‘atplace.28

103. Kalimanzira asscrté that the Trial Chamber should have, but did .not, explain why it believed
that during his vi-sii to "ﬁie'fGisa-gaIa ‘marketplace, he was aware ‘that ‘the promises of security -at
Kabuye hill made by Sub-Prefect Ntawukulilyayo were false.?®' Kalimanzira further asserts that the
Trial Chamber erred in suggesting that there were multiple waves of expulsions frofri the
marketplace. In particular, he notes that Witness BCF did not mention several waves of expulsions,
even though he was present for several days prior to 23 April 1994 and was one of the last persons
to leave the marketplace.?®? Kalimanzira concludes that the Trial 'Chémber was thus not justified in
finding that the contradictions between Witness BWO's testimony and those of certain other
witnesses were due to their describing different waves of exp'ulsi_ons.?gg He also notes that
Witness BWO claimed to be sufficiently close to the speakers to be able to 'idehtify various officials
in the marketplace, undermining the Trial Chamber’s conclusion that Witness BWO’s location

might have prevented him from seeing Kalimanzira, if the latter was pr&:scnt.284

104. Kalimanzira further submits that the Trial Chamber failed to properly consider discrepancies

85 K alimanzira also

between Witness BCF’s testimony, his prior statements, and Defence evidence.
maintains that Witnesses BCF and BDC colluded with each other, basing this assertion primarily on

the facts that they are from the same area of Rwanda, that their stays in Arusha overlapped, and that

277 Trial Judgement, paras. 358-367.

78 Trial Judgement, para. 367.

2 Tria} Judgement, paras. 364-366.

0 See, e.g., Trial Judgement, paras. 358-367.

281 K alimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 224-229.

282 i olimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 245-247. —~ \f\
28 K alimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 245-247. \

284 K alimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 244.

28 K alimanzira Appeal Brief, paras, 230-236, 250-253.

37
Case No. ICTR-05-88-A 20 October 2010



817/H

286

they presented testimonies that were more similar than their prior witness statements.
Kalimanzira contends that the Trial Chamber also erred in failing to accord sufficient weight to the
cﬁdence of Defence witnesses, c_spécia]ly to the testimony of Witnesses AM14 and FCS that they
did not see him at the Gisagara marketplace on 23 April 1994.” ’

105. The Appeals Chamber is satisfied that the Trial Chamber’s findings concerning
Kalimanzira's actions at the Mukabuga roadblock allowed it to reasonably conclude that
Kalimanzira was aware that Sub-Prefect Ntawukulilyayo’s promises of safe refuge at Kabuye hill
were false. The Trial Chamber also acted within its discretion in finding that discrepancies within
and between the testimonies and prior statements of Witnesses BCF and BDC, and contradictions
between their testimony and that of certain Defence witnesses, were not significant. In this regard,
the Appeals Chamber recalls that trial chambers enjoy broad discretion in 7-choosing' which witness
testimony to prefer, and in assessing the impact on witness credibility of iriconsistencics within -or
between witnesses’ testimonies and pmor statements.”®® The Trial Chamber rcasonably explained
that the discrepancies and contradlctlons could be explained by factors such as the passagc of time
and chaotic circumstances at the Glsagara marketplace.”® Kalimanzira is unconvincing in alleging
collusion between Witnesses BCF and B’D‘C. The facts that their testimonies converged more than
their prior statements, that their stays in ‘-Arusha overlapped, and that they came from the same part

of Rw_anda are not alone sufficient to ‘establish that collusion occurred.

106. By contrast, the Trial Chamber’s justification for the existence of multiple waves of
expulsions is not reasonable given the evidence before it. In explaining why no Prosecution witness

referred to such multiple waves of expulsions, the Trial Chamber reasoned that:

Prosecution witnesses were refugees who were instructed to move, and who testified to events as they
cxpenenced them|[;] they would not conceivably have stayed at the marketplace [...] to wiiness an
expulsion in multiple stages, nor could they be expected to know that a group of refugees had been
moved from the marketplace at other times, [I]t [was] likely that thousands of refugees would not have
shown up at the marketplace all at once, and that as they flowed into the marketplace, they would have
been moved at various stages.

107. The Appeals Chamber considers that this explanation does not fully account for the fact that
Prosecution Witness BCF, who operated a store in the vicinity of the Gisagara marketplace,

testified to only one wave of cxpulsion.zg] Witness BCF testified that he left the Gisagara

%6 K alimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 237-242.
287 K alimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 254-262.
8 See Muvunyi Appeal Judgment, para. 144; Seromba Appeal Judgement, para. 116; Simba Appeal Judgement,
Eara 211; Muhimana Appeal Judgement, para. 58; Ntakirutimana Appeal Judgement, para. 258.

% See Trial Judgement, paras. 360, 361, 365. — \\(\
% Trial Judgement, para. 366. \
M1 See T. 5 May 2008 pp. 10-13; T. 12 May 2008 pp. 11-14, 27-33.
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marketplace in the afternoon of 23 April 1994;*? thus he was in a position to observe any additional

expulsions that occurred prior to that time. It is implausible that he would not have observed or
mentioned a previous wave of expulsion that included an address _by‘ Sub-Prefect Ntawukulilyayo to
a lérge group of refugees.”” In addition, Defence Witness AM14, who was not a refugee” and
who lived in a house near the Gisagara marketplace, explicitly stated that there was only one wave
of refugees expelled from there.”” These testimonies undermine the assumptions on which the Trial

Chamber’s reasoning.concerning multiple waves of expulsions is based.

108. The Trial Chamber’s error regarding multiple waves of expuisions does not, however,
obviate its broader conclusions regarding the Gisagara marketplace. The Trial Chamber suggested
that, even if he had attended the .séme event as Witnesses BCF and BDC, Witness BWO might not
have been able to observe Kalimanzira due to his location in the crowd of refugees.’”® Given the
chaotic circumstances at the marketpiacc. and the fact that Kalimanzira did not speak at this
meeting, the Trial Chamber acted withi-n.r the bounds of its discretion in reaching this conclusion. In
any event, the Trial Chamber’s findings relating to Kalimanzira's role were pnmarlly ‘based on fhe
testimonies of Witnesses BCF and BDC, whose placement of Kalimanzira at Gisagd:ra marketplace
was also echoed by Witness BDJ.2” ‘It was within the Trial Chamber’s disdretion to find these
witnesses credible even though significant aspects of their testimony divergéﬁ from the testimony of

Witness BWO.

109. For the foregoing reasons, the Appeals Chamber is not convinced that the Trial Chamber
materially erred in its analysis of Kalimanzira’s role in the events at the Gisagara marketplace.

.Accordingly, the Appeals Chamber dismisses this sub-ground of appeal.

4. Alleged Errors Relating to Events at Kabuye-Gisagara Road

110. . The Trial Chamber based its analysis of events at the Kabuye-Gisagara road solely on the
testimony of Prosecution Witness BWK.*® In particular, the Trial Chamber concluded that, on
23 April 1994, Kalimanzira personally encouraged a group of Tutsis to travel to Kabuye hill, telling
them that they would be safe there.”®® The Trial Chamber characterized Witness BWK’s evidence

as credible, discounting minor inconsistencies between her testimony and her prior statement.*® It

292 Trial Judgement, paras. 304-306.
295 See Trial Judgement, paras. 363, 364.
2% See T. 19 November 2008 pp. 64, 65.
:Zi See T, 19 November 2008 pp. 69-71. _
Trial Judgement, para. 363.
7 Trial Judgemem, para. 363. "’\\\{\
%8 Trial Judgement, paras. 368, 371.

2% Trial Judgement, para. 371.
*® Trial Judgement, paras. 369-371.
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found her testimony partially corroborated by that of other Prosecution witnesses who placed

Kalimanzira nearby, at the Gisagara marketplace, on the same day.*"' It also noted her mention of a
man named Gakeri, who was ordered to escort her and other Tutsis to Kabuye hill, and observed
that Witness BWO testified that an individual by ‘that same name. was instructed to accompary
Tutsis to Kabuye hill.*** The Trial Chamber concluded that Witness BWO's evidence offered

additional corroboration of Witness BWK's testimony.”®

111. In conn'ection _with_ these findings, Kalimanzira asserts that the Trial 'Cha‘mber erred in
discounting variations between Witness BWK’s testimony and prior statement regarding the date of
her meeting with Kalimanzira,  the number of individuals in hjs car, and the uniform of
Ka.hmarmra s chanffeur.’® Kalimanzira also contends that the Trial Chamber erred in finding
Wltness BWK’s testimony . partly corroborated He submits that the testimony of witnesses to events
at the Gisagara marketplace is not appropriately cited to corroborate Witness BWK’s testimony
regardmg the Kabuye-Glsagara road, and that, while both Witnesses BWO and BWK may have

referred to a man named- Ga.ken there is no proof that it was the same Gakeri,’®

112. The Prosecution responds that Kalimanzira merely repeats assertions made at.trial, without

explaining how the Trial Chamber’s approach was erroneous.””

113. The Appeals Chamber recalls its finding, Judge Pocar dissenting, that it was unsafe for the
Trial Chamber to rely on Witiess BWK's uncorroborated identification evidence with respect to
Kahmanzu:a 37 The ‘Appeals Chamber, Judge Pocar dissenting, underscores that the partial
corroboration noted by the Trial Chamber only suggests that Kalimanzira was in the general area
and that a man called Gakeri escorted Tutsis to Kabuye hill, but does nothing to reliably support
Witness BWK’s specific identification of Kalimanzira, The Appeals Chamber, Judge Pocar
dissenting, therefore is not satisfied that Witness BWK's testimony can be relied on to establish
facts concerning Kalimanzira’s actions at the Kabuye-Gisagara road absent additional evidence.
Given that Witness BWK’s testimony was the only direct evidence of the events that occurred at the
Kabuye-Gisagara road on 23 April 1994, the Appeals Chamber, Judge Pocar dissenting, considers

that the Trial Chamber’s findings regarding Kalimanzira’s actions there are unsafe.

301 Trig Judgement, para. 370.
302 Tyia] Judgement, paras. 315, 329, 370, citing T. 12 May 2008 p. 65.
;‘;: Trial Judgement, para. 370,
Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 267-278. ‘
305 K plimanzira Appeal Brief, paras, 281-285, N\ W
30 prosecution Response Brief, paras. 115, 116.
%7 See supra Section IILE.2 (Alleged Errors in the Trial Chamber’s Consideration of Witnesses’ Credibility and
Provision of Identification Evidence).
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114.  For the foregomg reasons, the Appeals Chamber, Judge Pocar dlssentmg, grants this sub-
. ground of Kahrnanzua 8 appeal The impact of this ﬁndlng will be dlscussed below.

5. Alleged Errors Relatin tc*'Kalimanz__ira’-s-;Presence'._and Actjons at Kabuye Hill

115. Although it discussed other witnesses’ test‘imony, the Trial -‘Chamber ‘based its arralysis of
Kalimanzira’s actions during the attack at Kabuye hill on the evidence of Witnesses BDC, BCF,
and BWO. 308 1t described the 'KabUye hill massacre as in‘vo’lving thousands of individuals acting in
a ‘broad area over a long period of time.*® The Trial Chamber found Witnesses BDC and BCF
credlble and excused certam mconsastencres between and within their testimonies and -prior
statements as caused by the passage of time, their trauma and thClI‘ low level of educauon 310 The
Trial ‘Chamber also found Witness BWO credible, although it concluded that his ‘testimony
concerning Kalimanzira’s actions at Kabuye hill related to an incident that was different from the
one which Witnesses. BDC and BCF described.”"! The Trial Chamber considered the assemons of
Witness BBO *regardmg Kalimanzira’s actions at Kabuye hill, but found his- cred1b1hty quest.lcnable
and dechned to .accept his testimony w1th0ut corroboration.’’* By contrast, the Trlal Chamber
accepted that Wltness BXG's test:lmony was “consistent with the general trend of evidence relating
to Kabuye hill,” even though he did not testify to seeing Kalimanzira there.’’> The Trial Chamber ,
reviewed various accounts of witnesses, but reasoned that the fact that some of them chd not see
Kalimanzira at Kabuye hill was not inconsistent with his presence thcre 314 Fmally the Trial
' '-Chamber.dlsnussed Kalimanzira’s assertion that vehicles could not physically reach Kabuye hill.*'*
In this _r,e.apect, it noted that certain Defence witnesses testified that 'they reach_ed the area in
vehicles, found that the specifics of where vehicies stopped were a “minor detail”, and reasoned that

“Kabuye hil] was not reached from one direction only.”*'®

116. Kalimanzira asserts that the Indictment was defective concerning the specifics of the attack
on Kabuye hill and that its imprecision allowed the Trial Chamber to lay a new charge against him
by finding that the Prosecution witnesses’ testimony related to two separate incidents at Kabuye
hill > He further asserts that the Trial Chamber erred in ignoring the widely varying dates given by

different witnesses for the assault on Kabuye hill, as well as in not specifying an event that could

38 Trial Judgement, paras. 372-387.
39 Trigl Judgement, para. 387.
39 Trial judgement, para. 381,
2:; Trial Judgement, paras. 382, 383,
Trial Judgement, para. 375.
313 Trial Judgement, para. 378. _ e~ \\J\
*M Trial Judgement, paras. 384, 387. AN
*'% Trial Judgement, para. 385.

316 Trjal Judgement, para. 385.
3V Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 293-301, 317, 318.
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serve as a common point of reference for witness testimonies that provided varying date

 estimates,”'®

117.  Kalimanzira ‘further subfriitﬁf_ that the Trial ‘Chamber feiled to justify its acceptance of
testimony by Witnesses BDC and BCF, given the significant contradictions in ._thei.rvsevide'nce.:*19 He
also asserts that the Trial Chamber's -ana’lysis was careless, clainﬁ-ng that it nﬂsattﬁ‘buted relevant
testimony of the two witnesses.”” With regard to Wltncss BWO, Kalimanzira asserts that his
testimony contradicts ‘that of -other Prosccutlon witnesses, and charactenzes the Tnal Chamber

analysis thereof as flawed. 3 Kalimangzira further asserts that the Trial Chamber fa.lled to specify if
it eventually relied on Witness BBO’s testimony, % and that it did not. explam how Wltness BXG’s

evidence was coffciboratcd by other witﬁésses’ accounts of Kalimanzira’s actions on Kabuye hill.***
Kalimanzira also maintains that t-he Trial Chamber gave insufficient wcight to 'Dc'f.ence witnesses’
testimony asserting that they did not see him at Kabuye hill, emphasmng that several Defence

w1tncsses were present at Kabuye hill for multiple days

118, Finally, . Kahmanma contcnds that the Trial .Chamber erred in not conductmg a site visit-or
con31denng Defencc witnesses’ testlmony rcgardmg the absence of reads on Kabuyc ‘hill ¥
Kahmanzufa_ asserts that the Trial Chamber failed to sufﬁment]y explain its acceptance of
Prosecution witnesses’ testimony that his vehicle was parked on Kabuye hill near the re‘fug‘eea;f"26
He notes that if the Trial Chamiber believed the vehicle parked at a greater distance, it should have
| 'provide.d more reasoning to support this conclusion.*”’ Kalimanzira also submits that the Trial

Chariber failed 1o support its conclusion that Tutsis on Kabuye hill were spread over a wide area,

*" Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 288-292, Kalimanzira notes that he suggesied in his Final Trial Brief making the
heavy rainfall mentioned by nearly all witnesses that common point of reference. See Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras,
288, 289.

® Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 309-311, 313. Issues that Kalimanzira claims Witnesses BDC's and BCF's
testimony contradict eéach other on include, inter alia: the number of vehicles he arrived at Kabuye hill with; the number
and type of individuals who accompanied him; his behavior; and whether he left before or after fighting started. See
Kahmanzu-a Appeal Brief, para. 310,

0 Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 312, comparing Trial Judgement, para. 309, with T. 5 May 2008 p. 19 (French
version); T. 12'May 2008 pp. 32, 33, 44 (French version); T. 20 May 2008 p. 75 (French version). See also T. 5 May
2008 p. 14 (English version); T. 12 May 2008 p. 37 (English version); T. 20 May 2008 pp. 28, 29 (English version),
Kalimanzira asgerts that, while the Trial Chamber attributed the claim that Kalimanzira stayed for a short time after-the
start of shooting to Witness BCF, this siatement was in reality made by Witness BDC, The Appeals Chamber notes that
thc French language transcript citation for 20 May 2008 provided by Kalimanzira is not correct.

?! Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 314-319,
22 K alimanzira Appeal Brief, paras, 302, 303.
3 K alimanzira Appeal Bricf, paras. 305-308.
iz Kahmanz:ra Appeal Brief, paras. 329-338. ' .—-—K\\f\
*8 See Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras, 320-328.
*26 Ralimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 321-323.
**7 Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, para, 324.
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and suggests that all refu_gees wou'ld logically have stayed in the same area of Kabuye hill rather
328

than disperse.

119. - The Appeals "'Ghem"r recalls the principles of notice iprew,ci'omsljy' erticula'ted in this
Judgement 329 With regard to ‘the events at Kabuye hill, the Appeals Chamber notes that .the
Indictment- spe01ﬁed the place and date of the Kabuye hill massacre, the general identity of the
victims, and that Kalimanzira sou_'_g‘ltrt ‘o bring military and police reinforcements in order to help
Wi"t’h-‘_the attack.**® The ?Pro_'se'cutd'on"rs Pre-Trial ‘Brie’f further 'Speciﬁed that Kalimanzira encouraged
Tutsis in the area of _G'isagara 1o travel to Kabuye hill, brought armed men to Kabuye ‘hill, provided
details of ‘the assault there, and -clarified that Kalimanzira was seen at Kabuye hill more than
once.‘?'31 The A_ppeal_s fChember.:ﬁnds that insofar as there was any vagueness in the Indictment, it
was cured by-the Prosecution"s Pre-Tr'ial Brief, and thus Kalimanzira had- sufficient notice of the

material facts underpinning his conviction.

120. - ‘With rega:rd ‘to the dating of the -attack, a number -of approaches was certamly open (o the
Trial Chamber However Kalimanzira does not show that it was um'easonable for ‘the Trial
Chamber to. resolve diverse testimoniés regardmg the date of the assault on Kabuye hill, rather than
to adopt the ‘common reference point” suggested in his Final Trial Brief. The Appeals Chamber
recalls that “it falls to the Trial Chamber to take the approach it considers most -appropriate for the

assessment of evrdence »332

121. ‘The Appeals Chamber also-concludes that the Trial Chamber acted within the scope of its
dlscreuon in acceptmg the testlmony of Wltnesses BDC, BCF, and BWO, and in ﬁndrng ‘that the
latter’s testimony related to a distinct event involving Kalimanzira. In this regard, the Appeals
Chamber recalls that trial chambers enjoy broad discretion in choosing Which witness testimony to
prefer, as well as in assessing the impact on witness credibility of inconsistencies within or between

witnesses’ testimony and prior statements.>

A trial chamber “is [...] not obliged in its judgement
to recount and justify its findings in relation to every submission made at trial”?* The

discrepancies between the testimonies of Witnesses BDC, BCF, and BWO do not obscure their

328 g alimanzira Appeal Brief, paras, 326, 327.

329 See supra Section LB (Ground 2: Alleged Errors in Assessing Autherity and Influence).

30 ¢oe Indictment, para. 9, —

3! prosecution Pre-Trial Brief, paras. 56-58. \ \)\
2 Rutaganda Appeal Judgement, para, 207.

¥ See Muvunyi Appeal Judgment, para. 144; Seromba Appeal Judgement, para. 116; Simba Appeal Judgement,
para 211; Muhimana Appeal Judgement, para. 58; Ntakirutimana Appeal Judgement, para. 258,

¥ Muhimana Appeal Judgement, para. 176.

43
Case No. ICTR-05-88-A 20 October 2010




811/

fundamental similarities, and given the wide ranging scope of the fighting at Kabuye hill, it is

reasonable 10 -conclude that Kalimanzira could have been present at multiple locations,*”

122. The Trial Chamber’s assessment of Wltnesses BBO and BXG was however, more- opaquc
It failed to -specify which parts of Witness BBO 8 evidence, if any, it .considered corroborated,
Nonetheless none-of its findings depended solely on Witness BBO’s testimony, rendering any
errors in this approach immaterial. The Trial Chamber’s cxplanatlon that Witness BXG’s ev1dcnce
was “consistent with the general trend of evidence relating to Kabuye hill”** left unclear whether
the Trial Chamber believed his evidence was corroborated by other Kabuye hill witnesses,
corroboratcd evidence -of other witnesses, or both. Howcv.er, any €rror was ggain immaterial. The
Trial Chamber beheved Wltncss BXG on his own merits regarding the - cvents at the Mukabuga
roadblock, and none of the Trial Chamber’s conclusions concerning events at Kabuye hill dependcd

on corroboration from Witness BXG s tcstlmony.

123. With regard to the evidence of Defence witnesses, the Trial Charnbcr acted within its
discretion in ﬁndlng that their failure to recall seeing Kalimanzira on Kabuye h]ll was not
inconsistent with his. presence there. The Trial Chamber found that the massacre on Kabuye hill
involved thousands of -individuaié battling “over a large landscape and time zspan.‘”aé”’ In this
circumstance, a reasonable trial chamber could certainly conclude that some attackers and victims,

even if present for several days, would not have observed visits by Kalimanzira.

124, The Appeals Chamber considers that the Trial Chamber acted within its discretion in
dlscountmg Kalimanzira’s contention that vehicles could not approach Kabuyc h111 Given that
Prosecution and Defence witnesses both agree that vehicles were used to bring attackers to the
-area,m it was reasonable to find the specifics of their parking location to be a relatively
insignificant issue. The Trial Chamber was also reasonable in finding that the battle raged over a
large area, given witness testimony regarding Tutsis spreading around Kabuye hill itself, and the

multiple hills and valleys where attackers and Tutsis gathered.**

¥ The Appeals Chamber observes that Kalimanzira is incorrect in asserting that the Trial Chamber misattributed
Witness BDC’s testimony to Wimess BCF. As the Trial Chamber noted, Witness BCF testified that Kalimanzira arrived
at the base of Kabuye hill at dusk on 23 April 19594 and remained there after shooting began. See Trial Judgement,
para. 309; T. 5 May 2008 p. 14; T. 12 May 2008 p. 37. See also Trial Judgement, paras. 304-308. By contrast, Witness
BDC testified that Kalimanzira left before -shooting started. Trial Judgement, paras. 300, 301; T. 20 May 2008 p. 29.
The Appeals Chamber notes that there does not appear to be a basis in Witness BCF's testimony for concluding how
Jong Kalimanzira remained at the base of Kabuye hill afier shooting started, but any inaccuracy in the Trial Judgement
g\;arding this issue is immaterial 1o Kalimanzira’s appeal,

Trial Judgement, para. 378,
37 Trial Judgement, para. 387.
38 See Trial Judgement, para. 385. (‘—K M
% See Trial Judgement, paras. 338, 345, 352.
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125. For the foregoing reasons, ‘the Appeals Chamber is not.convinced that the Trial Chamber
matenally erred in its analysis of Kalimanzira’s actlons at Kabuye ‘hill. Accorclmgly, this sub-

ground: of appeal 8 dlsrmssed
6. Conclusion

126. The Appeals Chamber recalls -that it has granted, Judge Pocar d1ssent1ng, Kahmanmra §
appeal w1th regard to the Tnal Chamber s findings in relataon to events at the Kabuye-Glsagara
road, and has upheld the Trial- Chamber s other findings, including - those relatmg to his actions at
the Glsagara marketplace and Kabuye hill. The evidence regardmg these latter incidents
demonstrates that Ka.hmanzua mtended to aid and abet the acts of genomde on Kabuye hill and
'substannally contributed to them Therefore the Trial Chamber’s-error with respect to the events at
Kabuye Gisagara- road did not- result in a miscarriage -of justice. Accordmgly, the Appeals Chamber
dismisses Kahmanmra s ’I’h1rd and Slxth Grounds of Appeal.

T
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F. Alleged Errors Relating to the Bu‘tg_re-fGi_s_ggara .‘Rbadbl_'eek {Ground 7

'127. The Trial Chamber cdnv’ieted "Kalimanzira for instigating' and aidi-ng and abetting genocide
based, in part, on his partlclpatlon in the killin gs at a roadblock on the Butare- -Gisagara road -on or
around 22 April 1994 0 Kahmanmra submits that the Trial Cha:mber erred in convicting him of
this crime.**' In this section, the Appeals Chamber considers whether Kalimanzira had sufficient

notice of this crime to prepare his defence.
128. Paragraph 15 of the Indictment reads:

Between  mid- Apnl and ‘late June 1994, ‘Callixte Kahmanma incited the populauon to erect
roadblocks in order to.eliminate the Tuisi, He ‘was often ;personally present at the roadblocks to
supervise their.operations, Many Tutsi were kl]led at the roadblocks erected on the instructions of
Callixte Kalimanzira and supervised by him,*

125. With regard to this allegation, the Trlal iChamber made a nurnber of findings based

exclusively on the test:lmony of Prosecutlon Wltness BXK, 343 mcludmg

[...] that the Prosecuuon has proven beyond reasonable doubt that, in Apnl 1994, Kahmanzlra
stopped at a- roadblock on the Butare-Gisagara road, asked the :-men manning_the Toadblock ‘why
they did not have weapons and why they-had instructed the Tutsis to sit down instead of killing
them. Kalimanzira then provided a weapon to a.man at the roadblock. Subsequently, Tutsis: at the
roadblock were deprived of their belongmgs and takeén to.a nearby pit, where: they were killed >

130. At trial, Kalimanzira objected ‘to the lack of precision in paragraph 15 of the ,Indlctment.m
The Trial Chamber found that ‘the Indictment was vague with regard to the Butare-Gisagara
roadblock 346 However, it was satisfied that Kalimanzira received adequate nouce ina tlmely, clear,
and con51sl;ent manner through the summary of Witness BXK’s ant1c1pated testimony annexed 1o
the Prosecution Pre-Trial Brief, the witness’s prior statement, and the Prosecution’s opening

statement.>’

131. Kalimanzira submits that the defect in the Indictment was not cured, since information
regarding the factual allegations concemning the Killings at the events at the Butare-Gisagara road,

provided through Witness BXK’s summary, was not included in the body of the Prosecution Pre-

M0 Tral Judgement, paras. 473, 474, 739.

*! Kalimanzira Notice of Appeal, paras. 44-47; Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 342-380.

*2 Emphases omitted. 3

3 rial Judgement, paras. 460-463, 465-474. \ \f\
4 Trial Judgement, para. 473.

5 Trial Judgement, para. 428,

¢ Tridl Judgement, para. 429. Specifically, the Trial Chamber noted that paragraph 15 provides no locations or
specification of the.roadblocks where the criminal acts were allegedly committed and offered a time range spanning two
and a half months. See Trial Judgement, para. 429,

M7 Trial Judgement, para. 432, citing T. 5 May 2008 p. 4.
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Trial Brief.*® Furthermore, he points to the Prosecution’s submissions during a status conference
on 30 April 2008, where it suggested that there was nothing new in the summaries annexed to the
Pre-Trial Brief.* Secondly, he argues that the anticipated testimony of Witness BXK did not
clarify the.rcleva_nt factual al-llcgatidnrs because it referfed 10 two rdadbloc_ks located on the Kabuye-
Gisagara road. 350 Thirdly, Kalimanzira cont.cn.d-s that the Prosecution's opening statement, although
discussing an incident at a roadblock on the Butare-Gisagara road, created confusion by referri-ng to
events at Kabuye hill.””*
132. In addition, Kalimanzira submits that the notice of the charges he was facing was not
providcd in a timely manner anci invokes the :Muhimana Trial Judgement, where a period of four
weeks between the sérvice of the pre-irial brief and the beginning of the trial was not deemed
sufficient to allow the Defence to respond to a new allegation.”*® He submits that he suffered
prejudice as a result of working on the basis of imprecise documehts, which prevented him from
conducting an efficient investigation, and emphasizes that the Pfosecutibn Pre-Trial Brief was
served to him in English .only oh...l't:’) April 2008, and in French only on tﬁé ‘openin'g day of the‘trish,
5 May 2008 ***

133. The Prosecution responds that Kalimanzira has failed to demonstrate any etror on the part of
the Trial Chamber.*>* It notes that the Prosecution Pre-Trial Brief, including the Annex containing
witness summaries, comprised less than 50 pages and Kalimanzira only needed to read through 22
pages of Annex A to identify the witnesses, including Witness BXK, who would testify regarding
the allegations in paragraph 15 of the TIndictment.’®® The Prosecution admits that, dve to an
unintcnt:ibnal error, the annex of its Pre-Trial Brief indicated that Witness BXK would testify to
events at *““two closely located roadblocks on the Kabuye-Gisagara road,”” while it should have
read, in conformity with Witness BXK’s prior statement, ““two closely located road-blocks on the
Butare-Gisagara and Kabuye-Gisagara roads.””>*® Nevertheless, the Prosecution submits that

Witness BXK'’s testimony demonstrated the close proximity between the two roads.*’

48 R alimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 349. He submils, invoking the Niyitegeka and Niakirutimana Appeal Judgements,

that mentioning a fact in a witness summary does not suffice to inform the Defence of the material facts that the

Prosecution intends to prove at trial. See Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 99. See also Kalimanzira Reply Brief,
ara, 28,

L T. 14 June 2010 p. 10, referring to T. 30 April 2008 p. 8.

330 K alimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 351. See also Kalimanzira Reply Brief, para. 27.

3! Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, para, 352. ,

32 Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 101, citing Muhimana Trial Judgement, paras. 470, 472; Kalimanzira Appeal Brief,
ara. 354, .

s Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 109, 112, 355-357. See also Kalimanzira Reply Brief, para. 28. :

3 Prosecution Response Brief, para. 123, -~ \\/\

3% Prosecution Response Brief, para. 128, \

186 prosecution Response Brief, para. 128, citing Defence Exhibit 7 (Statement of 31 October 2007), p. 3.

337 prosecution Response Brief, para. 128, citing T. 9 May 2008 p. 7; T. 1[9] May 2008 pp. 44-47.
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134, The Prosecution submits that, although the misstatement in the Pre-Trial Brief is
unfortunate, it does not justify the reversal of Ka]imanzii'.a’:s -ct’onviction.‘q's8 Additionally, the
Prosecution contends that Kalimanzira has failed to demonstrate that he suffered any material
prejudice. In this regard, the Prosecution first notes that Witness BXK’s prior statement was
disclosed to Kalimanzira on 31 October 2007 and the Pre-Trial Brief was filed on 16 April 2008.%%°
Secondly, it underscores that Kalimanzira, despite enjoying a ten-déy adjournment of proccedings
between Witness BXK's examination-in-chief and his cross-examination, did not raise any
objection based on a lack of clear and consistent notice.*® Thirdly, the Prosecuiion recalls that
Kalimanzira relied on an alibi defence against Witness BXK'’s evidence, which the Trial Chamber
did not accept, and submits that Kalimangira has not attempted to demonstrate how his defence
would have been different if the Prosecution Pre-Trial Bnef had not contained an erroneous

reference to the location of the roadblock. '

135. Bearing in mind the previously articulated principles of notice,** the Appeals Chamber
considers that Kalimanzira could n'ot'ha've known, on the basis of the Indictment alone, that he was .
being charged in .corm'e.c.tion with the killings at the Butare-Gisagara roadblock, Accordingly, the
'Appealé Chamber finds, as the Trial Chamber concluded, that paragraph 15 of 'thn_s Indictment is

defective.

136. As.a preliminary issue, the Appeals Chamber notes that a review of the trial record reveals
that Kalimanzira did not make a contemporaneous objection to Witness BXK’s evidence
concerning the Butare-Gisagara roadblock during the course of his testlmony, and that he objected
only to the lack of specificity in paragraph 15 of the Indictment in his Final Trial Brief. 363 The Trial
Chamber observed that objections based on lack of notice should be specific and timely and that,
where an objection was late, the Trial Chamber would consider whether this shifted the burden onto
the Defence to demonstrate prejudice.364 The Trial Chamber, however, did not expressly consider
the objection untimely. The Appeals Chamber has held that, where a trial chamber has treated a
challenge to an indictment as being adequately raised, the Appeals Chamber should not invoke the
waiver doctrine.’® Furthermore, as discussed below, the Appeals Chamber considers that
Kalimanzira’s apparent confusion as to what incident Witness BXK's evidence related to

‘reasonably explains the failure to make a timely objection to this aspect of Witness BXK's

% Prosecution Response Brief, para. 128.

359 Prosecuuon Response Brief, para. 129, Yy \\J\
% Prosecution Response Brief, para. 129. \

6! . Prosecution Response Brief, para. 131.
% See supra Section IILB {Ground 2: Alleged Errors in Assessing Authority and Influence).

363 Kalimanzira Final Trial Brief, para. 1125. See also Trial Judgement, para. 28.

3% See Trial Judgement, para. 33.

%% Gacumbitsi Appeal Judgement, para. 54. See also Niakirutimana Appea! Judgement, para. 23.
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testimony. Therefore, it falls on the Prosecution to demonstrate that Kalimanzira was not prejudiced

by the defect in the Indictment.*®®

137. The Appeals Chamber turns to the question of whether the Trial Chamniber correctly
- determined that the defect in the Indictment was cured and that Kal_imanz’ifé suffered no prejudice
as a result. On appeal, the Prosecution does not point to any additional filings or oral submissions
‘beyond those identified by the Trial Chamber when considering whether the .defec'gs in the

Indictment were cured.

138. The description of Kalimanzira’s role in the killings at the Butare-Gis_agara roadblock is
contained in the summary of WitneSs BXK’s .énticipated testimony annexed-to the Prosecution Pre-
Trigl Brief,’®” The summary states that Kalimanzira distributed weapons to those persons manning
“two closely located roadblocks on the Kabuye-Gisagara road” and instructed them to kill a large

368

group of Tutsi refugees located there.” The summary indicates that this anticipated evidence

specifically relates to paragraph 15 of the Indictment*®

139. The Appeals Chamber has previo.u_sl-;y held that a summary of an anticipated testimony in an
annex to the Prosecution’s pre-trial brief can, in certain circumstances, cure a defect in an
.indjctment;?'70 The circumstances in this particular case, however, are ,differem‘.,Spéci-ﬁca_lljly, the
A_ppeals."Chamber, Judge Pocar dissenting, finds that three factors undermine the Trial ‘Chamber’s
finding that the defect was cured, especially when considered together: (1) the summary of Witness

- BXK’s anticipated evidence inaccurately describes the location of the incidént; (2) the French
-tra'n-‘slétion of the. Pfosécu:tion Pre—Tl'iai ﬁﬁef was filed only on the first day of trial, four days before
Witness BXK testified; and (3) the Prbsccution indicated shortly before the translation was filed

that the witness summaries annexed to the Pre-Trial Brief contained no new allegations.

140. With respect to the first factor, as Kalimanzira observes, the summary of Witness BXK’s
anticipated testimony contains an inaccurate description of the roadblock’s location, placing it on
the Kabuye-Gisagara road rather than the Butare-Gisagara road. By contrast, Witness BXK’s prior
witness statement accurately summarized his testimony regarding two related incidents at two
nearby roadblocks on the Kabuye-Gisagara and Butare-Gisagara roads.’” The Appeals Chamber

has held that a pre-trial brief and a witness statement, read together, may provide sufficient notice to

NN

36 See Gacumbitsi Appeal Judgement, para. 54.
%7 Prosecution Pre-Trial Brief, Annex A, p. 21.
36 prosecution Pre-Trial Brief, Annex A, p. 21.
3% prosecution Pre-Tria] Brief, Annex A, p. 21.
3 Gacumbitsi Appeal Judgemeni, paras. 57, 58. This approach is consistent with jurisprudence of the ICTY. See
Naletilic and Martinovic Appeal Judgement, para. 45.

3! See Defence Exhibit 7 (Statement of 31 October 2007), p. 3.
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the extent that pre-trial brief provides “unambiguous information.”*’?> However, in the present case,
the Appeals Chamber, Judge Pocar dissenting, considers that the efr_or in the summary of Witness
BXK's anticipated testimony made the Prosecution Pre-Trial Brief unclear, and that its curative

power was thus, at best, questionable.

141. Turning to the second factor, the .Appeals Chamber notes that the Prosecution Pre-Trial
Brief was filed in English on 16 April 2008. The Appeals Chamber recalls that Kalimanzira's lead
counsel, Mr. Arthur V-.érckcn, was hoépita]ized in France on 21 April 2008 -due to an unforeseeable
medical pro‘b‘lem‘.”3 During the status conference of 30 April 2008, Kalimahz’:ira’s co-counsel, Ms.
Anta'Guissé, whose primary working language was French,”™ expressed concbm that the Defence
had not yet received the French version of the Prosecution Pre-Trial Brief in order to discuss with
b7 376

Kalimanzira, who does not speak Englis and prepare for trial

142. In response to this, the Presiding Judge noted that a translation of the "Pros_ecﬁtion Pre-Trial
Brief was expected on 2 May 2008, a Friday, which would allow the weekend to Teview the
document before the ‘opening of the 'trial.w He also stated that the substantive paﬂ of the Pre-Trial
Brief was only 25 pages long and that “the remainder of the document” was related to information
about the witnesses.>”® The reference to the “remainder of the document” éppe’ars to relate to :-.the

annex which contains the summary of the anticipated testimony of the witnesses.

143. The French translation was made available to the Defence only on 5 May 2008, just a few .
hours before the opening 6f the trial,” thus.not providing the prepar-atioﬁ period-anticipated by fhe
Triﬁi .Char.nér.‘lWitnessk BXK appeared four days later on 9 May 2008;38:0 TheAppealsChamber,
Judge Pocar. dissenting, considers that in these circumstances, it is questionable whether the notice
provided by the summary of Witness BXK’s anticipated testimony in the annex of the Prosecution

Pre-Trial Brief was timely, clear, or consistent.

M See Ntakirutimana Appeal Judgement, para. 48 (holding that a witness statement, when taken together with
“unambiguous information” comtained in a pre-trial brief and its annexes may be sufficient to cure a defect in an
indictment), The Appeals Chamber observes that notice provided by a witness statement alone is insufficient to cure the
defect in an indictment. See Niyitegeka Appeal Judgement, para. 197,

313 See supra Section III.A.2(a) (Absence of Kalimanzira’s Lead Counse! during the First Trial Session).

3 goe ICTR, Formulaire IL2, Submitted by Anta Guissé, dated 6 August 2007.

35 Decision on Callixte Kalimanzira’s Motion for an Extension of Time for the Filing of His Respondent’s Brief, 26
ggmbcr 2009, ‘ :

T. 30.April 2008 pp. 7, 9. ] -\u\
317 See T, 30 April 2008 p. 7. Y
387,30 April 2008 p. 7.

3 The Prosecutor v. Callixte Kalimanzira, Case No, ICTR-05-88-1, Mémoire préalable au procés du Procureur, 5 May
2008. The Appeals Chamber observes that the time stamp of the filing was 11.07 a.m. The trial commenced at 2.17 p.m,
later that.day. See The Prosecutor v. Callixte Kalimanzirg, Case No. ICTR-05-88-T, Minutes of Proceedings, 5 May
2008, p.2.

0 See T. 9 May 2008.
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144, As regar_ds the third factor, it is significant that, on the eve of trial, the Prosecution stated
_ that its factual theory was contained only in the body of its Pre-Trial Brief, which does not mention
the incident atr the Butare-Gisagara roadblock. More specifically, while contending that the delay in
the translation of the Prosecution Pre-Trial Brief need not impact the start of the trial on 5 May
2008,%" the Prosecution stated that: | ' '

[...] the pre-trial brief sets out the legal theory and the factual theory of the Prosecution’s case.

The main text, as Your Honour has rightly noted, is niot 50 pages at all. It’s just over 20. Around

six of those rélates {sic] to the factual theory. That would be what :is most initeresting to the

Accused. Certainly counsel is able 1o read those six pages.and explain the factual theory to the

Accused. [...] The more extended part of the pre-trial brief is the witness summaries, Those .are

summaries that:the Prosecution has dene:of what the witness:is except;:.d:.,[si_‘c] 1o testfy to in court,

There is nothing new in those summaries. [...] Hence, the Prosecution cannot see that the absence

of a translation at this point of the pre-trial brief would prevent the proceedings from starting on

5th of May 2008.%*
145. The “main text”>® of the Prosecution Pre-Trial Brief refers to only one specific incident in
the Gisagara area of Ndora Commune at the Jaguar roadblock, which is specifically pleaded in
. ﬁaragrap‘h 21 of the Indictment® This is significant because it fjél-lOW-'s""'frém Kalimanzira’s
submiissions at trial that he considered Witness BXK’s testimony as relevant to this distinct
allegation. Both the Kalimanzira Pre-Trial and Final Trial Briefs refer to Witness BXK as giving
evidence related to the Jaguar roadbleck but do not suggest that he- gave evidence with respect to
the Bul:are-‘Gisagaraal_.roadbl:ac.ak.”85 The approach adopted by Kalimanzira’s briefs' illustrates the
prejudice suffered by Kalimanzira as a result of unclear notice, demonstrating that he prepared his
défenqe against Witness BXK’s claims based on the assumption that they related to an incident at

the Jaguar roadblock.

146. Kalimanzira’s confusion is not surprising because a review of both the evidence and witness

statements related to these events reveals a certain degree of overlap. In particular, Witness BXK

386
f,

testified that the Butare-Gisagara roadblock was near, although not within sight o the Gisagara

church near which, according to other witnesses, the Jaguar roadblock was located.”® In both

8T 30 April 2008 p. 8.

2 1,30 April 2008 p. 8 (emphasis added).

33T 30 April 2008 p. 8. ,

3% prosecution Pre-Trial Brief, para. 62 (“Thirdly, the accused Kalimanzira distributed weapons to the persons manning
the roadblocks for the purpose of killing Tutsi. The most notorious example is the so-called ‘Jaguar’ roadblock in
Gisagara, Ndora commune. The accused Kalimanzira provided fire arms to at least one of the persons manning the
roadblock and directed that they should be used to kill Tutsi. This direction-was subsequently carried out.”).

5 0.0 Kalimanzira Pre-Trial Brief, Annex 1, p, 26 (“[Witness AU 37] hails from N[dora] commune, G[isagara)
secteur. He knew Callixte K[alimanzira]. He was present at the roadblock called ‘Jaguar’ everyday and has a good
knowledge of its functioning and weaponry. He specifically witnessed the handing of a gun to persons manning the
roadblock and will indicate the provider and recipient. Accordingly, he will contradict the testimonies of Witnesses
BXK, BCN, and BCK.”); Kalimanzira Final Trial Brief, paras, 240-244, 250-253, 260-262 {describing inconsistencie
between Witness BXK s testimony and other Prosecution witnesses who testified about the Jaguar roadblock).

*6 Trjal Judgement, paras. 460, 465. /‘i

%7 Trial Judgement, paras. 538, 539, 542.
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incidents, Kalimanzira provided a gun to a person manning the roadblock and urged the killing of
Tutsis.>®® The evidence related to both events references several key individuals who manned both

roadblocks.*®

147. It is true, as the Tnal Chamber noted, -that Kalimanzira rccogniz_éd in his Final Trial Brief
that the_Butare-‘Gisagara roadblock was at a different location than the Jaguar roadb_lock.390
Nonetheless, it does not follow from Kalimanzira’s submissions as a whqie'mat he was fully aware
that he was facing two separate allegations. In his ‘Final Trial Brief the discussion of Witness
BXK’s evidence is ‘focuscd. on inconsistencies between that evidence and other Prosecution
witnesses’ testimony related to the Jaguar roadblock. Notably, Kalimanzira’s confusion as to the
Prosecution’s case éppcars to have carried over until at least ther"ﬁling of his initial Notice of
Appeal, in w’hi_ch he. continued challenging Witness BXK'’s evidence by comparing it to the
evidence of Prosecution witnesses who testified about the events at the Jaguar roadblock.*' The
Appeals Chamber, Judge Pocar dissenting, considers that this confusion is a _slirong indication that
Kalim'anzira was _prejﬁdiced by the lack of clarity conécm.ing the .cha.r'gé.s‘ agaihst him, and that he

did not receive clear and consistent notice.

148. ‘The Appeals Chamber is mindful that the fProsec:utioh’s opening statement, delivered four
days before Witness BXK testified, clearly distinguished between the events at the Jaguar
roadblock and the one located on the Butare-Gisagara road.*** However, in the circumstances of
this case, the Appeals Chamber, Judge Pocar dissenting, is not convinced that the opening statement
alone was sufficient to-eliminate the confusion described above. Considered .i-ndiyidually, the
inaccurate description of the location of the roadblock in the annex of the Pre-Trial Brief, the
comments by the Trial Chamber and the Prosecution at the status conference about the Prosecution
Pre-Trial Brief, the short time-period-between the filing of the French translation of the Prosecution.
Pre-Trial Brief and Witness BXK’s testimony, and the confusion exhibited by Kalimanzira’'s
Defence team are not necessarily sufficient to undermine Kalimanzira’s conviction. Considered
together however, these factors demonstrate that Kalimanzira failed to receive sufficient notice that

he was facing charges related to the Butare-Gisagara roadblock, rendering his conviction unsafe.

3 Compare Trial Judgement, para. 473, with Trial Judgement, para. 560.

) Compare Trial Judgement, para. 461, with Trial Judgement, paras. 538, 540, 542. See also Defence Exhibit 7E
(Statement of 31 Qctober 2007), p. 3.

** Trial Judgement, para. 465.

¥ Notice of Appeal, 21 July 2009, para. 71.

¥ T 5 May 2008 p. 4 (“The Accused Kalimanzira also distributed weapons to people manning the roadblocks to
enable them to kill Tutsi, One example is the so-called ‘Jaguar’ roadblock in Gisagara, Ndora commune where he gave
a firearm to the leader of those manning the roadblock with the specific instruction that it was going to be used to kill
Tutsi. He also-spurred on the killing of Tutsi at the roadblock situated on the Butare-Gisagara road.in Ndora commune
in connection with the Kabuye hill massacres. Once again, the Accused Kalimanzira instructed the people manning the
roadblock to kill Tutsi and distributed a firearm to facilitate such killings.™). /'( \\t\
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149, In sum, the Aljpeals Chamber agrees with the Trial Chamber that paragraph 15 of the
Indictment is defective in relation to Kalimanzira’s role in the events at the Butare-Gisagara
roadblock. The Appeals Chamber, Judge Pocar dissenting, finds however that the su'bs.equent notice
of this allegation was not timely, 'ciéé_r,_, or consistent, and resulted in prejudice to '.Kaii-manzira.
Accordingly, the App.ea‘ls Chamber, Judge Pocar disscnting, finds that the Trial Chamber erred in
law by finding that this defect was cured and accordingly in judging Kalimanzira guilty on the basis

of his actions at the Butare-Gisagara roadblock.

‘150 For the foregoing reasons, the Appeals‘ Chainber, Judge Pocar dissenting, grants
Kalimanzira’s Seventh Ground - of Appeal. Accordingly, the Appeals Chamber reverses
Kalimanzira’s conviction for instigating and aiding and abetting genocide on this basis. It is
- therefore unnecessary to address Kalimanzira's femaihiﬁg argumenfs cdnceming the assessment of

the evidence.
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£3. Alleged Errors Relating to the Jaguar and

151. The Trial Chamber convicted Kalimanzira for diréct and public incitement to commit
genocide ‘based, in parf, on his conduct at the Jaguar roadblock, which was located near the
Gisagara Catholic Church in Butafe l?’.re-’fecmre,a'93 and the K-ajjfanaina roadblock in Rémera Sector,
Muganza Commune.*®* Tn particular, the Trial 'Chamber found that, in mjd.dle to late April 1994,
Kalimanzira handed a rifle to Marcel Ntirusekanwa at the Jaguar roadblock “in the presence of
seVerai others who were also manning the roadblock ... and) told everyone present that the gun
was to be used to kill Tutsis.”**® The 'Tria-ll Chamber further found that, in late April 1994,
Kalimanzira exhorted those manning the Kajyanama roadblock to carry arms “to ‘defend’
themselves against “the enemy’ who might pass through™ and that he “was understood to be callmg

for the killing of Tutsis.’ 3% According to the Trial Judgement, Kahmanz1ra underscored this call by

slapping and forc1b1y taking awaya person who was not carrying a weapon. 97

152, In connectlon with his Elghth and Ninth Grounds of Appeal, Kalimanzira first submits that,

in convicting him based on these 1ncldents the Trial Chamber erred in 1aw and in fact in ﬁndlng

_that his conduct at these sites amounted to direct and public mc1tement t0 commit genomde %8

Kallmanzura asserts that the Tribunal’s jurisprudence requires a very large number of individuals to

be exposed to a-call to commit genocide before it can be qualified as direct and public incitement,**

Specrﬁcally,.he refers to the Appeal Judgement in the Nahimana et al. case as support for his
assertion that instructions given to persons manning a roadblock eann_ot constitute public
‘incitement:*® He maintains that the numiber of individuals present at the Jaguar and Kajyénﬁma
roadblocks when the respective acts in question allegedl_y took place was limited, that his words
‘were only directed at those manning the roadblocks, and that his conviction for direct and public

incitement thus constituted an error of law.*! In addition, he raises a number of arguments
g

20

3 Trial Judgement, paras. 562, 739. The exact location of the Jaguar roadblock was pleaded in the Indictment and
follows from the evidence, See Trial Judgement, paras. 536, 538, 539, 542.
3% Trial Judgement, paras. 565, 589, 739.
% Trigl Tudgement, para. 560. See also Trial Judgement, paras. 561, 562.
3% Trial Judgement, para, 589, See aiso Trial Judgement, para. 588.
3% Trial Judgement, paras. 587, 589.
¥ Ralimanzira Notice of Appeal, paras. 50, 57; Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 382-386, 428-432. See also
Kalimanzira Réply Brief, paras. 31-38, 41.
¥ Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 383, 384, See also Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 429; Kalimanzira Reply Brief,
aras. 32-38.
fuw Kalimanzira Appeal Bricf, para. 384, referring to Nahimana et al. Appeal Judgemeni, para. 862. See also
Kalimanzire Appeal Brief, para. 432.

O ¥ alimanzira Appeal Brief, paras, 385, 428, 430, 431. See also Kalimanzira Reply Brief, paras. 31, 34, 36, 38.
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concerning the Trial Chamber’s assessment .of the evidence underpinning his conviction for these

events.*?

153. The Prosecution responds that the Trial -‘Chember did Aot err in convicting Kalimanzira
based on his actions at the Jaguar and ’Kejyaﬁama roadblocks.*® It asserts that Kalimanzira raises
for the first time on appeal the question of What minimum audience size is required to eaﬁsfy the
public element of the crime of incitement to commit genocide, and contends that the Appeals
Chamber should su_rmnarily. dismiss the argument on this basis.“* In the alternative, the Prosecution
contends that “the Appeals Chamber should not ‘make '-[.s'ic'] any general principle of international
law which exempts those manning & roadblock from .qualifying as the pubhc for the crime of
direct and public incitement to comnut genoc1de 05 Tt submits that the Tribunal’s _]unsprudence
provides no support for Kalimanzira's assertions, contending that Kalimanzira has misconstrued the

-406

statement in the Nahimana et al. Appeal Judgement and taken it out of context. The Prosecution

adds that the Nahzmana et al passage is obiter dictum and should not be accorded weight in the

present case. 7

154. The Appeals -Chamber is ‘not convinced by the 'Preseeuﬁon’s submission that -Kali—fnanzira‘s
argument .should be dismissed surnmarlly because it was raised for the first time on appeal To
summarily dismiss the argument on procedural grounds could lead to a senous miscarriage of
‘justice. Noting that the Prosecution .reSponded- to Kalimanzira’s argurne.nts, the Appeals Chamber

finds it to be in the interests of justice to consider Kalimanzira’s arguments on the merits.

155. The _Appeals;Chamber recalls that a person may be found guilty of direct and public
incitermnent to commit genocide, pursuant to Article 2(3)(c) of the Statute, if he or she directly and
publicly incited the commission of genocide (actu& reus) and had the intent to directly and publicly
incite others to commit genocide (mens rea).**® Applying these principles to Jean-Bosco
Barayagwiza’s conviction in the Nahimana et al. case for direct and public incitement to commit
genocide, the Appeals Chamber determined that supervising a specific group of individuals
manning a roadblock does not constitute public incitement to comnit genocide, explaining that:

the supervision of roadblocks cannot form the basis for the Appellant’s conviction for direct and
public incitement to commit genccide; while such supervision could be regarded as instigation to ’,( \\’\

4% Ralimanzira Notice of Appeal, paras. 51:54, 58-60; Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 387-424, 433-477;
Kahmanzu.'a Reply Brief, paras. 39, 40.
Prosccuuon Response Brief, paras. 142-189, 190-212.
Prosenunon Response Brief, paras. 144, 145. See also Prosecution Response Brief, paras. 192, 193.
Prosecuuon Response Brief, para. 150. See also Prosecution Response Brief, para. 193.
% Prosecution Response Brief, paras, 147-149. See also Prosecution Response Brief, para. 193.
47 prosecution Response Brief, para. 148,
“® See Nahimana et al. Appeal Judgemem para, 677.
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commit genocide, it .cannot constitute public inciteinent, since only the individuals manning the
roadblocks wauld have been the recipients of the message and not the general :public.‘m '

156. _'Com:rary ,tO'ﬂle.=Prqsecu_tiion’.s se_ggestioh, the approach adopted by the Appeals Chamber in
the Nahimana et al. Judgement is in accordance with relevant Tribunal jurisprudence and other
sources of interpretation, including World War II judgements and the travaux pre_’para;cjires of the
Genocide Convention. .More.speciﬁcaﬂ-y., the Appeals Chamber observes that, with the excepﬁon of
the Kalimanzira Trial .Jud_gernent,_ all convictions before the Tribunal for direct and public
incitement to commit geﬁecide involve ‘speeehes made to large, fully public assemblies, messages
dlssemmated by the media, and communications made through a public address sysiem over a
broad pubhc area.”' These conv1ct10ns mvolved audiences which wete by definition much broader
than ‘the _groups of individuals manning the Jaguar and Kajyanama roadblocks, who “formed

Kalimanzira’s audience,

157. The Tnbunal’s Junsprudence is consistent with that of the Internauonal Military Tribunal at

Nuremberg The latter consuiered 1n01tement to, inter alia, murder and extenmnation, ‘nvolving

% Nahimana et al. Appea] Judgement para. 862 (ernphasxs added). The Appeals: Chamber notes, Tor-clarity, that the
Nahamana et-dal. Appeals Iudgement was originally written in French. The above-quoted excerpt, in French, reads * En -
particulier, des actesde supervision des barrages ne sauraient fonder la condamnation de-l’ Appelant parincitation
directe et pubhque 4 commetire ‘le :génocide; si cette supervision pouvait étre cansaderée comme une -incitation &
- commettre e génocideelle-ne paurrait pas-constituer une.incitation ‘publique’ Bulsgue.seules. lesuzzersonneslenam les
barrqges auraient-été les destinataires du message et .non le public au sens large”. Therefore in-order to reflect more'
falthfully Atticle 2(3)(c) of the Statute, a more accurate English translation of the excerpt should have- read: “while such
su ervision-could be regarded as incitement to commit genocide, it cannot constitute public incitement [...].” '

A teview of the jurisprudence is-illustrative of what acts have constituted pubhc incitement at the Tribunal, In a first
group of cases, inciting speeches at:public meetings to “crowds” of people — ranging froin “over 100” 1o approxrmately
5,000 individuals - were found to censtitute public incitement. The Akayesy Trial Chamber found that a speech in a
public ‘place to “a crowd of over 100 people” urging the population o eliminate the “enemy” constituted direct and
public incitement. See Akayesu Trial Judgement, paras. 672-674. The conviction ‘was upheld on appeal. See Akayesu
Appeal Judgement, para, 238, p. 143. The Niyitegeka Trial Chamber determined, inter alia, that by holding a public
meeting attended by approximatély 5,000 people at which he “urgled] attackers to work™ — “working™ serving.as a
synonym for ‘killing Tutsis - Eliézer Niyitegeka incurred individual criminal responsibility for “inciting attackers to
cause the death and serious bodlly and mental harm of Tulsi refugees [...} as provided in Article 2(3)(c)” of the Statute.
See Niyitegeka Trial Judgement, paras. 257, 437. See also Niyitegeka Trial Judgement, paras. 432-436. Niyitegeka's
conviction was upheld on appeal. See Nivitegeka Apperl Judgement, para. 270. The Kajelijeli Trial Chamber found
Juvénal Kajelijeli guilty of. direct and public inciternent because he had “ineited the crowd” to exterminate the Tutsis.
See Kajelijeli Tridl Judgement, paras. 856-860. The conviction was upheld on appeal. See Kajelijeli Appeal Judgement,
paras. 105, 133, A second group of cases reflects that the dissemination of inciting messages via the media also
constituted pubhe ‘incitement. The Ruggiy Tridl Chamiber held that “messages [...] broadcastfed] in a media forum and
to memibers df the ‘general public” constituted public incitement, See Ruggiu Trial Jud, gement, para, 17. No appeal was
filed, The Nahimana et al, Trial Chamber determined that messages: dissemingied via radio or the press constituted
public incitement. See Nahimana et al. Tridl Judgement, paras. 1031-1034, 1036-1038. The findings were upheld in
relevant part on ‘appeal. See Nahimana et al. Appeal Judgement, paras. 758, 775. ‘Finally, the Bikindi Tridl Chamber
held Simon. Bikindi responsible for direct and public incitement based on its determination that he had used a public
address system to disseminate messages inciting the commission of genocide when travelling on a public road to .
address the population. Bikindi Trial Judgement, paras. 422-424. These findings were upheld on appeal. See Bikindi

Appeal Judgement, paras. 30, 86. C\\M
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widely circulated speeches and articles, rather than speeches to relatively small and closed

groups.*!!

158. Moreover, the Appeals Chamﬁér recalls that the language of Article 2 of the Tribunal's
Statute tracks the language of the Genocide Convention. A review of the travaux préparatoires of
the' Genocide Convention confirms that public incitement tor genocide pertains to mass
¢ommunication~s. The travaux préparatoires indicate that the Sixth Conmn't_té',e chose to spe.ci_ﬁcally
revise the definition of génocide in order :to Temove private incitement, understood as more subtle
forms of communication such as conversations, private meetings, or messages,*'? from its ambit.*"?
ln-stead, the crime was :hxmted to “direct .and pubhc incitement to commit gen001de, understood as

incitément ‘in public specches or in thc press, through the radio, the cinema or other ways of

_reachmg the pubhc a4

159. Having established that the relevant holding of the Nahimana et al. Apﬁea‘l Judgement is.
consistent with the Tribunal’s jurisprudence and other relevant precedeni:s, the Appeals Chamber
turns to consider whether the precedent set in the Nahimana et al. case is applicable ‘to
“Kalimanzira's convictions. A review of ‘the former reveals that the underl&iﬁg factual basis of
Barayagwiza’s initial ‘conviction ‘by Trial Chamber I of the Tribunal involved speaking 1o
Amﬂmamen at roadblocks from his-vehicle a.nd telling them to kill Tutsis and others without certam
party membership cards. A5 1 addmon t.he key witness for this -event gave evidence that
Barayagwiza supervised .three'roadbloc-‘ks in the area and heard that Barayagw1-za'was-responslble
416

for ensuring that Tutsis .were being. killed at them.*’ The facts underlying - Kalimanzira's

convictions are similar to those in the Nahimana et al. Appeal Judgement. As was the case for

“"' JUDGMENT OF THE INTERNATIONAL MILITARY TRIBUNAL FOR THE TRIAL OF GERMAN MAIOR WAR CRIMINALS
(1946), reprinted in THE TRIAL OF GERMAN MAJOR 'WAR CRIMINALS BY THE INTERNATIONAL MILITARY TRIBUNAL
SITTING AT NUREMBERG GERMANY, pp. 101, 102 (2001) (*JUDGMENT OF THE INTERNATIONAL MILITARY TRIBUNAL')
(finding Julius Streicher guilty of crimes against humanity for “incitement to murder and extermination” because “[iln
‘his speeches and articles, week after week, month after month, he infected the Gerrnan mind with the virus of anti-
Semitism, and incited the German people to active persecution [...]. Twenty-three different articles [...] were produced
in-evidence, in which extermination ‘root and branch’ was preached [...]. Such was the poison Streicher injected into
the minds of thousands of Germans which caused them to follow the National Socialists policy of Jewish persecution
and extermination.”); JUDGMENT OF THE INTERNATIONAL MILITARY TRIBUNAL, p. 128 (describing incitement in the
context of “originating or formulating propaganda campaigns” with respect to Hans Fritzsche).
412 | THE GENOCIDE CONVENTION: THE TRAVAUX PREPARATOIRES, p. 986 (Hirad Abtahi & Philippa Webb, eds. 2008)
(“GBENOCIDE CONVENTION"),
413 2 GENOCIDE CONVENTION, pp. 1549, 1552.
414 1 GENOCIDE CONVENTION, p. 986. The Appeals Chamber notes that the definition adopted by the Sixth Committee
resembled that originally proposed by the Secretariat of the United Nations (which was altered for some time to include
private incitement to genocide, until this alteration was struck by the Sixth Committee). The proposal of the Secretariat
differentiated acts such as ingtructions from officidls to subordinates or heads of organizations to members from “direct
public incitement.” These acts were considered as “preparatory acts” and covered by other sections of the convention.
See 1 GENOCIDE CONVENTION, p. 238,

% Nahimana et al, Trial Judgement, paras. 718, 719, See also The Prosecutor v. Ferdinand Nahimana et al., Case No.
ICTR-99-52-T, T. 28 August 2001 pp. 21-26; The Prosecutor v. Ferdinand Naohimana et al., Case No, ICTR-99-52-T,

T. 29 August 2001 pp. 33, 43, 4. ./‘(
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Barayagwiza, Kalimanzira’s actions did not involve any form of mass communication such as a
publjd speech. Instead, the nature of his presence and exchanges with those at the roadblocks are
more in line with a “conversation” which is consistent with the definition of private incitement
found in the travaux préparatoires of the Genocide Convention. Thus it is clear that the Nahimana
et al. Appeal Judgemerit is directly applicable to Kalimanzira’s convictions with respect to the

Jaguar and Kajyanama roadblocks.

160. Accordingly, the Appeals Chamber finds that the Trial Chamber erred in law by not fully
~ considering and applying the Tribunal’s jurisprudenée with respect to direct and public incitement
to genocide. In view -of this 4err0r,, the A_ppea.]s Chamber will consider the relevant evidence, to
determine whether Kalimanzira can be held responsible for direct and pubﬁc incitement to commit
gcnocide.m
161. With resiaect to the Jaguar ro-ad-blodk, the Trial Chamber found that Ka]imanzifa “handed a
tifle to ‘Marcel Ntirusekanwa in the presence -of several others who were also --mtinmimg the
roadb]oc’k ” that ‘hé *“told everyone present that the .8un was to be used to kill Tutsis,” and tha't “the
gun and the mstruct]ons were disseminated to the group. 418 Based on these findings, it appcars that
Kalimanzira’'s mstruc’uons were intended only for those manning the roadblock not the general
public.*'? In this respect, the Appeals Chamber notes -that none of the Prosecution witnesses was
certain of the number of -persoﬁs who were present when Kalimanzira passed through the Jaguar
roadblock. There is :no indication in the record that anyone other than those manning the-roadeOCk
- was present. Thus, Jthe_Prosec..utiQn did not demonstrate that Kalimanzira po§$§33¢d the mens rea for
direct and public incitement to commit genocide at the Jaguar roadblock. The Appeals Chéi’nber
therefore finds that Kalimanzira’s conviction for direct and public incitement to commit genocide at

the Jaguar roadblock should be reversed.

162. With respect to the Kajyanama roadblock, the Trial Chamber found that Kalimanzira
“exhort[ed] those manning the {...] roadblock” and that “[t}he incitement was disseminated in a
public place [...] to an indeterminate group of people — those present to man [the roadblock] and
anyone else watching or listening.”**" These findings are different from those at the Jaguar
roadblock in that the Trial Chamber expressly found that members of the general public, other than

those manning the roadblock, were present and that Kalimanzira intended to incite them as well.

416, Nammana et al, Trial Judgement, para. 718.
" See supra pare. 8.
418 ., Trial Judgement, paras. 560, S61.
"® There are ‘indications that manning a roadblock was a duty of male Hutus in the area. See T. 26 June 2008 p. 9;
T. 19 November 2008 p. 2.
%20 Trial Judgement, para. 589,
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163. The Appeals Chamber, however, is not satisfied that the.e'v_id'ence reasonably supports the
Trial Chamber's 'ﬁndings concerning Ka‘]jmanzifa’s intent to incite anyone other than those
| manning the Ka_]yanarna roadblock First, in interpreting the meanmg of Kalimanzira’s statements,
the Trial Chamber-gave part::cular weight to ‘Witness BBB's testimony, as this witness was manning
the roadblock and was thus ‘among those whom' Kalimanzira was allegedly inciting. "2 Witness -
BBB testified that “Kalimanzira instructed those manning [the roadblock] to prevent any Tutsis [...]
from passing through, and that they should be Xilled.”** The Appeals Chamber considers that this
evidence suggests that Kalimanzira's exhortations were addressed to individuals manning the

Kajyanama roadblock.

164, This conclusion is reinforced by the testimony of Witness BXH, a member of the general
public, who was present during the incident, and watched it from a short distance.**® It is clear from
t'hé context of Witness BXH’s account of this event that he did not believe that he was included in
Ka]imanzira”s chastisement of individuals' ‘manning the roadblock, since he was not part of :t-hat
group. hod Notably, other than Witness BXH, who was not manning the roadblock, there is no
indication as to the number of other .members of the general publlc who were present dunng the
incident. s In this context, the Appeals Chamber finds that the Prosecutlon did not prove that
Kalimanzira posscssed the mens rea for direct and public incitement to commit genocide ‘at the

Kajyanama roadblock.

165. Accordingly, the Appeals Chamber grants Kalimanzira’s Eighth and Ninth Grounds of
Appeal and reverses the convictions for direct -and public ‘incitement based -on the events at the
Jaguar and Kajyanama roadblocks. The Appeals Chamber, therefore, need not discuss
Kalimanzira’s remaining arguments concerning the Trial Chamber’s assessment of the underlying

evidence relating to these grounds.

2! Trig) Judgement, para. 588. ' < \\f\
2 rig] Judgement, para. 588. \
2T, 22 May 2008 pp. 41, 52.
4 See T. 22 May 2008 p. 45 (“A. [...] He spoke to the persons who were standing at the roadblock, and he said, ‘You,
who are at this roadblock and are not armed, what will you do if the enemy comes? With what will you defend
xourselves?"') See also T. 22 May 2008 p. 42,

3 Witness BXH’s evidence only expressly referred to the presence at the roadblock of persons who were manning it,
including the man thet Kalimanzira forcibly took away, although this is not properly reflected in the Trial Judgement.
Witness BBB, however, testified that the man grabbed by Kalimanzira was a passer-by and referred to the presence of
other persons who were looking from a distance..See Trial Judgement, para. 571; T. 22 May 2008 p. 42 (Witness BXH)
(“A. [...] {H]e was in the company of the persons who were manning the roadblock, and amongst those persons some
were armed and others were not. [...] [H]e managed to-grab one of those persons who was not.armed and [...] forced
him to enter the vehicle and left with him.™); T. 22 May 2008 pp. 48- 51; T. 16 June 2008 p. 33; T. 16 June 2008 p. 35
(Witness BBB) (Q. [...] Apart from the people who were at the roadblock, those you have referred to, did any other
persons come up to the roadblock? A. No, no one else came to the roadblock. Other persons were looking from a
distance.”); T. 16 June 2008 pp. 7, 8, 33-35; Trial Judgement, para, 568.
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H ed mm Reiaﬁn to the Nvabisagara Football Field (Gr

.166. The Trial Chamber conthed Kahmanzrra of d1rect and pubhc incitement to comimit
) Agenomde based, in part, ‘on a speech he gave at the Nyablsagara football field in Kibayi Commune,
Butare Prefecture, in late May or early June 1994 426 T reaching this conclusion, the Trial: ‘Chariber
relied -excluswely on the uncorroborated testimony of Pro.s.eeutlon W1.tness BCZ* SeVeral.
'Defence witnesses attested o attending a similar meet1ng, 1nvolv1ng Alphonse Ntemryayo and
Tharcisse Muvuny1 but noted that Kalimanzira was not present * The Trial Chamber conc’luded :

that Witness BCZ and the Defence witnesses were referring to d1fferent meetings.**

167 Ka]n'nanz;lra submits that the Trlal Cha.mber erred int law and in fact by conv1ct1ng him of

430

direct and public 1ncrtement for this event In this section, the Appeals C‘hamber cons1ders

whether the Tnal Cha.mber erred in its assessment of the ev1dence

168, _ The Trial Charnber based Kalrmanzrra s conviction for his role in the. meetmg at the
Nyab1sagara football field on the testimony of a single- eye-wrtness Wltness BCZ bt The Trtal |
‘Charnber noted. that W1tness BCZ was an accomplice to Kahrnanzrra as, followmg the rneet:mg, he
partlc1pated in the search for additional Tutsis to kill, and in the destrucuon of hornes 42 It also
addressed .a number -of inconsistencies between W1t.ness BCZ’s testlmony and pnor statements to
Tribunal investigators and Rwandan 1nvest1-gators.‘”'3 The Trial Chamber four_ld, however, that be
was a credible and reliable witness,*** |
169.° 'Kalirn’anz’i'ra 'cal‘le't‘l five ‘withesses to Tefure thness BCZ’s 'tesftirrrcnry;435 ‘Bach of :these
witnesses testlﬁed that Kalimanzira did not attend a meetmg like that described by Wltness BCZ.**
Instead, the witnesses referred to a meeting attended by Al_phonse Nteziryayo .and Tharcisse
Muvun’yi around 24 May 1994.**" Witness BCZ also recalled this meeting, but indicated that the

one involving Kalimanzira occurred around a week afterwards,*® In assessing the Defence

witnesses, the Trial Chamber concluded that in some cases their respective accounts “support{ed]

426 Trial Judgement, paras. 613, 614, 739,
“27 Trial. Judgement, paras. 592-595, 608-614.
428 Trial Judgement, para. 609.

429 Tna] Judgomerit, para 610. \_k
% g slimanizira Nofice of Appeal, paras. 61-66; Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 478-531. (

431 Trial Judgement, paras. 592-595, 608-614.

432 Trial Judgement, para. 608.

433 Trial Judgemenit, para. 611.

4 Trial Tudgement, para. 612.

435 Prial Judgement, paras. 596-605.

43 Trial Judgement, paras. 597, 599, 601, 602, 604, 609, 610.
437 Trial Judgement, paras. 597, 599, 600, 602, 609.

38 Trial Judgement, para. 609.
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the inference that m’ofe than c')he'm'eeting took ‘place. 439 -Con-sequently, the Trial ‘Chamber was
satlsﬁed that the Proseeut:lon and Defence w1tnesses testified to dlfferent meetlngs and that “the

exlstence of one does not: preclude the other »Ad0

170. Kahmanzu'a submits that the Trial Chamber erred in 1ts assessment of Witness BCZ’ :
testtmony S n partlcular he contends that, given Witness BCZ's status as an- accompllce the Tnal
Chamber erred in not requmng addltlonal corroboration, especially given the witness’s numerous
tncentlves to provide false testimony, the hearsay nature of parts-of his staternents and testtmony,
his inaccurate description of Kahr_nanzua, and the contradictions among his testimony, prior
statements, and Defence -evidence, ** Kaiimanz—ira also contends that the Trial -Chamber erred in
ﬁndmg that the exhortations he allegedly made at the Nyabisagara footbal] field fit into a broader

__pattern as it-cited the testlmony of witnesses it had deemed non-credible,**

171. Kalimanzira further asserts that the Trial Chamber erred in 1ts assessment of the’ Defence' .'
=ev1dence “ partlcular he contends 4hat, given the formal nature. of the meetmg, whmh involved
the local bourgmestre and its location near the commune office, the Trial Chamber falled 0
._adequately explain why it reJected the ewdence of Defence Wltnesses KBF BTH AKK, and
_ Innocent Mukurahnda, who testlﬁed that a meeting featuring Kahmanzxra did not take place I
addition, Kalimanzira argues that Defence witnesses’ testimony shows that thére was only one
public meeting in the area around ‘the relevant time, and that this meetmg featured Alphonse‘
Nteziryayo.and Tharcisse Muvunyl but not Kalimanzira.**® He asserts that th1s Defence evidence is
.fully consistent with Witness BCZ's initial statements to the Trial Chamber which referred to only
one meeting and did not implicate Kalimanzira, and suggests that Witness BCZ s final testlmony,.

“7 Kalimanzira also points to several flaws in the

which did implicate Kalimanzira, is unreliable.
Trial Chamber’s analysis of Defence evidence, and suggests that these errors underlie the Trial
Chamber’s conclusion that Defence evidence was consistent with more than one public meeting

being held in the area.**® Finally, Kalimanaira claims that the Trial Chamber improperly discounted

T\
439 + Trial Judgement, para. 610. \
Tnal Judgement, para. 610. '
“! Kilimanzira Appeal Brief, paras, 485-514.
2 Kalimanzira AppealBrief, paras. 485-511. See also Kalimanzira Reply Brief, paras. 43-45.
*3 Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 512-514.
“4 K dlimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 515-531,
45 Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 517, 520.
46 Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 517, 518,
*7 Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 518, referring to Defence Exhibit 33 (Statement of 19 October 1999), Defence
Exhibtt 34 (Statement of 2 February 2000).
#* Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 520-524.
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the testimony of Wltness KXL, which conﬂlcted with Witness BCZ's description of the violence

following the meetin g

17ﬁ. The Prosecution responds that ‘;K&iimanziré mere'l-y repeats submissions made at trial.**° In
any event, the Proseeutiori asserts that the Trial Chamber did not err in its as_sessment of Wimess
BCZ’s evidence.”s" It contends that the Trial Chamber correctly considered Witness BCZ’s status as
an accomplice and applied the necessary caution in assessing his credibility A2 further contends
that the Trial ‘Chamber properly exercised its discretion in considering and weighing alleged
inconsistencies in Witness BCZ's evidence.*® The Prosecution also main'_ta.ins that Kalimanzira’s
ehallenges regarding Witness BCZ’s ability to identify :Kalimanz-ira ignore “the wealth ef 1...]
identification evidence'” before the Trial Chéunber.454 Finally, the Prosecution asserts that the Trial
Chamber reasonably rejected Kalimanzira’s argument that only  one meetmg occurred at the
Nyab1sagara football ﬁeld and submits that Kalimanzira has not demonstrated ‘any basis upon

which the findings should be _1'_ev1s1ted.”4.55

173. The Appeals Chamber recalls that “accomplice witnesses may have m_otive's or incentives to
implicate the accﬁsed person before the Tribunal” and that “a ?Chaﬁiber; when Weig_‘hin-_g the
probative value of such evidence, is bound to carefully consider Vtheitotal'ity of the circumstances 4n_
which it was tendered.”® The Trial Cha.rh‘ber noted the requirement to :approa'ch' accomf)lice
witnesses with ,caution.m It also examined the circumstances sunrdun'd-ing Witness BCZ’s

testimony and his possible motives to falsely incriminate Kalimanzira,**®

| 174.  With Tespect te this iatter issue, the Trial Chamber noted that, althoﬁgh W“itr‘less BCZ had
been released at the time of his testimony, his evidence reflected statements that he gave while he
was imprisc‘_)ned.459 It thus acknowledged the possibility that his evidence may have been influenced
by the desire to minimize his own responsibility.460 However, the Trial Chamber decided, “after
careful consideration,” that *no such motive can be demonstrated.”*®' It reasoned that, “[h]lad he

intended to falsely accuse Kalimanzira, his testimony and allegations would likely have been more

49 K alimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 525-531.

%50 prosecution Response Brief, paras. 224, 235.

45! prosecution Responge Brief, paras, 225-234. \\3\
452 prosecution Response Brief, paras. 225-227. (\ .
%53 progecution Responsc Brief, paras, 231-233.

434 Prosecution Response Brief, para. 230.

455 progecution Response Brief, paras. 236, 237.

456 See Muvunyi Appeal Judgement, para. 128,

*7 Trial Judgement, para. 72.

8 Trial Judgement, paras. 608, 612.
9 Trial Judgement, para. 608. It follows from Witness BCZ’s evidence that he was released at the end of January 2008,

which is just approximately five months prior to his testimony in this case. See T. 24 June 2008 p. 52.
480 Trial Judgement, para. 608.
46! Trial Judgement, para. 608.
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acc:usator},r.”462 It also situated Witness BCZ’s account of the contents of Kalimanzira's speech
within a “pattern of conduct” illustrated by the testimonies of other Prosecution witnesses who had
also testified that “Kalimanzira called on people to desfroy dead Tutsis’ homes and plant trees and
grass in:their ].j.'l'clc-'_s..'_""‘f’-3 | _ | | '

175. The Appeals Chamber observes that the Trial Chamber’s reasoning regarding the pattern of
Kalimanzi:ra’s conduct in purportedly giving similar speeches on other occasions is problematic.
The Trial Chamber noted incidents descri‘b’éd by Witnesses AZM, AZH, and AZC,*** In other parts
of the Trial Judgement, howe\ller, the Trial C-ham‘ber either found that Kalimanzira lacked notice of
the ‘underlying | allegation. (Witness AZM)*®
insufficiently reliable to sustain a conviction (Witnesées AZH and AZC).**® The Trial Chamber

or expressly concluded that the evidence was

should have more clearly explained why it found the testimony of these witnesses sufficiently
- reliable to establish a pattern of conduct, but insufficient to accept in-their own right. The Appeals
Cham’-belf considers, however, that it is unclear how much weight the Trial Chamber accorded to this

evidence in assessing Witness BCZ’s testimony.*"’

176. The Appeals 'C-ha.Iﬁber further notes that while Witness BCZ could have impliéated
Kalimanzira in additional criminal activity or for directly participating in killings, his failure to.do
so does not permit any firm conclusions regarding the reliability- of the witness’s testimony.
Nonetheless, the Appeals Chamber considers that the assessment of witness credibility is primarily
a matter for the Trial Chamber. The Trial Chamber fully considered Witness BCZ’s possible
motives.£o lie, and in the context of the facts before it, acted within its discretion in determining that

he had no such rriot;ives.

177. Turning to the assessment of the Defence witnesses, the Appeals Chamber notes that the
Trial Chamber did not discount their credibility with regard to the Nyabisagara football field
meeting.*™ Instead, the Trial Chamber found that their evidence was consonant with more than one

public meeting taking place at the Nyabisagara football field.*®® The Trial Chamber explained that:

*6 Prial Judgcmerit, para. 612,

43 Trinl Judgement, para, 612, cifing T, 17 June 2008 p. 21 (Wimess AZM), T. 25 June 2008 pp. 43, 44 (Witness AZC),
T. 23 June 2008 pp. 11, 12 (Witness AZH).

454 Trial Judgement, para. 612, citing T. 17 June 2008 p. 21 (Witness AZM), T. 25 June 2008 pp. 43, 44 (Witness AZC),
T. 23.June 2008 pp. 11, 12 (Witness AZH). ’

465 Prin] Judgement, para. 221.

46 Trial Tudgement, paras. 403-405, 408, 421, 423, 445,

“T The Appeals -Chamber notes ‘the Trial Chamber’s formulation that the converging testimony of other witnesses
“might suggest a pattern of conduct or mode of operation.” See Trial Judgement, para. 612.

4% The Appeals Chamber notes, however, that the Trial Chamber did reise concerns about the credibility of Witness
Mukuralinda in connection with another incident. See Trial Judgement, para. 289.

¥ Trial Judgement, para. 610 (internal citations omitted).
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the evidence of Defence witnesses Supports the inference that more than one meeting took place,
[Witness] KBF admitted to the possibility that there may have been other meetings in Kibayi
commune. The Defence Pre-Trial Brief indicated that [Witness] AKK was expected 1o testify to
two meetings at the Nyablsagara football field, however, when giving her testimony on the siand,

she insisted that she was only aware of one meefing, [Witness] Mukuralinda®s statement that he
was not aware of any other ‘security’ meeting in Kibayi commune was amended under cross-

examination to include a second one, but “restricted’ :in nature. No questions were put to [Witness]

BTH on the possibility of other meetings. Because TWitness] KXL was in hiding for most of April
and May 1994, the Chamber considers that his testimony does not cast reasonable doubt on when

and how Bimenyimana and Hategekimana’s homes were destroyed. [.. ] For these reasons, the
Defence evidence does little to contradict BCZ's evidence.” 470

178. -However in reviewing “the Trial Chamber’s ana]ysis of the evidence, the Appeals Chamber
cons1ders that the Trial Cha.mber misconstrued the testJmonles of Wltnesses AKK, Mukura.hnda
and KXL and failed to sufﬁ01ently explam why it did not consider it relevant that none of the

Defence witnesses was informed of the second meeting involving Kalimanzira,

179.  Witness AKK, who lived in close proximity to the football field and could oversee large
portlons of the field from her house, tesuﬁed that she attended only one meet.mg and ‘was firm in

assertmg that no other meetmgs could have taken place on the football field afterwards 4 When

confronted with the fact that her will-say statement, annexed to the Kahmanz1ra Pre-Trial Brief#"

indic_ated that she would testify on two meetings at the football field, Witness AKK denied_ha.v.ing
made such a statement. " Nonetheless, the Trial-Chamber relied on the will-say statement provided
‘tl)y Kalimanzira to conclude that Witness AKK’s testimony did not undermine the evidence
‘provided by Witness BCZ.#"* |

180, The.Appeals Chamber recalls that Rule 90(A) of the Rules provides-that witnesses shall be

heard by the trial chamber. Prior out-of-court witness statements are normally relevant only as

475

necessary for the trial chamber to assess credibility.*” Witness statements used for this purpose

normally bear the witness’s signature or some other indicator that their content reflects what the

d 476

witness said.” A will-say statement, however, differs from a typical statement given by a witness.

In the practice of the Tribunal, will-say statements are primarily communications from one party to

another and the trial chamber concerning aspects of a witness’s anticipated testimony that were not

A
* Trial Judgement, para, 610. ()Y \

L, 26 November 2008 pp. 42, 43; T. 26 November 2008 pp. 52, 53, 56.
* The Appeals Chamber noles that the summary of Witness AKK’s anlicipated testimony is contained on page 18 in
the annex to the Kalimanzira Pre-Trial Brief entitied “Summary of Will-Say Statements of Defence Witnesses for
Callixte Kalimanzira.” This page.is omitted from the version of the Kalimanzira Pre-Trial Brief filed in the trial record.
However, the relevani portion of the English translation of the will-say statement was quoted by the Prosecution during
the ctoss-examination of Witness AKK. See T. .26 November 2008 p. 56. The original French version of the
Kalimanzira Pre-Trial Brief contains the full text of the will-say statement. See The Prosecutor v. Callixte Kalimanzira,
Case No, ICTR-05-88-1, Mémoire préalable & la présentatton des moyens de preuve & décharge, annexe, pp. 8, 9..
413 Sge T. 26 November 2008 pp. 56-53.

174 See Trial Judgement, para. 610,

" simba Appeal Judgement, para. 103, quoting Akayesu Appeal Judgement, paras, 134, 135,

476 Eor example, some statements are transcriptions of interviews or are signed by a domestic judicial authority.
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mentioned in previously-disclosed witness statemen'ts.477_ Will-eay statements are A-gerllerally
communicated by counsel upon learning of new details during the preparation of a witness for
examination,"”* and are not necessarily acknowledged by the witness. Therefore, will-say
staternents have no probattve value except to the extent that the witness conﬁrms their content, In
the instant. case, Wltness AKK explicitly repudlated the content of the unsigned will-say statement
the contents of which were allegedly unknown to'her.*”® Given the lack of any explanatlo_n for why
it was nonetheless acceptable to rely on the unsigned and repudiated Ewill-sa-y statement, the Appeals
Chamber‘ﬁnds that the Trial ’Chamber erred in 1aw i_n.--reliying on the Will-:say stétement to discredit

aspects of Witness AKK’s testimony.

181. Wltness Mukurahnda ‘who worked as an accountant in. K1bay1 Commune in 1994 testified
-that only one meetmg took ‘place in the commune, specifically on 24 May 1994.4° He noted that he
“Iwas] not aware of any other meeting that took place in Kibayi commune and added that

“personally, [he did] not believe that there were [.. ] any other such meetmgs held in the Kibayi
commune. »481 con51dermg the w1tness s testimony, the Trial Chamber empha51zed his admission
under cross-examination that a second meeting — although “restricted” in nature — took place “
However, a review of Witness Mukuralinda’s testlmony shows that it cannot reasonably support. the
proposmon fhat another large—scale public meeting occurred in the area, as the Trial Chamber -

intimated. In particular, the witness stated that:

‘there are other meetings which we could [...] call “restricted”. And these are meetings where you -
‘have only @ handfil of people who are worlung in a commune who meet together to discuss
securitymattars. It i§ possible that.I-participated.in-ene-such meeting. Byt this was :a.meeting. that
brought together commune ~ or workers and the bourgmestre. Members ‘of the population-are not
invited to such meetings. This is.an official meeting. So'1 cannot deny that one such meeting took
place. But what was important for me ‘was talking about meenngs to which the population was
invited. And one such meeting was the meeting of the 24" of May.

182. The Appeals Chamber recalls that Witness BCZ testified that several hundred members of
the local population attended the meeting in which Kalimanzira participated.m This stands in stark
- contrast to Witness Mukuralinda’s above-quoted description of other official meetings at the
commune office involving “a handful of people,” who worked with the bourgmestre. Aceordingly,
the Appeals Chamber considers that no reasonable trial chamber could have concluded that Witness

Mukuralinda’s admission of the existence of other restricted meetings supported the inference that

4Tl See, e.g., The Prosecutor v. Aloys Simba, Case No. ICTR-01-76-T, Decision on the Admissibility of Evidence of
Witness KDD, 1 November 2004 (“Simba Admissibility of Evidence Decision”), paras. 9-11.

1 Simba.Admissibility of Evidence Decisien, para. 9.

479 See T. 26 Noveniber 2008 pp. 55-58. (‘ , \-\
*0 Trial Judgement, para. 602. \

81 T 3 Deceniber 2008 p. 7. .

82 Trjal Judgement, para. 610,

483 T, 3 Decemtber 2008 p. 26 (emphasis added).
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more than one large public meeting occurred at the Nyabisagara football field during the relevant

time-period.

1‘8’3. Witness KXL. gave- eV1dence about the destruction -of Vincent Bnnenyrmana s and :Charles
Hategekimana’s homes in April 1994, 5 Witness BCZ, however, stated that the houses were
destroyed after Kalimanzira’ s speech at the football field in late May or early June 1994.**¢ The
Trial Chamber did not accept Witness KXL's testlmony because the witness claimed to have been
in hiding for most of April: and May 1994. 487, ‘Given the clear contrachcnon between the evidence of
W1tnesses KXL and BCZ conceming the destmchon of the homes in question, -the Appeals
Chamber is concerned by the Trial Cha.mber 5 farlure to address Witness KXL’s explanatlcm that he
w1tnessed the destructron even though he was in h1d1n g because he could see the- houses from his
place of refuge. 8 This concern is heightened when the Appeals Chamber con51ders that Witness
KX provided mgmﬁcant detail as to how the houses were destroyed. 49 Under these circumstances,
the Trial Chamber erred in not sufﬁcnently explalmng why it did not accept Wltness KXL §

'test:lrnony regardmg the destmcuon of the homes.*®

184 Frnally, although a trial’ chamber need not always articulate its reasomng in detaﬂ A9 the
Appeals Chamber Judge Pocar dissenting, is not sahsﬁed ‘that the TnaI Chamber sufﬁcrently
'addressed Kalimanzira’s arguments concermng the mode of convocatlon for the various alleged
meetings at Nyabisagara football field. 2 Witnesses AKK, BTH, KBF, Mukuralinda, and KXL all
either attended the meeting in late May 1994 in their official capacity (Wltness KBF)493 or had
. _leamed ofr_the:.r_nce.lgl_ng: through official channels, erth_er directly from Bourgmestre Kajyambere
(Witnesses Mukuralinda and BTH),*** from the conseiller of their respective sectors (Witness

A‘KK),"495 or from a policeman (Witness KXL).* Witness BCZ testified that the meeting in which

48 Trid] Judgement, para. 595. See also Trial Judgement, para. 592.
5 Trial Judgement, para. 605.
46 6o Trial Judgement, paras. 592, 595.
*7 Trial Judgement, para. 610:
48 T_24 November 2008 pp. 42, 43.
4% T 24 November.2008 pp. 42, 43.
40 The Appeals Chamber recalls that a “Trial Chamber is bound to take into account inconsistencies and any
explanations offered in respect of them when weighing the probative value of the evidence.” Muhimana Appeal
Judgement, para. 135 (emphasis added).
91 Srmba Appeal Judgement, para. 152,

2 See Kalimanzira Final Trial Brief, para. 1074.
493 Tria] Judgement, para, 600. \\/\
44 Trial Judgement, paras. 599, 602; T. 25 November 2008 p, 7 (Witness BTH). K{
495 Trial Judgement, para. 596.
4 Trigl Judgement, para, 604. The Appeals Chamber notes that this procedure of convocation is consistent with
evidence provided by Defence Witness AM122 concerning the mechanism by which public meetings were usually
convened. See T. 19 November 2008 p, 41-(“Q. [...] When a bourgmestre wanted to convene or summon members of
the population to a public meeting, how did he proceed? A. When he had to convene a meel‘.mg he would send the
conseillers of the secteurs to talk to the responsables of the cellules, and the responsables would, in turn refer, to the -
talk to the nyumbakumi, the people in charge of ten houses — households. And, hence, the population was informed.
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Kalimanzira allegedly participated was also convened by Bourgmesire Kajyambere and that the

local population had been invited.*’

185. The Defence witnesses did not hear about any meeting involving Kalimanzira, In mahy :
circumstances such -evidehcc is 'prOpeﬂy aééofded .m'inima'l probative value.*® :Howéver, the
circumstances in this case are different because many of the Defence 'WimeBSES had closc-t'i.es to the
local authorities or lived in close proximity to the Sit¢.499 Therefo;c, these witnesses ‘would have
been well positioned to know if such a meeting oocurreﬂ. The Trial Chamber did not discount their
evidence on any bases other than those noted above. In this context, the Trial Chamber erre_d'_i-n not
explaining more fully why it _‘-bel-ievéd the Defence witnesses would not have heard of :a second

meeting, and thus why their testimony did not cast reasonable doubt on Witness BCZ’s evidence.

186. The Appeals Chamber underscores that trial chambers _cnjoy' a broad discretion in assessing
evidence, to 'which deference is owed. HoWever_, in “these specific circumstances, :th‘é Trial
Chaniber’s anialy sis;"o‘f Defence evidence rested on a-hum’ber-ﬂf legal errors -aﬁd_-:assmnens-swhioh
had no reasonable Lb__asis in the record. The Appeals Chamber, Judge Pocar dissénﬁng,-’ﬁ-ndg that
considered together, these legal and factual errors render Kalimanzira’s conviction for the events at
Nyabisagara football field unsafe. The Appeals Chamber, Judge Pocar dissent_in;g; finds that no
reasonable Trial Chamber could have relied on Witness B’CZ’S accomplice evidence of
Kalimanzira’s participat'i.on in the meeting .at the Nyabisagara football field in tight of the
cbmpeting Defence evidence, ab'sent further corroborative evidence or additional ‘ahalysis

‘demonstrating that the Defence witnesses were not credible.

187. For the foregoing reasons, the Appeals Chamber, Judge Pocar dissenting, grants
Kalimanzira’s Tenth Ground of Appéal. The Appeals Chamber accordingly reverses Kalimanzira’s
conviction for direct and public incitémen.t to cémmit genocide at the Nyabisagara football field.
The Appeals Chamber, therefore, need not discuss Kalimanzira’s remaining argurients concerning

the Trial Chamber’s assessment of notice relating to this ground.

T

Also — communiqués-could also be issued at the level of the commune office. Q. Could the bourgmestre convene a

meeting of the population without the.conseillers of the secteur or the responsables of cellule being informed? A. That

was not possible ‘becavse in order to convene a meeting the bourgmestre had to go through his assistants and aides,
. those ‘helping him in his duty. Namely, the conseillers of secteur and responsable of cellule. That way the entire

opulation will ‘be informed and aware™),

%" Trial Judgement, para. 592. _

498 cee, e.g., Muhimana Appeal Judgement, paras. 19, 211; Nchamihigo Appeal Judgement, para. 373.

99 Soe T, 26 November 2008 pp. 42, 43 (Wimess AKK); T. 26 November 2008 pp. 52, 53 (Witness AKK); Trial

Judgement, para. 602 (Witness Mukuralinda); T. 17 November 2008 pp. 12, 13 (Witness KBF); T. 25 November 2008

pp- 3, 7 (Witness BTH). _
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L. Alleged Errors Relating to the Gisagara Marketplace (Ma: LE—v.en't (Ground 11

188. The Trial Chamber convicted Kalimanzira for direct and public incitement to ¢ommit
genocide based, in part,-on his actions during a meeting at the Gisagara marketplace at-the end of -_
May 1994 In partlcular, the Trial Chamber found that Kalimanzira criticized members of the
crowd for being unarmed and rewarded a man who was carrymg a weapon. 50! 1t also found that he
told those present that “they had not completely defeated the enemy” and “to kill young Tutsi glrls
who had been forced into marriages because they could cause problems 302 ‘Based ‘on these
statements, the Trial Chamber concluded that Kalimanzira intended to- incite the crowd to carry
weapons in order 1o kill Tutsi civilians.””® The Trial Chamber based 1ts ﬁndmgs on the

uncorroborated evidence of Prosecution W]tness BDK.*™

189, Kalimanzira submlts that the Trial Chamber erred in law and in fact in convnchng him for
direct and public incitement to commit genocide based on this incident.*®® In this section, the
- Appeals -Chamber con31ders ‘whether the Trial Chamber’s ﬁndmgs are oupported by credtble

-ewdence

190. thne'ss BDK was the sole Prosecution witness to give evidence on the meeting at the
‘Giéagara marketplace at the end of May 1994.% The Trial Chamber found her evidence concerning
this event “reliable and credible.”"” In reaching tms finding, it recalled that 1t had not accepted her
evidence about Kalimanzira’s participation in an earlier meeting in April 1994 at the home of Ftdele

508
1.

Uw1zeye related to the attack at Kabuye hil However, the Trial Chamber con81dered that its

doubts about the witness’s test1mony regarding the earlier meetlng did not “reflect upon [Wltness]
BDK’s general credibility.”*® The Trial Chamber also considered various a.lleged inconsistencies in.
Witness BDK’s evidence and concluded that they were explained by the passage of time or were

not in fact inconsistencies.s10

191. Kalimanzira asserts that the Trial Chamber erred in failing to address Witness BDKs ability
to identify him.’"' He maintains that Witness AX88 tebutted Witness BDK’s testimony regarding -

the first occasion on which the latter clatmed to have seen Kalimanzira prior to his speech at the

5% Trial Judgement, paras. 728, 729, 739, \é\

300  Trial Judgement, para. 728. /i
% Trial Judgement, para. 728. _

5% Trial Judgement, para. 729.

3% Trial Judgement, paras. 719-722, 724-729.

305 R alimanzira Notice of Appeal, paras. 67-71; Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 532-568.

3% Trial Judgement, paras. 719-722.

%7 Trial Judgement, para, 727.

38 Trial Judgement, para. 727, referring to Trial Judgement, paras. 388-391.

59 Trial Judgement, para. 727.

51° Trial Judgement, paras, 724-726.
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Gisagara marketplace.’'> He further notes that the Trial Chamber declined to rely on Witness

BDK's testlmony regardlng the second of these prior S1ght1ngs and failed to account for her
difficulties in 1dent1fy1ng Kaltma.nzrra in the courtroom.”™ He concludes that the Trial Chamber
should have treated W]tness BDK'’s testimony ‘as if she had never met Kalimanzira prior to the
events in question.”’® Kalimanzira also contends that as Witness BDK arrived at the Gisagara
marketplace after he allegedl;y began speaking, she did not hear him being introduced, and thus was

not in a position to identify him.**¢

192. Kalimanzira further asserts that as the Trial Chamiber found Witness BDK less than fully
credible in its analysis of the events leading up to the massacre at Kabuye hill, it should not have
~accepted her testimony regarding events at Gisagara marketplace without corroboration.”"
Kalimanzira also ma:intains that .the Trial Chamber erred in not considering more fully the
contradictions within Witness BDK s testimony, why she attended 't.he meeting and when she left,

and her role as a frequent witness in Gacaca trials.”"® More broadly, Kalimanzira suggests that the
Trial Chamber should have explalned more fu]ly why it acceptcd Witness BDK s entlre testnnony, |

given its unlikely nature 319

193. The Prosecution responds that the Trial Chamber correctly assessed Witness BDK’s
identification evidence concerning Kalimanzira and the alleged mconsrstencws in her evidence,
In parucular, the Prosecunon submits that Kalimanzira already raised thes_e issues at trial and should

321 The Prosecution recalls that-a trial chamber is

not be permitted to merely repeat them on appeal.
net required to refer to every piece of evidence in its judgement.’** The Prosecution ‘further '
contends that the Trial Chamber’s acceptance of Witness BDK's evidence was reasonable since it
found her credible, she had seen Kalimanzira at least three times at close range, her identification of
Kalimanzira at the Gisagara marketplace was not made under difficult conditions, and she provided |
a physical description of him and identified him in court.”* The Prosecution arguee that the Trial

Chamber only declined to rely on Witness BDK in relation to the meeting in April 1994 at Fidele

512 ¥ glimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 542, 543.

513 Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 544.

$14 Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 547, 548, Kalimanzira Reply Brief, paras. 47, 48.
313 R alimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 541, 545.

518 Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 546.

17 Ralimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 550-557.

518 g dlimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 559-567.

519 galimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 559-561.

520 prosecution Response Brief, paras. 247-263.

52! prosecution Response Brief, paras. 249, 250, 258, 261,
522 progecution Response Brief, para: 251.

333 Prosecution Response Brisf, paras. 252-255.

S Kplimanzira Appeal Brief, paras. 538-549. See also Kalimanzira Reply Brief, paras. 47, 48. (\ w
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Uwiyeze's home because it was directly contradicted by Witness AX88. 524 In the Prosecution’s

view, the same concems do not exist with respect to the incident at the Gisagara marketplace

194. The Prosecution further subrnits that it was within the Trial Chamber’s discretion to accept
part of Witness BDK'’s evidence even though it questioned other parts of it 3% Fi-ria]ly, the
Prosec_ution contends that the Trial Chamber fully considered Kalimanzira’s arguments related to
various alleged inconsistencies at trial and correctly determined that they did not impact Witness

BDK's credibility.527

195, The Trial Chamber d1d not " discuss the basis on which it accepted Witness BDK’s
identification of Kalimanzira during the meeting at the Gisagara marketplace Thus, it failed to
analyze Witness BDK’s testimony regarding her prior encournters with Kalimanzira, or the
competing evidence from Witness AX88, who testified that the two occasions on which Witness
BDK claimed to have seen Kalimanzira prior to the Gisagara marketplace meeting never took
place.5? The Appeals Chantber ecalls that, though a trial chamber has the obligation to provide a
reasoned opinion, it is not reqtlired to articulate its reasoning in detail.’” Aditionally., the fact that
certain evidence has not been referred to in the Trial Judgement does not mean that it was not taken
into account in the Trial Chamber’s assessment.” The Appeals Chamber considers that “[t]here is
a presumptlon that a Trial Cha.mber has evaluated all the evidence presented to it, as long as there is
no indication that the Trial Chamber completely disregarded any particular piece of evidence. »33l
However, this presumption may be rebutted “when evidence which is clearly relevant to the
findings is.not addressed by the Trial Chamber’s reasoning.”** |

196. A review of Witness BDK’s evidence reveals that her basis for identifying Kalimanzira at
the Gisagara marketplace was of limited probative value and relied on hearsay evidence. According
to her testimony, she saw him for the first time at the home of Fidele Uwizeye in the early 1990s
“long before the genocide.”>* At the time, the witness did not know Kalimanzira so her husband

identified Kalimanzira to her.’* The witness provided no significant details about this brief

5% prosecution Response Brief, paras. 254, 257. /< \5\

52% prosecution Response Brief, para. 257.
526 pragecution Response Brief, para. 260.
527 prosccution Response Brief, paras. 262, 263,
328 T 19 November 2008 p. 22.
529 Simba Appeal Judgement, para. 152.
* Simba Appeal Judgement, para. 152.
3 palilovié Appeal Judgement, para. 121, See also Kvocka et al. Appeal Judgement, para. 23.
53 Kvodka et al. Appeal Tudgement, para. 23.
5337, 20 May 2008 p. 47. See also T, 21 May 2008 pp. 9, 10.
53 20 May 2008 p. 46 (“A. When I knew him for the first time, I had met him at [Fidéle Uwizeye's] house, and it
was one afternoon. Since I did not know him at the time, I asked who he was, and I was told that it was a certain
Callixte Kalimanzira who lived in Kigali and he had come to visit Fidele. Q. Who told you that he was a certain Callixie
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encounter,”> and she knew nothing else about him other than that her husband said that

Kalimanzira worked in Kigali.’*®

197.  Witness BDK saw Kalimanzira a second time at ‘Uwizeye’s 'home at the end of April

1994.%7 She recognized Kalimanzira .pri'r.naljily based on her prior encounter with him as well as her

husband’s .cc_m'ﬁrmation of Kalimangzira’s identity.”®® The Trial Chamber -observcd that Witness

BDK’s testimony 'fq.garding this ‘occasion was directly contradicted by Defence Witness AX88.%
In aéscssin_g th_e -tWo witnesses’ cyide’nce, the Trial Chamber observed, inter alia, that “their
testimonies diverge -éo drastically on this point [...] thét one of them must be lying, if not botb.’”séo
The Trial Chamber c'onclﬁded that Witness BDK’s uncorroborated'-cvidcnce.fc_oncemin-g her second
sighting of Kalimanzira at the end of April 1994 was “insufficiently reliable to prove the allegations

[...] beyond reasonable doubt.”**

198.  Other than these two prior incidents, there appears to be no other'basis in Witness BDK’s
testimony to support her conterttion fhat the person she saw at the Gisagara marketplace was in fact

‘Kalimanzira.”* In particular, there is no indication from her tes-t'irnc'm:y :about the meeting '_tha‘t

Kalimanzira was introduced or referred 10 ‘himself by name or that she confirmed his identity with

any other person.

199. The Appeals Chamber recalls that caution is warranted before basing convictions on hearsay

_.evidcnce.543 It is unclear from the Trial Judgement to what extent such caution was applied.

Kalimanzira that lived in Kigali? Who gave you that information? A. It was my ‘husband.”). See aiso T. 21 May 2008
10. ‘

Bs T. 21 May 2008 p. 10 (“Q. When he came to Fidzle Uwizeye's house, were you present in Fidele Uwizeye's house?
A, When I got to Fidele Uwizeye’s house, I found Mr. Callixte Kalimanzira there. Q. Was there anybody accompanying

him on that day? A.No, there was no one accompanying him. Q. Did you find him sitting in the living room, and did
you join the group? How did it go? A. I got into the living toom, 1 greeted him as a visitor. I did not stay in the living
room. 1 spoke to Fidale Uwizeye's wife. T wanted something from that family. She told me where I.could get what I
wanted. She showed me the spot and I went and got what I wanted. Q. And was your husband present in the living room
on that day? A. Yes, he was there with him.”). : :

536 T, 20 May 2008 p. 47 (“Q. What else did you know about Kalimanzira other than he worked in Kigali? A. I knew
nothing else about Mr. Kalimanzira.”).

$31T, 20 May 2008 pp. 47, 49-53; T. 21 May 2008 pp. 10, 14. See also Trial Judgement, para. 332.

53 T 20 May 2008 pp. 52, 53; T. 21 May 2008 p. 14. \J\
5% Trial Judgement, para. 388, (ﬁ '
540 Trigl Judgement, para. 389.

$4! Trigl Judgement, para. 391.

%42 The Appeals Chamber notes Kalimanzira’s submission that Witness BDK could not initially ideritify Kalimanzira in
court when asked to do so by the Prosecutor, but only recognized him shortly after the close of her examination-in-chief
when the Pregiding Judge stated that she would be cross-examined by Kalimanzira's co-counsel, At that point, the
witness correctly identified Kalimanzira as seatéd next to his co-counsel. See Kalimanzira Appeal Brief, para. 547,
T. 20 May 2008 pp. 59, 60. The Prosecution responds that Witncss BDK gave a reasonable explanation of her initial
failure to identify Kalimanzira, claiming that his face had been hidden from her. See Prosecution Response Brief,
para. 255. The Appeals Chamber recalls that in-court identifications carry very limiled probative value, See Kamuhanda
APpca] Judgement, para. 243.

%41 Gee supra Section IILE.2 (Alleged Errors in the Trial Chamber’s Consideration of Witnesses' Credibility and
Provision of Identification Evidence). '
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Moreover, the Appeals Chamber notes the Trial Chamber’s uncertamty as to Witness BDK’s
veracity with respect to one of two occasions where she claimed to ‘have identified Kalimanzira.
Under these circumstances, the Appeals Chamber, Judge Pocar dlssentmg, con31ders that the Tnal
Chamber should have provided a clearer explanatlon of its reasons for acceptmg portions bf
~ Witness BDK's testlmony addressing identification, The Appeals: Chamber, Judge Pocar dlssentmg,

finds that its failure to do so constituted an error of law.

200. In view of‘t'he Trial Chamber’s legal error, the Appeals Chamber, .Jttdge Pocar dissenting,
‘will consider the -relei.rant evidence to determine whether Kalimanzira can be held responsible for

direct and public incitement based on Witness BDK’s testimony.*** Takin g into account aﬂ'relevant

factual findings of the Trial Chamber as well es the trial record, the Appeals Chamber is especially

concerned by the finding that Witness BDK may have been lying aboﬁt one of the occasions when
| she claims to have seen Kalimanzira prior to the May meeting in the Gisagara marketplace. The

latter finding also creates doubt as to the rehab1hty of Witness BDK’s test1mony w1th regard to the

other occasion where she identified Kahmanmra * which involved very similar c1rcumstances 40
leen the uncertainty regarding the reliability of Witness BDK’s identification -evidence, the
Appeals Chamber considers that Witness BDK’s identification of Kaltmanzira ‘has not Vbeen

established beyond a reasonable doubt.

201.  In sum, the Appeals Chamber, Judge Pocar dissen‘ting,-cbnsiders that 'given ‘Witness BDK's
~ reliance on ‘hearsay evidence to identify Kalimangira, the Tnal Chamber erred -in law by not
 providing additional -explanation befere relying ‘on her uncerreborated testlmony Assessmg the |
relevant factual findings on their face, the Appeals Chamber Judge Pocar dlssentmg, is not
" convinced beyond a reasonable doubt that WlmCSS BDK was in a posmon to identify Kalimanzira,
and thus holds that his conviction with respect to the May meeting at the Gisagara marketplace is

unséfe,

202. For the foregoing reasons, the Appeals Chamber, Judge Pocar dissenting, grants
Kalimanzira’s Eleventh Ground of Appeal and reverses his conviction for direct and public
incitement to commit genocide based on the meeting at the Gisagara marketplace. As a result, the

Appeals Chamber does not address any of Kalimanzira’s remaining arguments under this ground of

appeal. | /\ \5\

544 See supra para. 8.

3T, 19 November 2008 p. 22.
M8 Cf Muvunyi. Appeal Judgement, paras, 130, 131 (finding that the Trial Chamber erred in not applying a similar
degree of caution to one aspect of a witness's evidence where it had previously rejected his testimony based on

generally applicable concerns).
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IV. APPEAL OF THE PROSECUTION

A. Alleged Errors Relating to the Form of Criminal Responsibility (Groond 1)

203; The Trial Chamber convicted Kélim'anzira for instigating and .aiding and abetting genocide
based on -his participation in the ki]l’irigs at the Butare—Girsé,ga.ra roadblock on or around
22 April 1994 and for aiding and abetting the crime of genocide based on his participation in the
massacres of Tutsi refagees on Kabuye hill on 23 April 1994.°*" The Prosecution submits that the
Trial Chamber erred by not concluding, based on the evidence it :acéeptcd, that with respect to both
events, Kalimanzira ordér_cd and committed the crime of ge_:_nocidc.5‘:”5 The -Prosecutibn-rcguests thai
the.A-ppedls Chamber enter a conviction on this_'basit_; and increase Kalimanzira’s sentence to life

imprisorment.>*® Kalimanzira responds that the Prosecution’s appeal should be dismissed.>

204, In connection with K.alimanzira’é Seventh Ground of Appeal, the Appeals Chamber, Judge -
Pocar dissenting, reversed his gconVicﬁon.'bascd on the events at the Butare-Gisagara wroa'dbkobk.m
C;)nsequently, the Appeals Chamber need not address this aspect of the Prosecution’s appeal. In
this section, the Appea‘ls ‘Chamber considers two principal questions relating to Ka:ﬁmahiira’s :
‘conv1ct10n based on events at Kabuye hill: (1) whether the Tnal Chamber failed to- asscss
Kalimanzira’s conduct based on ordering and cormmttmg, and (2) whether the Trial Chamber. erred
by not convicting Kalimanzira on the basis of these forms of res_pons1.b111ty with respect to his

actions at Kabuye hill.

1. Alleged Failure to Make Finidings on Modes of Liability Other Than Aiding and Abetting

205. The Prosecution submits that the Trial Chamber “ignored” ordering or committing in
making its findings on Kalimanzira’s responsibility even though these forms of responsibility were

clearly pleaded under Count 1 (genocide) in the Indictment.*”

206. A review of the Trial Judgement reflects that the Trial Chamber was expressly aware that
Count 1 (genocide). pleaded all modes of participation under Article 6(1) of the Statute, including
ordering and committing.>> The Trial Chamber also highlighted the specific allegation that

Kalimanzira used his position of authority to incite and order persons under his authority to commit

204

547 Trial Judgement, paras. 392, 393, 474, 739.

548 progecution Notice of Appeal, paras. 1-11; Prosecution Appeal Brief, paras. 4, 28-73.

9 progecution Notice of Appeal, paras. 12-14; Prosecution Appeal Brief, paras, 74-76

5% R alimanzira’s Response. Brief, patas. 8, 10, 11, 16.

%! See supra Section IILF (Ground 7: Alleged Errors Relating to the Butare-Gisagara Roadblock).
552 prosecution Appeal Brief, paras. 30, 37. See also Prosecuuon Appeal Brief, paras. 38; 58.

352 Trial Judgement, para. 160.
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genocide.”® In addition, the Trial Chamber explained the legal elements of cach form of

responsibility in detail.**

207. Bearing this in mind, the Appesls Chamber is satisfied that, in determining Kalimanzira’s
form of responsibility, the Trial Chamber implicitly considered all _fdrms of liability pleaded in the
Indictment. The Appeals iCh_a.mbér can identify no error in the Trial Chamber’s decision to only
- explicitly discuss the form of responsibility it concluded was most appropriate. Accordingly, the

Prosecution has not shown that the Trial Chamber erred in this respect.

2. Alleged Error

s Relatin; toﬁKa]i'mmz'ira’s Conviction for Aiding and Abetting Genocide at

Kabuye Hill

208. In relation to Kalimanzira’s conviction for aiding and abetting genocide at Kabuyc hill,>*
the Trial Chamber found that, on 23 April 1994, he was present at the Gisagara marketplace when
Sub-Prefect Donnmque Ntawukulilyayo instructed Tutsis there to seek refuge at Kabuye hill. 357
Accordmg to the Trial Chamber this offered tacit approval of and gave credence to the sub—
_prefect s false assurances of safety 558 That same day, Kalimanzira was found to have told Tutsis on
the Kabuye -Gisagara road to go to Kabuye hill, promising them safety.”*® The Trlal Chamiber also
found-that Kalimanzira then travelled to Kabuye hill along with armed soldiers and policemen who,
usmg their firearms, participated in the k1111ng of a large number of Tutsis. 56 The Trial Chamber
concluded that “Kalimanzira’s role in luring Tutsis to Kabuye hill and his subsequent assistance in

providing armed reinforcements substantlally contributed to the overall -attack.”5 o

209. The Prosecution does not dispute the Trial Chamber’s assessment of the evidence.”®

Ihstead, it argues that, on the basis of these findings, the Trial Chamber erred in failing to conclude
that Kalimanzira ordered and committed genocide in relation to the attack.™ The Prosecution
argues that “[c]onsidering -[Kalimanzira's] direct involvement and active participation in the
targeting and killings of members of the Tutsi ethnic group, his specific intent to destroy the Tutsi

ethnic group as such, his position of authority, and the overall genocidal context within which he

5% Trial Judgement, para, 160, citing Indictment, paras. 2, 6.
% Trigl Judgement, para. 161, 2B \\f\
3% Tria] Judgement, paras, 392, 393, 739.

57 Trial Judgement, paras. 367, 392.

%58 Trial Judgement, para. 352.

5% Trial Judgement, paras. 371, 392. In connection with Kalimanzira's Third and Sixth Grounds of Appeal, the Appeals
Chamber overturned this finding. See supra Sections IILE.2, I.E.4 (Grounds 3 and 6: Alleged Errors Relating to
Kabuye Hill).

% Trial Judgement, para. 393.

%! Trial Judgement, para. 393.

%62 Gee Prosecution Appeal Brief, paras. 31, 48, 68.

36 prosecution Appeal Bricf, paras. 28-32, 47-52, 68-76.
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acted, no reasonable trier of fact could have held otherwise [than] that his -acts and conduct more
appropﬁ ately amounted to pértici_pation throug_h ordering and committing [ ._'.].""564
210.  The Appeals Chamber ,c.onsi'dere_," in turn, 'w"heﬂier' the Trial .Charxj:ber erred in not ﬁndmg
that Kali_maniira either ordered or committed the --eri_me of fgenocide in relation to the events at

Kabuye hill.

(a) Orderin-g

2] 1. The Prosecutlon contends that the Trial Charnber erred in fa.thng to ﬁnd t.hat “t.he acts and
utterances of [Kahmanzua] the resultmg klllmgs[] and the overall context of ithe events”
demonstrated that he ordered genomde at Kabuye hill.*® In this- respect the Prosecutlon subrruts
-that based on the Trial Chamber® s ﬁndmgs Kahmanzrra had authonty over the. attackers and was
perceived by the . attaokers as an authority . It also underscores that, based on the ev1dence

- presented at trial, vKahmauz-n:a=- :was.rthethatghestauthonty pre-sent. at the Kabu)t__e, hill ma-ssaene_..

212, In at]ditioh the Proseeut;ion points 'to .an =eveu‘t lre'eounted by P-rOSeeution Witnes-s BWO
namely, the ktllmg of a group of refugees by 01v111ans allegedly actmg on Kahmanmra 8
instructions. > The Prosecution states ‘that, accordmg to Wiiness BWO Kahmanzrra prormsed a
| leader of a group of Tutsi refugees protectton but fhen told a group of assatla:nts that they should
Xill the refugees 569 The Prosecutton submits that this “order was nnrnedtately obeyed 570 In sum,
‘the Prosecution submits that “[b,]y .Itel.h_ng the attackers to kill the Tatsi ref_ugees_ immediately and by
bfinging s reinforcemenits persons under his authiority, ditected to participate in the “atticks,
'[Ka]jrnarxzire] therefore gave direct orders and completed the actus reus of ordering genoeide

[...].7°"

213. The Appeals Chamber recalls that ordering requires that a person in a position of authority
instruct another person to commit an offence.’” It is clear that the Trial Chamber found that
Kalimanzira was in a position of authority.”” The Trial Chamber, however, made no findings that
he instructed anyone at Kabuye hill to commit a crime. Instead, it follows from the Trial Judgment
that Kalimanzira’s role during his time at Kabuye hill involved “providing armed

584 Prosecution Appeal Brief, para. 29 (emphadis.in original) (internal citations omitted). —K\\J\
%3 Prosecution Appeal Brief, para. 47 (internal citations on‘utted) See also Prosecution Appeal Brief, paras. 48-52,
566  Prosecution Appeal Brief, paras. 48-51.

57 Prosecution Appeal Brief, para, 50.
S68 ., Prosecution Appeal Brief, para. 49.

Prosecutton Appeal Brief, para. 49.

" Prosecution Appeal Brief, para. 49.
n Prosecuhon Appedl Brief, para. 51.

™ Semanza Appeal Judgement, paras. 361, 363,
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reinforcements.”’* While it 1s possible that an order to attack could have been inferred from the
surrounding circumstances, the Appeals Chamber is not safisfied that the Prosecution has

demonstrated that this is the only reasonable inference from the evidence.

214. ‘The Prosecution’s lai'gument relies heavily on Witness BWO’=-S account of Kalimanzira
telling a group of assailants at Kabuye hill to kill a group of Tutsi refugees. The Trial Chamber
found the withess credible and accepted hlS evidence about this incident even though it was
“substantially uncorroborated.”" In reviewing Witness BWOQ’s evidence, however, the Appeals
Chamber is satisfied that it was reasonable for the Trial Chamber inot to convict Kaljmahzira for

erdeﬂng based on ‘Witness BWO's testimony.

215, More specifically, it follows from Witness BWQO’s evidence that the group of assailants
arrived at the hill after Kahmanzlra 76 Although the leader of a group of Tutsi refugees recognized
Kalimanzira,” " it is not clear from the evidence that the civilian assailants d1d 50 as well, or that
“they knew that hé was an authority. More._slgm‘ﬁcgnﬂy, 1t is not éntirely -elear from the ‘Witness’s
testimony Whefher the civilian assai‘lants' attacked the group _0'f refq’g.ées iminediately after
- Kalimanzira spb‘ke to them,” or attacked the refugees only upon the amval of so"ldiefs some time

‘after his departure.”” Given these ambiguities, the Trial Chamber acted within its disoretion in

573

Trial Judgement. paras. 97-99.

57 Trial Judgement, para. 393.

5% Trial Judgement, para. 383.

5767, 5 Wlay 2008 pp: 30, 31; T. 19-May 2008: P8

57! Trial Judgement, para. 317

578 See T.’5 May 2008 p. 30 (“When he was talking to the people who arrived and who were behind -him — I cantry to
repeat what he said. After Boniface spoke ‘to him, Callixte turned to the newcomers and said, ‘You should kill them
immediately because the others have already finished,” And that was when we fled and we joined the other refugees,
But, Kalimanzira had already uttered those words, and some of the refugees were killed on the spot.™); T. 19 May 2008
p. 9 (*Q. And this group of persons, who included the two individuals whose names you mentioned, that group was
only composed of civilians, or were there also soldiers in the group? A. They were civilians and Interahamwe. When
they started attacking us, I personally escaped. 1 left the scene. But let me point out that there were many of them, There
were Interahamwe, civilians, and later on soldiers also arrived at the scene. And the attack lasted the entire day, So let
me point out that there were also soldiers. Q. At the time you fled, Mr. Witness, there was only that group of civilians.
Do you agree with me? A. Yes, there was that group of people who had come almost at the same time as Kalimanzira,
and it was at about 11, Between ) p.m. and 2 p.m. soldiers came to the scene and started firing at the refugees and
killing them.”). However, the Appeals Chamber observes that, if Witness BWO fled when the civilian assailants
attacked shortly after Kalimanzira left, it is not clear how he would have been in a position to observe the arrival of the
soldiers two hours later.

5 See T. 5 May 2008 pp. 31, 32 (“Q. What happened following Kalimanzira speaking to these civilians from Dahwe?
A. Soldiers and Interahamwe arrived. [...] Q. After Kalimanzira got inte his vehicle and left, what did you and the other
refugees do? A. We stayed where we were; there was nothing else we could do. And it was during that time that the
Interahamwe and the soldiers arrived. [...] Q. How did the soidiers and the Interahamwe get to where they were to

- attack you? A. They arrived and they started shooting immediately. When we heard the gunshots, we were hopeless and
we ran helter-skelter. The other attackers started attacking us with machetes and bladed weapens. Q. Do you know how
the soldiers and Interahamwe reached where you were, by foot or in a vehicle? A, The vehicle dropped the soldiers at
Qisagara, and they joined the Interahamwe and came to the place where we were on foot. Q. You told us that
Kalimanzira spoke to some civilians from Dahwe. Did you see those civilians again after that incident? A, Yes, the
civilians would come along with the attackers. They were part of the groups of attackers. I was able to see them.”). See

also.T. 19 May 2008 pp, 8-10. : /K‘\\J\
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concluding that aiding and abetting rather than ordering was the most appropriate mode by which to

characterize Kalimanzira’s conduct.
(b) ‘Committing

216. The Prosecution submits that the Trial ‘Chamber erred in failing to qualify Kalimanzira’s
actions in relation to Kabuye hi_ll as “COrnm_itting” -genocide.s'80 m'pa-rticular, the Prosecution argues
that the Trial Chariber erred in law in formulating the legal test for committing by adopting an
incomplete definition for this form of respon31b111ty and limiting its consideration to the quesnon of
whether Kalimanzira had killed anyone with his own hands. 581 To illustrate the Trial Cha:mber s
alleged error, the Prosecution points to the Gacumbitsi and Seromba Appeal Judgements, which

held that committing gcnoclde can encornpass acts beyond phy51ca1 klllm g

217. The Prosecution contends that, had the test for conmﬁtting been prdperly applied, a
reasonable trier of fact would have concluded that Kalimanzira cormmttcd gcnoade at Kabuye
hill. 383 Spec1ﬁca.11y, the Prosecutlon underscores Kalimanzira’s éfforts to gather Tut31 refugees at
Kabuye hill, his provision of armed reinforcement for the attacks, and his genocidal intent, which
illustrate his integral tole in organizing and supervising the subsequent Killings. % In the
Prosecution’s view, Kalimanzira’s conduct is comparable to that found to constitute committing in

the Gacumbitsi and Seromba cases.”®

| 218. In discussing the forms of respon31b111ty under Article 6(1) of the Statute, the Tnal Chamber
statcd that ““[cJommitting’ implies, primarily, p}ryswally perpetrating a crime. 758 The Appeals
Chamber can identify no error in this definition. The formulation is similar to the one articulated in
the Nahimana et al. Appeal Judgement.®®’ Indeed, the Trial Chamber’s use of the term “primarily”
to qualify its definition of committing as physical perpetration illustrates that it did not limit the
scope of its inquiry.”® This stands in contrast to the definition used by the trial chamber in the

580 prosecution Notice of Appeal, paras. 5, 6; Prosecution Appeal Brief, paras. 53-57, 68-73.
581 progecution Notice of Appeal, paras. 5, 6; Prosecution Appeal Brief, paras. 53-57.
382 prosecution Appeal Brief, para. 53, citing Gacumbitsi Appeal Judgement, para. 60, Seromba Appeal Judgement,
ara, 161,
?B:" Prosecuuon Appeal Brief, paras. 54, 68-73.
™ Prosecution Appeal Brief, paras. 69-71, 73.
385 Progecution Appeal Brief, para. 72.
386 - Trial Judgement, para. 161.
%7 Nahimana et al. Appeal Judgement, para. 478 (“The Appea]s Chamber recalls that commission covers, ptimarily, the
physxcal perpetration of a -crime (with criminal intent) or a culpabie omission of an act that is mandated by a rule of
criminal law, but also participation in a joint criminal enterprise.”).

$% Prial Judgement, para. 161. . f‘\\l\
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Seromba case, which the Appeals Chamber found too restrictive.’® The fact that the Trial Chamber
did not explicitly recall the additional clarification of this well-settled principle provided by the
" ‘Gacumbitsi and Seromba Appeal Judgements does not mean that these clarifications were not

considered.

219. It follows from the .Gacumbitsi and Seromba Appeal Judgerhents that physical perpetration
need not only mean physical 'kil]jng and that other ‘acts can constitu’te' direct participation in the
actus reus of the crime. 39 The queshon is whether an accused’s conduct “was as much an integral
pa.rt of the genocide as were the killings which it enabled. »391 Bearmg tthis in mind, the Appeals
Chamiber is niot convinced that the Trial‘Chamber’s conclusion that Kalimanzira’ s'conduct was best
characterized as a1d1ng and abetting was unreasonable. The Trial Chamber did not find that he
superwsed or directed the attack at Kabuye hill. Instead, it concluded that he lured Tutsis to Kabuye

hill and brought armed reinforcements.”

220.  In other cases, trial chanibers hiave qualified bringing assailantsto a Killing site as aiding and
abetting.” In the circumstances of this case, the Appeals Chamber is not conVi'n'Ced -that
Kalimanzira’s ta(:lt approval of Sub-aPrefect Ntawukuhlyayo s call for Tutsis to g0 to- Kabuyc ‘hill,
_and his -leadl-n-g-assmlants to Kabuye h]ll * are sufficient to require that the legal qua.'hﬁcahon of
his overall conduct be elevated to “conumttmg” Furtherrnore the fact that the Trial Chamber found - |

% rather ‘than snnply “knowledge of the principal

that Kalimanzira possessed genocidal ‘intent,
Aperpetrators mens rea,’”® does not in itself" compel the conclusion that the Trial Chamber erred in
finding that -aiding -and- abetting most accurately -described Kalimanzira's conduct. The Appeals
Chamber recalls that it is not unusual for a trial chamber to find that an individual convicted only of

aiding and abetting possesses genocidal intent. >’

221. Consequently, the Prosecution has not identified any error in the Trial Chamber’s decision

not to hold Kalimanzira responsible for committing genocide at Kabuye hill.

589 See Seromba Appeal Judgement, para. 155 (“‘committing’ means [...] direct physical or personal perpetration”),
quotmg Seromba Trial Judgement, para. 302. See also Seromba Appeal Judgement, para. 161 (“TT]he Trial Chamber
erred in law by holding that ‘committing’ requires. dn'ect and physical perpetration of the crime by the offender.™),

0 Gacumbitsi Appeal Tudgement, para, 60; Seromba Appeal Judgement, para. 161.

9 Gacumbitsi Appeal Jirdgement, para. 60. See also Seromba Appes! Judgement, para. 161,

%92 Trial Judgement, para, 393. (—\\}\
93 See, e.g., Semanza Trial Judgement, paras. 431-433; Ntakirutimana Trial Judgement, paras. §27-831. \

5% See Trial Judgement, paras, 392, 393,

%55 Trial Judgement, para. 393.

398 see Blagajevic and Joki¢ Appeal Judgement, para. 127,

W See Ntakirutimana Trial Judgement, paras. 827-831. Cf. Semanza Trial Judgement, paras. 431-433,

78
Case No. ICTR-05-88-A 20 October 2010




776/H

3. Conclusion

222, Accordi_ng’l_y, the Aiﬁpee_il_-s,Chafﬁber dismisses the Prosecution‘_’-é First Ground of Appeal.

W
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B. Alleged Errors Reélating to the Sentence (Ground 2

223. The Trial Chamber sentenced Kalimanzira to a single sentence of 30 years of
imprisonment.**® The Prosecution stibmits that the Trial Chamber erred in 'imposing this sentence
and requests that the Appeals Chamber increase 'Kélimanzira’s sentence to imprisonment for the
remainder of his life.”*® Kalimanzira responds that the Trial Chamber “wrongly convicted [him] of
all the counts on which he was found guilty,” and that he should accordingly be acquitted.5®

224.  In addressing this ground of appeal, the Appeals Chamber bears in mind that trial chambers
are vested with broad discretion in determining an appropriate sentence due to their obligation to
individualize penalties to fit the circumstances of the accused and the gravity of the crimeQm Asa
rule, the Appeals Chamber will revise a sentence only if the appealing party demonstrates that the
trial chamber committed a discem-iblc error in exercising its sentencing discretion or that it failed to

follow the applicable law.5°

"225. In this section the Appeals Chamber considers three principal quest:ons (1) whether the
Trial Chamiber failed to give sufficient weight to the gravity of Kalimanzira’s crimes; (2) whet_her it
gave undue weight to irrelevant considerations; and (3) whether it failed to follow the applicable

law.

1'. Alleged Error in Assessing:the Gravity of the Crimes

226.  The Prosecution submits that the Trial Chamber erred in its assessment of the gravity of
Kalimanzira’s crimes by failing to give proper weight to: the form and degree of his participation in
their commission, their scale and brutality, the vﬁlnerabi]ity of the victims, and the timing of his
offences.®” The Prosecution contends that Kalimanzira’s crimes were of the “utmost gravity and
amount to conduct 50 egregious and inhumane as to warrant the highest possible penalty.”® In this
respect, the Prosecution recalls that the specific aspects of Kalimanzira’s crimes suggest the brutal
treatment of innocent victims, and observes that in each instance he exhibited genocidal intent and

played a leadership role.5° The Prosecution also emphasizes that Kalimanzira perpetrated multiple

598

Trial Judgement, para. 756.
599 > Prosecution Notice of Appeal, paras. 15-25; Prosecution Appeal Brief, parss. 4, 77-128.

800 K alimanzira Response Brief, para. 14,

1 See Karera Appeal Judgement, para. 385; Nahimana et al. Appeal Judgement, para. 1037; Simba Appeal Judgement,
para. 306; Magerura et al. Appeal Judgemeni, para. 429,

See Bikindi Appeal Judgement, para. 141; Nchamihigo Appeal Judgement, para. 384; Karera Appeal Judgement,
para, 385; Nahimana et al. Appeal Judgemenl, para. 1037, Simba Appeal Judgement, para. 306, Blagojevi¢ and Jokic¢
Appeal Judgement, paras. 137, 321; Ntagerura et al. Appeal Judgement para. 429; Semanza Appeal Judgement, para.
312, Bladki¢ Appeal Judgement, para. 680,

503 Prosecutlon Appeal Brief, paras. 85-110. \J\

Prosecut:on Appeal Brief, para. 92. \

% Prosecution Appeal Brief, paras. 92-106.
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crimes within a narrow time-frame, that his actions were 1mmed1ately proximate to killings, and

that his actions “served to Te-ignite killings after they had slowed or ceased. 606

227, The Trial Charriber brieﬂy recalled the factual and lega.l basis ef each of Kalimanzira’s
crimes and provided a cross-reference to the relevant section of the Trial Judgement, where the
incidents were d1scussed in greater detail. 57 The Trial Chamber also “[took] due notice of the
intrinsic gravity of Kahmanzua s crimes.”®® Furthermore, it consrdered that genocide “shocks the
conscience of humamty” and that direct and public incitement to cornrmt genocide was of a simnilar
gravrty 509 Therefore, the Trial Chamber was manifestly aware of all the factnal and legal
circumstances surrounding the offences referred to by the Prosecution in its submissions.
Accordingly, the Appeals Chamber is not convinced that the Trial Chamber erred in its

consideration of the gravity of Kalimanzira’s offences.

2. Alleged Error in ~‘Givin2 Undue _Wei‘Eht to Irrelevant Con'sidera'tions

228. The Prosecutmn subrmts that the Tnal Chamber erred in its assessment of the sentence by
:glvmg welght to two irrelevant conmderatmns 610 First, the Prosecunon refers to the Trlal
‘Chamiber’ s statement that the crimes occurred in Kalimanzira’s own prefecture and not at the
national level. " The Prosecution argues that this conclusion has no relevance and does not
diminish the gravity of the offences 50 as 10 justify a lesser sentence. 612 Second, the Prosecution
argues that the Trial Chamber’s consideration that Kalimanzira’s crimes were essentxally unrelated

613

to his ofﬁcral duties and powers at the natlonal level is erroneous and 1rrelevant Accordmg to the

Prosecution, there is no evrdence. to support such an 1nference.'514 In addition, the Prosecutlon
contends that the Trial Chamber expressly found that Kalimanzira’s authority derived from both his

local influence and national authority *'®

229, The Appeals Chamber agrees that the crimes’ commission in Kalimanzira’s own prefecture
and not at the national level is not a relevant fact for the purpose of assessing their gravity. The
genocide that was committed in Rwanda between 6 April 1994 and 17 July 1994, which resulted in
the killings of hundreds of thousands of Tutsis, is indivisible.”'® The Appeals Chamber, however, is

8% prosecution Appeal Brief, para. 108. See also Prosecution Appeal Brief, paras. 107, 109, 110.

597 Trial Judgement, paras. 745, 746.

5% Trial Judgement, para. 746.

9 Trial Judgement, para, 746, _

610 prosecution Appeal Brief, paras. 111-115. ﬂ

11 progecution Appeal Brief, para, 112, citing Trial Judgemem para. 747. (\
812 prosecution Appeal Brief, para. 112.
813 prosecution Appeal Brief, paras. 114, 115, citing Trial Judgement, para, 747.

614 prosecution Appeal Brief, para. 114.

815 prosecution Appeal Brief, para. 115, citing Trial Judgement, paras. 95-99.

818 See Ndindabahizi Appeal Judgement, para. 138.
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not convinced that this error. 1nva11dated the sentence sinceit-is not clear how much weight the Trial
Chaniber attributed to [‘.hlS conSIderanon As explamed above, the Tual Chamber correctly noted the -

serious gravity of Kalimanzird’s ¢rimes.

23‘0. As for the Proeecution’s -cion'tentia_qn that the Trial Chah1ber erred in finding that
Kalimanzira’s crimes were “essent-ial]y unrelatetl tt) -[Ka’]imanZira”s] official dutie'a and powers at
_the ndtional level, 617, the Appeals Chamber agrees that this appears inconsistent with many of the
ﬁndmgs in the Trial Judgement Indeed the Trial Chamber found ‘that Kalimanzira attended ‘many
meetings, such as the inauguration. of Elie Ndayambaie, in his capacity as an official of the Mlmsu'y
of Interior.®"* Kalimanzira"ﬁs posifion was also a key con-Sideration in assessing the impact of -his
presence on.the com_m_i_ssi_dh of crimes .5

231. Nongtheless, after noting that the crimes were “essentially unrelated” to Kahmanzn'a $
duties, the Trial Chamber expressly considered that his position as dtrecteur de cabmez‘ of the _

‘Mm1stry of "Intenor “lent Him ‘the credibility and ‘influence requlred for some ‘of hlS crumnal' '
621

acts.” 620 It also took the abuse of this influence into -account as an aggravatmg c1rcumstance
Consequently, it is -clear that the ‘Trial Chamber took his pesition into accotnt in sentencmg
’Iherefore, the Appeals Charnber cannot identify any error on the part of the Tridl Chamber i m thls

respect that would 1nva1._1date ithe sentence.

3. Alleged Error in “Reserving” Life Imprisonment for-a Certain Class of Offenders

232. 'The Prosecufion submits‘that ‘the Trial ‘Chariber erred in law by teserving lifé imprisonmerit
to a certain class of offenders.®? To illustrate this claim, the Prosecution quotes the following
excerpt from the Trial Judgement:

At this Tribunal, a sentence of life nnpnsonment is genera]ly reserved [for] those who planned or

ordered atrocities and those who participate in the crimes with- partlcula: zeal or sadism. Offenders
receiving the most severe seritences tend to be senior authorities. 62

233. For the Prosecution, this analysis demonstrates that the Trial Chamber incorrectly reserved
the imposition of a sentence of life imprisonment for only a certain category of offenders or mode

of ‘participation, thereby failing to follow the Tribunal’s jurisprudence and wrongly limiting its own

" Trial Judgement, para. 747. < \\

18 See, e.g., Trial Judgement, para, 291.
1 See, e.g., Trial Judgement, paras. 362, 392.
2% Trial Judgement, para. 747.
521 Trial Judgement, para. 750.
622 prosecution Appeal Brief, paras, 116-125.
623 Trial Judgement, para. 744 (internal citations omitied).
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discretion.®®* The Prosecution submits that a correct reading of the Musema Appeal Judgement, to
which the Trial Chamber 're’fﬁrs,'tszs indicates that a sentence of life imprisonment is not necessarily

limited to any particular group of offenders or mode of parti.cipation.‘s'26

234, Moreover, the Prosecution argues that, by correctly focusing on ‘the circumstances
surrounding the case and not on a categorization of offenders, the Appeals Chamber in the
Gacumbitsi case held that where a person convicted of genocide is a primary actor or _1eac1cr, life
-impriSoriment is the appropriate sentence in the absence of significant nﬁtigatiﬁg circumstances.*?’
Finally, the Prosecution emphasizes that Kalimanzira, as one of the most influential persons in
Butare -Prefecture,-playcd a critical role in the crimes committed by influencing others to commit
_ cr'imeé, -'dis'tribming_arms, transporting attackers to massacres sites, and inciting Hutus to commit
the most heinous crimes, and further contends that Kalimanzira’s involvement as a leader and
principal player was continuous between April and June 1994.5%
235. The Trial Chamber cpr'recﬂy'_-_nbtcd that, pursuant to Article 23 of lthe.'fS?tatute -and ‘Rule 101
of the Rules, in determining the sentence, consideration must be given, among -.c;)_t'tjer factors, tc_i the

529 As a result, the-Ap_pea'ls "-Chafribt_:r is not

gravity of the offences or totality of the conduct.
persuaded that the Prosec-utlon s selective quotatlon of the Trial Judgement demonstrates that ‘the
Trial Chamber inappropriately 'imposcd a legal threshold on the 'iinposition of a sentence of life

imprisonment.

236. The portion of the Tnal Judgement quoted by the Prosecutlon ]S no more than a
reformulation of the well- established principle of gradation in sentencing, Wthh holds that leaders
and planners should bear heavier criminal responsibility than those further down the scale. This
general principle is, of course, subject to the proviso that the gravity of the offence is the primary
consideration for a trial chamber in imposing a sentence. The Trial Chamber, referring to the

Musema Appeal Judgement, expressty acknowledged both of these propositions.‘s'a0

237. In addition, as the Prosecution concedes, the Trial Chamber correctly noted that life
sentences have also been imposed on lower level officials and individuals who did not hold
government positions.‘m Further, nothing in the language used by the Trial Chamber prevented in a

per se fashion the imposition of a sentence of life imprisonment; instead, the Trial Chamber’s

6. prosecution Appeal Bricf, paras. 121, 125. /‘< \\\

523 Trial Judgement, para. 744, n. 776.

%26 prosecution Appeal Brief, paras. 119-121,

27 prosecution Appeal Brief, para, 122, citing Gacumbitsi Appeal Judgement, paras. 204-206.
5% prosecution Appeal Brief, para. 124,

2 'Trial Judgement, para. 741,

% Trial Judgement, para, 744, n. 776,

1 Trial Judgement, para. 744, n. 777. See Prosecution Appeal Brief, para. 118.
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approach focused on a case-specific examination of the facts and circumstances surrounding

Kalimanzira's co'nvieﬁ'ons. _

238. Fmally, the Appeals Chamber is not persuaded by the Prosecutlon 8 readlng of ‘the
Gacumbitsi Appeal Judgemem and its relevance to this case. Just as there is no category of cases
within the JUﬂSdlCthTI of the Tnbunal where the imposition of a sentence of life 1mpnsonment is
per se bar_red, there is also no category of cases where it is per se mandated. Each case remains to

be examined on its-own individual facts. 632

239. Wlth respect to the Prosecutlon s submission emphasnmg the spcmﬁc role played by
Kallmanzua in relation to the crimes comrmtted the Trial Chamber clearly considered his
prormnence and influence in Butare society. It addressed this prominence in the body of the Tnal‘
Judgement as well as in the sentencmg section,® where it found that the 1nﬂUence he derived from
his stature made it likely that others would follow his example and’ that this ‘was an aggravatmg “

factor. 5>

240. -Fot' the foregoing reasons, the 'App:ea_l'sﬁC'hamber finds that the P_rose(_:u;tio'n has not -idetttiﬁed
any error of law on the part d’f‘-the Trial-Chamber in this respect.

4. Conclusion

241, Accordingly, the Appeals Chamber dismisses the Prosecution’s Second Ground of Appeal.

82 Gacumbitsi Trial Judgement, paras. 224, 325. The Trial Chamber found that Gacumbitsi had exhlbxted partlcula.r
sadism -and that there were no significant mitigating- circumstances. He was found to be a pnmary playei” and “
leader in the commune who used‘his power to commit the brutal massacre and rape of thousands.” See Gacumbttsi
Appeal Judgement, para, 204. The Appeals Chamber noled that, although not every individual convicted of genocide or
exiermination has been sentenced 10 life imprisonment, Gacumbitsi's case was not comparable to the cases where a
fixed term of imprisonment has been imposed. See Gacumbitsi Appeal Judgement, paras. 204, 205, n. 446.

33 Trial Judgement, paras. 99, 750. d N

@4 Trial Judgement, paras. 747, 750.
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V. IMPACT OF THE APPEALS CHAMBER’S FINDINGS ON
KALIMANZIRA’S SENTENCE

242, The Appeals ‘Chamber recalls that it has reversed, Judge Pocar dissenting, Kahmanzu'a §

conviction for aldmg and abetting genocude in relation to his presence at the inanguration of Elie
Ndayambaje and for instigating .and aiding and abetting genocide in relation to killings at the
Butare G1sagara roadblock In addmon, the Appeals Chamber, Judge Pocar d1ssent1ng m part ‘has
reversed Kahmanzua s conviction for direct and public incitement, The Appeals Chamber
considers that the reversal of almost all Kalimanzira’s convictions represents a significant reduction
in his culp_abilifty. and calls for a revision of his sentence. The Appeals Chamber notes, however, that
it has -affirmed Kalimangzira’s conviction for aiding and abetting the .,gen'oeide of Tutsis at--Kabuye
hill. Thus, he remains convicted of an extremely serious crime. In the circumstances of l‘.hlS case,
‘the. Appeals Chamber, Judge Pocar dlssentmg, reduces Kahmamra s sentence of 30 years of

imprisonment to 25 years of imprisonment.

b
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VI. DISPOSITION

243, For the foregoing reasons, THE APPEALS CHAMBER,
PURSUANT to Article 24 of the Statute and Rule 118 of the Rules;

NOTING the written submissions of the ‘parties and their oral arguments presented at the hearing
on 14 June 2010; |

SITTING in open session;

GRANTS, Judgc Pocar dlssentlng, Kalimanzira’s Fifth Ground of Appeal and REVERSES his
conv1ct10n for mdmg and abetfing gen001de in relauon to his presence at thc maugurahcm of Elie

,Ndayambaje :

GRANTS, Judge Pocar dmssm;mg, Kahmzua 8 -Seventh Ground .of. Appcal and. R‘E B RSES his
conviction for 1nst1gatmg and mdmg and abettmg genocide in relation to k111mgs at the Butarc-

Gisagara roadblock;

GRANTS Kalimanzira's Eighth and Ninth Grounds of Appeal and REVERSES hJS conviction for
direct and pubhc inciterent to commit genocide in relation to the events at ‘the Jaguar and

‘Kajyanama -roadblocks,

GRANTS, Judge Pocar d:lssen, Kalimanzira’s- Tenth and Elevcnth Grounds_ of . Appeal. and
REVERSES his conviction for direct and public incitement to commit genocide in relation to the

events at the Nyabisagara football field and the Gisagara marketplace;
DISMISSES Kalimanzira’s Appeal in all other respects;
DISMISSES the Prosecution’s Appeal in all respects;

AFFIRMS Kalimanzira’s conviction for aiding and abetting genocide in relation to the massacre at
Kabuye hill;

REDUCES, Judge Pocar dissenting, the sentence of 30 years of imprisonment imposed on
Kalimanzira by the Trial Chamber to 25 years of imprisonment to run as of this day, subject to
credit being given under Rules 101(C) and. 107 of the Rules for the period he has already spent in
detention since his arrest on 8 November 2005; ' L—{\ \\)\
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RULES that this J udgement shall be enforced unmedlately pursuant 1o Rule 119 of the Rules; and

‘ORDERS that, in accorda.nce with Rule 103¢(C) and Rule 107 of the Rules, Kahmanzxra is 10
remain in the custody Of the Tnbuna'l pendmg the ﬁnahzatlon of arran gements for his transfer to the

State where hlS sentence will be served.

Done in English and French, the English text being authoritative.

Theodor Meron ' Mehmet Giiney Fausto Pocar

Presiding Judge Judge | Judge

Andrésia Vaz ‘Carmel Agius

Judge Judge

Judge Pocar appends partially dissenting and separate opinions.

Done this 20th day of October 2010 at Arusha, Tanzania.

[Seal of the Tribunal]

- TPTR
‘,

=

%
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VIL. PARTIALLY DISSENTING AND SEPARATE OPINIONS OF JUDGE
- POCAR

A. Partially Dissenting Opinion

1. In this Judgement, the Appeals Chamber allows Ka]jmanzira’:s appeal, in part with regard to
the Trial Chamber’s findings in relation to the events at the :Ka'buyq-'Gisagara road (Kalimanzira's
third and sixth grounds of 'appeal' in .par-t‘).:' The Appeals Chamber also allows Kalimanzira's fifth,
seventh, tenth and eléventh grounds of appeal, reversing the Appellaﬁ‘t'-s.convictidn for: (i) genocide
for aiding and abetting the killings of Tutsis based on his presence at the i-nau-gurétidn of Elie
Ndayambaje as "bouggmcstre of Muganza '_Comfn_une on or about 22 June 19.9_4_;2 (ii) _génc_)cide for
~ instigating and .a.idilng.and abetting the killings of Tutsis at a roadblock on the Butare-Gisagara road
on or around 22 April 1994; (iii) direct and public incitement to commit genocide based on his
speech at the 'Nyébi;s_ag_ara__foot_ball field in ;Kibayi Commune, Butare _ZP'r@fe_ctur_n_:, in late May or
early June ..1994;'4_ and (iv) direct and public incitement to commit genocide based on his actions
during a mceﬁng at the Gisagara marKetplace at the end of May 1'99_4.‘5 To my regret, for the
detailed reasons expressed below, I respectfully disagree with both the rcason_i'hg and the
conclusions of the ~Majori.ty and the consequén‘t reversal of Kalimanzira’s .conific.tions for these

events.

2. As. a preliminary matter, the applicable standard of appellate review. warrants careful
* considerationIts application by the Majority in this case is of considerable ‘concern. In particular,
note thaf the Majorit-ﬁr has systematically reviewed evidence, effectively conducting a trial de novo,
rather than according deference to the Trial Chamber’s assessment of witness’ evidence, In this
respect, I believe the Appeals Chamber exceeds its jurisdiction and. undermines the strict standard

of appellate review,

3. Pursuant to Article 24 of the Statute, the Appeals Chamber shall only review errors of law
which invalidate the decision of the Trial Chamber and errors of fact which have occasioned a
miscarriage of justice.® However, in allowing most of the above-mentioned grounds of appeal and

overturning Kalimanzira’s convictions for the relevant crimes, the Majority proceeds to reconsider

! Appeal Judgement, paras. 101, 114, 126. See also Appeal Judgement, paras. 94-96, 99-101, 110-114.

2 Appeal Judgement, paras. 79, 80, 243. See also Appeal Judgement, paras. 72-80. ‘/\ \\I\
Appcal Judpement, paras. 150, 243, See also Appeal Judgement, paras. 127-150.
4 Appeal Judgement, paras. 187, 243, See also Appeal Judgemenl, paras. 166-187.

’ Appcal Judgement, patas. 202, 243. See also Appeal Judgement, paras. 188-202.
S Nchamihigo Appeal Judgement, para. 7; Bikindi Appeal Judgement, para. 9; Zlglrany:razo Appeal Judgement, para. 8.

See also Bo¥koski and Taréulovski Appeal Judgement, para. 9.
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the evidence itself absent a demonstrated error of law, fact, or abuse of discretion. Such an approach

contradicts consistent case law, which states that appeals from judgement are not trials de novo.”

4, | Without having heard a single witness, the Majority re-evaluates the evidence purely “on
paper”, based entirely on the transcript of the witnesses’ testimony. In my view, this is an imprudent
and even dangerous way of proceeding, which effectively results in the Appeals Chamber
substituting its own judgement for that of the Trial Chamber. In assessing the appropriate Weight
and- crcdlblhty to be accorded to the testlmony of a witness, a Trial Chamber will consider “relevant
factors on a case-by-case ba31s including’ the witness’s dcmeanour in court; his role in the events in
question; the plausibility and clarity of -his testimony; whether thcre are contradictions or.
inconsistencies in his successive statements or between his testimony and other evidence; any prior
examples of false testimony; any motivation to lie; and the witness’s responses during cross-
examination.”® Crucially, “the trial Judges are in the best position to assess the credibility of a
witness and the réliabi‘lity 61’ the evidence adduoed”9 and, consequently, “a Trial Chamber has full
:dlscretlon to assess the appropriate weight and credibility to be accorded to the testlmony of a

witness.”!?

5. The approach adopted by the Majority is, in my view, illustrative .of a problematic trend in
the Appeals Chamber, which calls into question the distinction between trial and appeilate'
functions. When the Appeals ‘Chamber acts as a second, more rem'ote, Trial -Chamber, as 1
respectfully submit it has in this case, the relationship between the two functions is gravely

compromised, Jeaving little-or no discretion to the Trial Chamber’s assessment.of the evidence.

6. In the interest of completeness, I explain below the specific reasons for my dissent under the

relevant grounds of appeal.

1. Alleged Errors Relating to the Inauguration of Elie Ndayambajye

7. Kalimanzira’s conviction for aiding and abetting genocide for the killings of Tutsis based on
his presence at the inauguration of Elic Ndayambaje as bourgmestre of Muganza Commune on or
about 22 June 1994 was based by the Trial Chamber on the evidence of Witnesses BBB and BCA.
According to the Majority, these witnesses “refer to no particular incident, provide no approximate

time-frame for the killings, and do not give any identifying information concerning the assailants or

7 See, e.g., Mrksic and Sljiivancanin Appeal Judgement, para. 352 Had¥thasanovic¢ and Kubura Appeal Judgement, (/\N
para. 302; Limaj et al. Appeal Judgement, para. 127,

Nehamihlgo Appeal Judgemenit, para, 47. See also Nahimana et al. Appeal Judgement, para. 194.

® Nahimana et al. Appeal Judgement, para. 949; Rutaganda Appeal Judgement, para. 188; Akayesu Appeal Judgement,
para. 132; Furundiija Appeal Judgement, para. 37, Aleksovski Appeal Judgement, para. 63; Tad:c Appeal Judgement,

para. 64,
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victims.”!! The Majority then concludes that “[n]o reasonable trier of fact could have concluded

that Tutm were killed as a result of the ceremony”,'2

8. I respectfully disagree with the Maj-drity in affirming .that the witnesses provided no
approximate time-frame for the killings. Witness BBB explained that the Killings happened “after
the speech”'? given at the inauguration of Elie Ndayambaje as a new bourgmestre. Similarly, I also
disagree that the witnesses provided no identifying information concerning the assailants or the
victims. Witness BBB identified the assailants as the people present at the meeting — between 200
and 300 Hutus — and the victims as being “Tutsi grandchildren” e.nd “Tutsi women”."* Witness
BCA identified the victims who were killed as “Tutsis and Hutus who opposed the government”. 5
0. In additio_n, I recall our wel'i—established jurisprudence that “[w]here the Prosecution alleges
that an accused i)erson'all_y committed the criminal acts in question, it rn_us‘t, so far as possible, plead
the identity of the victim, the place and approximate date of the alleged criminal acts, and the means
by which -'they'-_w_ere comrmtted ‘with the greatest precision.””® HoWever,_“[\ié]-Eere it is alleged that
the accused [...] aided'and abetted the alleged crimes, the ?Prosecution is -[onlyj requ'ired to identify .
the part.ncular acts’ or ‘the particular course of conduct” on the part. of the accused which forms the
‘basis for the charges in question.”"’ Kahmanzlra was. charged and convicted for aiding and abetting
genocide in offering moral -support'to Elle Ndayambaje s call to kill Tutsis during the ceremony.
Therefore, contrary to the Majority’s statement in paragraph 77 of the Appeal Judgement, it was not

necessary to glve 1dent1fy1ng information with respect to the victims.

10. Inthe present case, after “lh}aving carefully considered [the] evidence” of Witnesses BBB
and BCA, the Trial Chamber found them reliable.’® In addition, the T_rlal Chamber also believed

Witnesses BBB and BCA’s evidence that Tutsis were killed following the inauguration ceremony

10 |, Nchamihigo Appeal Judgement, para, 47, Nahimana et al. Appeal Judgement, para. 194,

'" Appeal Judgement, para. 77.
12 Appeal Judgement, para. 79.
13T, 16 June 2008 p. 20. Cf. Trial Judgement, para. 283, \J\
T 16 June 2008 pp. 19, 20. Cf. Trial Judgement, paras. 282, 283. (\
3T, 18 June 2008 pp. 50, 51. Cf. Trial Judgement, para, 281,
' Naletili¢ and Martinovic Appedl Judgement, para. 24, citing Prosecutor v, Tadi¢, Case No. IT-94-1-T, Decision on
the Defence Motion on the Form of the Indictment, 14 November 1995, paras. 11-13. See also Bla¥kic Appeal
Judgement, para. 213; Prosecutor v. Milorad Krnojelac, Case No. IT-97-25-PT, Decision on Preliminary Motion on
Form of Amended Indictment, 11 February 2000 (“Krngjelac 11 February 2000 Decision™), para. 18; Kuprelkic et al.
Appeal Judgement, para, 89. The Appeals Chamiber in Nfakirutimana pointed out that “the inability to identify victims
is reconcilable with the right of the accused to know the material facts of the charges against him because, in such
circumstances, the -accused’s ability to prepare an effective defence to {he ¢harges does not depend on knowing the
identity of every single alleged victim.” See Ntakirutimana Appeal Judgement, paras. 73, 74.
1" Blafkic Appeal Judgement, para. 213. See also Prosecutor v. Milorad Krnojelac, Case No. IT-97-25-PT, Decision on
the Defence Preliminary Motion on the Form of the Indictment, 24 February 1999, para. 13; Krnojelac 11 February
2000 Decision, para, 18; Prosecutor v. Radoslav Brdanin and Momir Tali¢, Case No, IT-99-36-PT, Decision on
Objeehons by Mormir Tali¢ to the Form of the Amended Indictment, 20 February 2001, para. 20.

8 Trial Judgement, para. 291. .
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of Elie Ndayamba]e as a new bourgmestre Accordlngly, the Tnal Chamber found Kalimanzira
guilty of aiding and abettmg genocide by hlS presence at the maugurataon of Ehe Ndayambaje on-or

around 22 June 19941 find no error in this approach.

11, In its assessment of the rev'idcncé, ‘the Majority equates the present case with the Muvunyi
case. It stresses that “[ijn the Muvunyi caée, the Appeal-s' Chamber reversed a conviction for
genocide because the evidence of the killings which underpinned the ‘ﬁndirig of guilt were based on
second- or third-ha.nd. tesﬁmony that “contain[ed] no detail on any"speciﬁc incident or the ﬁequcnc.)r
of the attacks.””?' I respectfully cannot discern aﬁy similarity with the Muvunyi case, in which the
'testi-mony from one of the two witnesses confirmed that his know‘ledg’f: 'was second-hand -and the
Appeals Chamber speciﬁ.c.al.ly found that neither witness pe_rsonally'observed the events.”> By
contrast, in the present case, the evidence of witnesses BBB and BCA was not hearsay. As recalled,
Witnesses BBB and BCA — who both attended the inauguration of Elie Ndayambaje as a new
bqurgméstr.e ~ testified that Jdllin;gs followed the inauguration. Thus, paragraph 78 of the Appeal
Judgément places undue emphasis on the role of hearsay in the present case. Fﬁrthermore, the
Majority fails to identify any material distinction between the QUaiit-y of the evidence in the
Muvunyi case and that provided by Witnesses BBB and BCA with rcSp_cct to the occurrence of the

killings. In my view, the Muvunyi case simply cannot be equated to the present case.

12.  Thus, T consider that Kalimanzira has not demonstrated that a reasonable Trial ‘Chamber
“could not have concluded beyond reasonable doubt that killings fdllowe_d the inauguration of Elic
Ndayanibaje as-a new bourgmestie. Having found n6 error in the Trial Chambers éipproaéli"ﬁﬁd;iﬁ T
its assessment of the evidence of Witnesses BBB and BCA, I am convinced that killingé of Tutsis
occurred following Elie Ndayambaje's inauguration ceremony as a new bourgmestre. Given our
deferential standard of review on appeal, I find the Majority unreasonable in concluding that “[n]o

reasonable trier of fact could have concluded that Tutsis were killed as a result of the ceremony”. %

2. Alleged Errors Relating to the Events at the Gisagara-Kabuye Road

13.  In the present case, the Majority finds that the extent to which Kalimanzira was identified by
Witness BWK is “unclear” and, therefore, that “the Trial Chamber should have explicitly explained
why it accepted Witness BWK’s identification evidence”.** As a result, the Majority concludes that

1% Trial Judgement, para. 291.
* Trial Judgemerit, para, 293. ‘/K \\!\
a Appeal Judgement, para. 78, citing Muvunyi Appeal Judgement para. 69.

2 Moreover, I believe it is not clear that the reference in the first sentence of paragraph 78 of the Appeal Judgement to
the presence of third-hand hearsay evidence in the Muvunyi case is substantiated.
* Appeal Judgement, para. 79.
# Appeal Judgement, para. 99.
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the Trial Chamber cornrmtted an error of law and proceeds to re- cons1der the ‘evidence itself.?
Further to expressing its concems on the uncertainty as to whether and to what extent Kalimanzira
was identified by name pnor to the meeung on the Glsagara-Kabuye road the Majority cons;ders
that “reliance on Witness BWK s uncorroborated identification evxdence is unsafe” and that “there
is no indication as to the er.edlblhty of either individual who identified Kalimanzira to “Witness
BWK on the record.”*® The Majofity., therefore, grants Kalimanzira’s appeal, in part, insofar as it

relates to the events at the Kabuye-Gisagara Road.”

14. I respectfully disagree with both the reasoning and the conclusion of the Majority with

respect to the evenits at the Kabuye-Gisagara Road.

15. I recall that the Trial Chamber has the discretion to assess the appropriate weight and
credibility to be accorded to the testimony of a witness.?? Furthermore, a Trial Chamber also has the
discretion to rely on unedrroborated, but otherwise credible witness testimony, provided it assesses
such testimony with caution. In the Trial Judgement, the Trial Chamber correctly stated that:

The Appeals Chamber has consistently held that a Trial Chamber is in the best position to evaluate

the probahve value of evidence and ‘that it may, depending on its assessment, Tely on a single

witness’s testimony for proof of a material fact. Accordingly, the Chamber-does not necessarily

require evidence. to ‘be corroborated in order to make a finding.of fact on it. Though a Trial
Chamber may prefer that a witness’ tesumony be corroborated, ‘it is not a requirement or an

obligation in the practice of this Tribunal.”

It further stressed that:

While direct evidence is preferred, hearsay evidence is not per se madnu351b]e ‘before the Trial
Chamber. The Trial Chamber has the discretion to treat such hearsay evidence with caution,

depending on the circumstances of the case. In certain circumstances, hearsay ¢vidence may
require other credible or reliable evidence adduced by the Prosecution in order to support a finding

of fact-beyond reasonable doubt.
It is in light of these standards that the Trial Chamber’s assessment of the evidence has to be

considered.

16,  In the present case, the Trial Chamber examined Witness BWK very cautiously. I recall that

the Trial Chamber gave careful consideration to Kalimanzira’s argument that Witness BWK's

25 i
Appeal Judgement, paras. 99, 100,
*% Appeal Judgement, para. 100. "'/\.\\‘\

Z 2" Appeal Judgement, paras. 101, 113, 114, 126.

® Nahimana et al. Appeal Judgement, para. 194; Ntagerura et al. Appeal Judgement, para. 388.
® Trial Judgement, para. 71, referring to Karera Appeal Judgement, para, 45; Niyitegeka Appeal Judgemeny, para, 92;
Rutaganda Appeal Judgment, para. 29; Musema Appeal Judgment, paras. 36-38; Mtakirutimana Appeal Judgement,
para. 132; Kayishema and Ruzindana Appeal Judgement, paras. 154, 187, 320, 322; Delalic et al. Appeal Judgment,
para. 506; Aleksovski Appeal Judgment, paras. 62-63; Tadic Appeal Judgment, para. 65; Kupredkic et al. Appeal
Judgement, para, 33.

? Trial Judgement, para, 75 referring to Rukundo Trial Judgement, para. 39; Muvunyi Trial ]udgement, para. 13,
Rutaganda Appeal Judgement, para. 34; Rule 89 of the Rules.

5 ‘
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testimony contained three inconsistencies with her statement given to ICTR investigators eight
months before.”’ 1 note that the Trial Chamber considered this evidence, provided thoughtful
reasoning, and found that it .does :.not ca_st_rea'scnable doubts on Witness BWK's teStimony.B? ?I-t' .is
correct that the Trial Chamber did not discuss identification evidence with regard to Witness
BWK’s testimony. However, it acted within its discretion in not specifically discussing the
identiﬁcadon evidence of certain witnesses. I find no error in this approach Thus, I consider that
Kalrmanzrra has not demonstrated that the Trial Chamber commltted an error of law. Tn these

crrcumstances deference must be .accorded to the Trial Chamber’s assessment of Wltness BWK’s

testimony. Moreover, I consider that Kal1manz_1ra is attempting to relitigate a matter that was raised .

at trial.

17 In paragraph 100 of the Appeal Judgement, the Majority “proceed to consider the relevant

evidence” itself and, in a few lines, arrives at the conclusion that “reliance -on ‘Witness ’BW'K'

uncorroborated 1dent1ﬁcat10n evrdence IS unsafe A Trial Chamber, as the prrmary tner of fact 1s _

better placed than the Appeals ‘Chamber to evaluate the probative value of witness’ testrmony In
my view, the Appeals Chamber should not overturn or reassess a Trial - Chamber s findings
regarding witness’ testimony unless the Trial Chamber fails to treat such evidence with caution. In
the present case, the Trial Chamber duly exercised caution in relying on Witness BWK's ewdence

a.nd, therefore, correctly applied the legal standard. By contrast, the Majonty condu_cts a de novo

assessment of Witness BWK’s testimony ‘without having heard her testimony and partly bases its |

reasoning on small discrepancies in Witness BWXK s testimony. This is an unwarranted intrusion in
the assessment correctly made by the Trial Chamber and is in violation of the appellate standard of
review. 1 am convinced that we cannot conclude that the Trial Chamber acted unreasonably in

assessing Witness BWK's testimony.

3. Alleged Errors Relating to the Butare-Gisagara Roadblock

18.  With respect to Kalimanzira’s conviction for instigating and aiding and abetting genocide
based on his participation in the killings of Tutsis at a roadblock on the Butare-Gisagara road on or
around 22 April 1994, the Majority finds that paragraph 15 of the Indictment, which was found
defective by the Trial Chamber, was not cured by subsequent timely, clear or consistent notice and
resulted in prejudice to Kalimanzira. The Majority finds the Trial Chamber committed an error of

™

law in this respect and, therefore, overturns Kalimanzira's conviction,®

*! Trial Judgement, para. 369,
3 Trial Judgement, para. 369. See also Trial Judgement, para. 371 where the Trial Chamber “believes BWK beyond

reasonable doubt and finds her evidence 1o be relidble”.
3 Appeal Judgement, paras. 149, 150. See also Appeal Judgement paras. 137-150.
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19.  Irespectfully disagree with both the reasoning and the conclusion of the Majority. 1 note
that the Trial Chamber found that the Indictment was vague with regard to the Butare-Gisagara

roadblock.™ However, it was satisfied that Kalimanzira received adequate notice in a timely, clear,
and consistent manner through the summary of Witness BXK'’s anticipated testimony annexed 1o
the Prosecution Pre-Trial Brief, Witness BXK’s prior statement, and the Prosecution’s opening

statement. ™

20. The At:peals Chamber has previously held that a summary -of an anticipated testimony in an
annex to the Prosecution’s pre-trial brief can, in certain circumstances, cure a defect in an
indictment.*® [ recall ‘that the Prosecution Pre-Trial Brief was filed in English on 16 April 2608,
several weeks be'f'or:e“Witnéss BXK testified about this incident on _Q.May 2008. The French
translation of the Prosecution Pre-Trial Brief was filed only on 5 Mdy 2008, Nonetheless,
Kalimanzira’s 'Lead ‘Counsel is bilingual and would have been able to communicate this information
to h1m Although 1tts true ‘that he ‘was absent: durlng the first trial sessmn and was hospltahzed on.
21 April 2008, the rccord reﬂects that he was in contact with the test of his team.® I furthcr recall
that _Kahmanz1ra s'Co“Counsel stated that she did not want to delay the trial simply _.because -o_f the
delay inthe delivery of the translation.”® Given the importance of a Prosecution Prc-—Trial Brief, the
lack of objection by Kalimanzirato: this delay strongly indicates, in my view, that he was already 7

aware of the factual allegations against h1rn

21.  Inaddition to the Prosecution Pre-Trial Brief, I note that this incident was clearly mentioned
: .dunng the ‘Prosecution’s -opening-statement and identified as occurlng on the Butare—Glsa,gara
road.* Notably, again, Kalimanzira did not object or seek clarification. Therefore, I consider that
this would have eliminated any latent ambiguity arising from the .descrlptlon of the location in the
summary of Witness BXK’s anticipated testimony. Similarly, I find no mierit in Kalimanzira’s
suggestion that he was prejudiced because he assumed that Witness BXK was testifying about the
Jaguar roadblock, which was located nearby. The summary of Witness BXK's testimony does not

* Trial Judgement, para. 429. (( \\(]
* Trial Judgement, paras. 432, 434, 435,
% Gacumbitsi Appeal Judgement, paras. 57, 58. This approach is consistent with jurisprudence of the ICTY. See
Naletilic‘ and Martinovi¢ Appeal Judgement, para. 435,

37 See Decision on Callixte Kalimanzira’s Motion for an Extension of Time for the Filing of Notice of Appeal, 20 July
2009, paras. 3, 6.
3T, 20 May 2008 p. 59. See also Appeal Judgement, para, 33.
¥ T30 April 2008 p. 9 (“Yes, Mr, President, I do not intend to delay the proceedings, especially with regard to the
pre-trial-brief, I told you what I had to say on this matier. We have a way of proceeding in the Defence team in that we
put Mr. Kalimanzira, who is the Accused person, at the heart of his defence. He is entitled to all the facts of law and of
this case in-order to-have allthe necessary clarifications with regard 10 the sirategy we are going to adopt, and that is the
reason for which1 gave the indications I.gave regarding the time necessary to look into the pre-trial brxef with you. But,
of course, all this is a matter that is left to your discretion, Mr. President.”).
“ T, 5 May 2008 p. 4 (“[Kalimanzira] also spurred on the killing of Tutsi at the roadblock situated on the
Butare-Gisagara road in Ndora cormmune in connection with the Kabuye hill massacres.™)
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refer to paragraph 21 of the Ind1ctment ‘which contams this allegauon 4 Furthermore the
'Prosecut.lon s opening statemerrt clearly dlstlngmshed between these two incidents.* Therefore, any
-possible confusmn on the jpart of the Befcnce was not reaSOnable ‘Consequently, {am satlsﬁed that
in these part;lcular mrcumstances the defect in paragraph 15 of ‘the Indictment was cured as
correctly noted by the Trial Chamber and that Kalimanzira d1d not suffer preJudtce in the

.preparat-l-on of hrs defence.

22, In paragraphs 146 and subsequent of the Appea] Judgement the Majonty proceeds to re-
examine the facts in order to JUStny Kahmanzua s confusion rather than to identify any concrete
error made by the TnaI Chamber, which: would rndlcate that the Trial Chamber abused its: dlscre'non
when it .dete_rrmned_,that the confusr-on was :drspellcd by Kalimanzira’s recogn_lhon in his Final Trial
 Brief that the Butare ‘:Gisagara' roadblock was at a different location to the Ja’guar roadbloc-lr“'3 and
by the fact that the Openmg Statement dlstmgmshed between the two roadblocks "The Majorlty
'strangely concludes that Kahrnanzna s “confusion is a strong 1ndlcatlon t.hat Kahmanmra was. |
1pre_]ud1ced by the lack of clarity concemlng the - charges against h1m a.nd that he d1d not I'EC&IVB. -
clear and conslstent nonce nd Ibeheve this conclus1on is 111ustrat1ve of the Appeals Chamber s.new
‘trend to engage ina tnal de novo by reassessing the evidence in a srtuatlon where it is unnecessary
,and mappropnate 1o the requ1s1te and strict standard of review on appeal. In paragraph 149 of the _
Appca] Judgement the Ma_]onty finds that “the Trial Chamber erred in law by f'mdmg that this
defect was cured and accordingly in judging Kallmanzna guilty on the basis of his actions at-the
Butare Grsagara roadblock.” This termmology exemphﬁes this pomt partlcularly well, as it falls to
1dent1fy how the Tnal Chamber apphed an incorrect standard in dec1d1ng, .w1th1n the parameters of
its discretion, that the defect in the Indrctment was cured Indeed the Majonty seems 1o suggest that
nio reasonable Trial Chamber could haVe found that the defect was cured, but, in my view, this is

distinct from an error of law as the Trlal Chamber did apply the correct legal standard.

23. Finally, Kalimanzira is attempting to re-litigate a matter that was raised at trial. Indeed,
Kalimanzira already argued at trial that there were inconsistencies between Witness BXK’s
testimony and his prior statement. However, the Trial Chamber examined these inconsistencies

ca.refully,45 and found Witness BXK to be credible.*® 1 find no error in this approach. Thus, 1

4! Prosecution Pre-Trial Brief, Annex A, p. 21. , HV M -
2T '5‘May 2008 p. 4 (“The Accused Kalimanzira also distributed weapons to people manning the roadblocks to enable
them -to 'kill ‘Tuigi. :One .example is the so-cdlled ‘Jaguar’ roadbjock -in Grisagara, Ndora.commune where he gave a
firearm ‘to the leader of :those manning ‘the-roadblock with-the specific instruction that it was gorng to be used to-kill
Tutsi. He also spurred on the killing of Tutsi at the roadblock situated on the Butare-Gisagara toad in Ndora. commune

in connection with the Kabuye hill massacres. Once again, the Accused Kalimanzira instructed the people manning the
roadblock tokill Tutsi and distributed a firearm to fac111tate such killings.”} (emphasis added).

2 Trial Judgement, para. 465.
‘“Appcal Judgement, para. 147.
4 Trial Judgement, paras. 466-469,
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consider that Kahmanzlra has not demonstrated that the Tnal Charnber committed an error or that it

abused 1ts discretion. In these circumstances, deference must be accorded to the Trial: Chamber

4, ‘Alleged ‘Errors Relating to the Nyabi-—sagara Footbajll Field

24,  In the present case, the Majority finds that “the Trial Chamber erred in not explaining more
fully why it believed the Defence ‘witnesses would not have heard of a second meeting, and thus
why their testimony did not cast reasonable doubt on Witness BCZ’s evidence.”*’ In reaching this
conclusion, the Majority states;
The Deéfence witnesses did nol hear about any meeting involving Kalimanzira, In many
circumstances such evidence ‘is ‘properly accorded minimal ‘probative value. ‘However, the
circumstances in-this -case are different ‘because many of the Defence witnesses had close ties 1o
the local .authorities or lived in:close proximity to the site. Therefore, these witnesses wotld have

been well positioned to know if such a meeting occurred The Trial Chamber did not discount their
evidence on any- bases other than those noted above.**

lt further finds ;that “no reasonable Trial '.Chamber could have relied on Witness BCZ’s acéomplice
eviderice of Kalimanzira’s pparticipation in the meeting at the Nyabisagara football field in light of
the competing Defence evidence, absent further corroborativ'e evidence or additional analysis.

demonstrating that the Defence witnesses were not credible.”*

25. 1 find the reasonmg and the conclusion of the Majority problematlc for various reasons
Flrst from a strictly legal pomt of view, the Trial Chamber carefully assessed Witness BCZ's
testimony and found him to be credible and reliable.*® I find no error in this approach.’' T recall that

the “Tridl Chamber has the discretion to assess and accord the apptopriate weight and credibitity to

* Trial Judgement, para. 470.
! Appeal Judgement, para. 185.
*% Appeal Judgement, para. 185 (internal citations omitied).
* Appeal Judgement, para. 186,

50 T find unpersuasxve Kalimanzira’s assertion that the Trial Chamber erred in assessing Witness BCZ’s credibility.
Nothing in the Statute or the Rules prohibits a Trial Chamber from relying upon the ‘testimony of uncorroborated
accomplice witnesses, provided appropriate caution is applied. See Nchamihigo Appeal Judgement, para. 48. In the
present case, the Trial Chamber was clearly aware that Witness BCZ was an accomplice witness and that he may have
had a motive to falsely incriminate Kalimanzira. See Trial Judgement, paras, 608, 612. In my view, the Trial Chamber
displayed the necessary caution in assessing Witness BCZ’s testimony. Kalimanzira has thus not established that the
Trial Chamber erred in this regard. Kalimanzira has also not established any error in the Trial Chamber’s approach to
alleged-contradictions in Witness BCZ's testimeny. Indeed, I am not convinced that the Tridl Chamber displayed bias in
holding that “[i]t is likely that [Witness] BCZ omiticd to mention Kalimanzira before his October 2001 statement to
ICTR investigators because they did ot specifically ask him dbout Kalimanzira before that time” and that “[i]t is also
likely that BCZ omitted to mention this fsecond] meeting before :October 2001 ‘because its content -and-effect (no
killings followed because no Tutsis could be found) might have seemed less important to him compared to the events he
did mention.” Trial Judgement, para. ‘611. It was certainly open to the Trial Chamiber to assess Witness BCZ's"
testimony in ‘this way and Kalimanzira has not rebutted the presumption of impartiality. See also Semanza Appeal
Judgement, para. 13. The Trial Chaniber sufficiently analyzed the alleged contradictions and reasonably accepted the
explanauons for them offered by the witness.

%) Trial Judgement, para. 612, ) (s\\,\
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the testimony of witnesses.” Indeed the call far additional analysis challenges the Trial Chamber s

ﬁrmly estabhshed dlseret:nonary power to assess the appropnate welght and credibility fo he_
_accorded to wrtness tesumony, to wh.uch deference 1s owed, ™ Furthermore Irecall that accorﬁhrtg

to. our well«-estabhshed Junsprudence, “it is pnmarﬂy for the Tnal Chamber to deternune whether a

wrt_nes-s is er.edl_ble _ an_d to ._de_cl_de which ‘witness’ testimony to prefer, W1thout necessarily

ar‘ticuiating ever.y step of the reasoning in reach'mg a decision on these _p01nts_.”54

26. SeCOnd T note ‘that the Defence witnesses were not aware of any meet:mg 1nvolv1ng
Kalimanzira. In my view, this does not mean than other meetings. 1nvolv1ng Kalimanzira did not
take place However, a:fter reassessmg the evidence, the Majority comes toa speculatwe conclusmn
5555

that “[the Defence] w1tnesses would have been well positioned to know if such meetrng occurred

In my view, the Ma]onty is exceeding its ]un sdiction here.

27. Th1rd I believe the Ma]orlty mrsses -an -important pomt when it- concludes that “[t]he Tnal
: Chamber d1d not dlscount [the Defence w1tness] evidence on any bases other than those noted

~above. In thrs context, the Trial Chamber erred in not expla:mmg rnore fully why it beheved the
* Defence Witnesses would not'have heard of a second meeting, and thus why thelr testnnony dld not
cast reasonable doubt on Witness BCZ’s evidence.”™ I recall, as noted by the Tnal Cham’ber that
some of the Defence witnesses ‘testified. that they did not see — or were not aware of — Kahmanzrra _
'between April and July 1994, 57 As correctly noted by the Trial Chamber, this cont:radrcts
Kahmanra s-own testimony that “he stopped by Hatagekimana’s house in the end of the ﬁrst week
of June-on hlS way to see his famlly in Kirarambogo[, which] lends addrtlonal support to'is presence"
in Kibayi commune ‘around the time of this alleged meeting, e recall that the Appea]s Chamber
previously. held that:

If the Defence adduced the evidence of several other witnesses, who were unable to ‘make any
meaningful conttibution to the facts of the case, even if the conviction of the accused rested on the

32 Nchamihigo Appeal Judgement, para. 285; Nahimana et al. Appeal Judgement, para. 194; Ntagerura et al. Appeal
Judgement, para. 388.

® See e.g. Nahimana et al. Appeal Judgement, para. 194 (“[T]he Trial Chamber has full discretionary power in
assessing the appropriate weight and credibility to be accorded 1o the testimony of a witness™); Ntagerura et al. Appeal
Judgement, pard, 388 (The decision to admit [witness testimony] does not in any way prejudice the weight and
credibility that the Trial Chamber will, in its own. d13cret10nary assessment, accord 10 the evidence™); Simba Appeal
Judgement, para 211 (“[TIhe Appeals Chamiber recalls that it is primarily for the Trial Chamber to determine whether a
witness is credibic and to decide which witness testimony to prefer™); Rutaganda Appeal Judgement, para. 253 ("It
therefore. falls to the Trial Chamber to assess:the contradictions pointed out and determine whether the witness - in light
of his:entire testimony — was reliable, and his testimony credible.”).

Bagthshema Appeal Judgement, para. 12,.citing Kupreskic-et al. Appeal Judgernent para. 32, — -\q

Appeal Judgement, para. 185 (¢émphasis added). -\

Appeal Judgement, para. 185. '

57T, 25 November 2008 pp. 7-9 (Witness BTH); T. 17 Novernber 2008 pp. 14-15 (Witness KBF); T. 24 November
2008 pp.29-30 (Witness KXL). See also Trial Judgement, paras. 599, 601, 604.

% Trial Judgement, para. 612. See also Trial Judgement, para. 654; T. 10 February 2009 pp. 50-51 (Callixie
Kalimangzira).
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testimony-of only one witness, the.Trial Chamber is not required to state that it.found the evidence
of each Défence witness irrelevant. On the contrary, it is to be presumed that.the Trial Chamber
took notice of this evidence and duly disregarded it because of its irrele\_'-anc_e.’g
Accordingly, it was -Wi‘t_hin the Trial ;Chafnbcf’-s discretion to find that “the Defence evidence does
little to contradict BCZ’s evidf':_nce.”60 C'onsequen_t‘l_y, contrary to the Majority’s finding, the Trial
Chamber did not abuse its discretion in finding that two meetings took place, that the Defence

witnesses testified to different meetings, and that the existence of one does not preclude the other,

28.  Thus, I do not believe that the Trigl Chamber has abused its discretion in reaching its
conclusion in the present case. In this circumstances, deference must be accorded to the Trial

Chamber’s assessment of witnesses’ testimony.

5. Alleged Errors Relating to the Gisagara Marketplace (May Everit)

29.  With respect to the events at Gisagara market place at the end of May 1994, I agree with the
Mdjor'i'ty tht 'i’hé“_Ti'iafl'f"Chamber did not"discuss 'the basis on which it ,"acécpteﬂ' Wittiess BDK's -
identification of Kalimanzira.®" Although it would have been preferable ‘f_br the Trial Charriber to
discuss the issue of Witness BDK’s identification of Kalimanzira, 1 disagree with the Majority that
the Trial Chamber erred in not doing 50.% According to Witnés-s BDK’s testimony, she met
Kalimanzira for the first time at the home of Fidele Uwizeye in the early 1990s.% At the time,
Witness BDK did not know Kalimanzira so her husband identified him to her.5 Beyond describing
this evidence as hearsay, the Majority has not demonstrated why.it'would be unreasonable for the

Trial Chamber t0.accept this as a basis.of identification.

30. S'imilarly, I am not persuaded that the Trial Chamber erred in accepting Witness BDK’s
evidence even though her first sighting of Kalimanzira was éont:adicted by the testimony of
Witness AX88. Although the Trial Chamber did not expressly assess this contradiction between
their testimonies on this point, it carefully weighed their respective accounts in discussing Witness
BDK’s testimony on Kalimanzira’s presence at Uwizeye’s home in April 1994.%° Thus, it was
clearly mindful of their conflicting versions of the relevant events. In its consideration of the
| ‘evidence, the Trial Chamber found portions of Witness AX88’s testimony “not at all convinc[ing]”,

and described it as “convoluted and often contradictory,”® This clearly suggests that the Trial

% Kvodka et al. Appeal Judgement, para. 24. e\ v
% Trial Judgement, para, 610. \
%! See Appeal Judgement, para. 195.

‘ 52 Appea! Judgement, para. 199.

| 63T, 20 May 2008 pp. 46, 47.

T, 20 May 2008 p. 46. See also T. 21 May 2008 p. 14.

% Trial Judgement, paras. 388-391.

% Trial Judgement, para. 390.
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Chamber had significant concerns with Witness AX88. However, the Mdjodty is misleadinéiy
sﬂent on this point when reassessing the evrdence and only menuons that “[t]Jhe Trial Chamber
observed that Witness BDK’s test1mony regardmg this occasmn was directly oontradlcted by
Defence Witness AX88."S7 Consequently, in my view, it has not demonstrated that no rca_sonable
Trial Cha_mber could have relied on Witness BDK’s identification of Kalimanzira in light of

Witness AX88's evidence.

3], - While the Trial Chamber also Taised concems with respect {0 Witness BDK'’s evidence
about the meetmg at Uwu.eye s home in 1994, it considered 51gn1ﬁcant the fact that Wltness BDK’s

testimony on that point ‘was hea.rsay and stated that this did not impact ‘her overall credlbﬂlty A |
recall that “it is not unreasonable for a trier of fact to accept some, but reject other parts of a
witness’s testimony.”® Furthermore “[a] Trial Chamber is entitled to rely on any ev1dence it deerns
to have probatrve value and it may accept a witness’s testimony only in part if it consrders other

Jparts. of ‘his :o__r her evidence not religble or credrble.”m

In the present case, the Trial Chamber B
reasonably explained that its prior rejection of Witness BDK’s evidence did not * ‘reflect upon [her]
general credibility.”™ Tt has not been demonstrated that this assessment was outside the bounds of

the Trial Chamber’s discretion.

32. T-am not satisfied that the Trial Chamber should have'-rejected' ‘Witness BDK's ‘evidence
because -of various alleged internal inconsistencies. I reiterate our well-established jurisp_mde_n'ce
that “it falls to the trier of fact to assess the inconsistencies highlighted in testimony and determine
whefher thiey impugn the etttire “testimony.”” In the present case, the Trisl ‘Chanber expressly
considered inconsistencies within Witness BDK’s evidence and reasona'bly determined that they
were either immaterial or nonexisterrt."r3 I find no error in this approach. In addition, contrary to
Kalimanzira’s arguments, I consider that Witness BDK’s testimony in various Gacaca proceedings
did not render the Trial Chamber’s reliance on her testimony unreasonable. Kalimanzira has not
substantiated his assertion that the participation in such proceedings, albeit frequent, undermines the

witness’s credibility.

33.  Finally, I find unpersuasive the contention that the Trial Chamber failed to explain why it

accepted Witness BDK's testimony even though that testimony was in Kalimanzira's view

& " Appeal Judgement, para. 197. T \\-’\
Tnal Judgement, paras, 391, 727. \
% Muvunyi Appeal Judgement, para. 128.

o Kajell]eh Appedl Judgement, para. 167.

7! Trial Judgement, para. 727.
™ Rutaganda Appeal Judgement, para. 443.
" Trial Judgement, paras. 724-726.
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“unlikely.”™ The Tnal Chamber addressed Kalimanzira's assertion ~ though not in detail ~ and
found that the w1tness conv1nc1ngly explained her behavior, in partrcular why she attended the
meetmg and when she left 7 "Ttis necessary to reiterate that the Trial Chamber has full dlscret:lon in
‘the assessment of a wrtness s credibility.” In my view, it was therefore reasonable for the Tnal
Chamber to accept Witness BDK’s explanations of her behavior. For the foregoing reasons,. the

Trial‘Chamber did not err in its assessment of Witness BDK's testimony.

34, The Majority"s reasoning, on the other hand, is problematic for numerous reasons. First, the

Majority states:’’

The Appeals:Chamber considers that “[t]here is a presumptien that a Trial Chamber has evaluated
-all the evidence presented to it, as long as there i isno. indication that the. Trial Chamber completely
disregarded :any partlcula.r piece of evidence.”” However, this ‘presumption may be rebutted
“when ev1dence which is clearly relevant to the findings is not addressed by the Trial Chamber’s
reasomng

. 35. However the ‘Majority omits the remainder of the quoted reference to Kvocka et al. Appeal

Judgement Wh.lCh states:

It is to-be presumed that the Trial Chamber evaluated all the evidenice presented to it, as long as
there is no indication ‘that the Trial Chamber completely disregarded any -particular piece of
.evidence. There may :be.an indicatiori :of disregard when evidence :which:is clearly relevant to the .
findings is notaddressed by the Trial Chaniber’s reasomng, but not every inconsistency whlch the
‘Trial :Chamber failed to discuss renders its opiniondefective. ‘Considering the ‘fact: that miner
inconsistencies. commonly occur in witness testimony without rendering it unreliable, it is within
‘the discretion-of the Trial:Chamber to evaluate it and to consider whether the evidence as a whole
is credible, without explaining its decision in every detail. If the Trial Chamber did not refer to the
evidence given by a witness, even if it is-in.contradiction to the Trial Chamiber’s finding, it is to be
;presumed-that the Trial<Chamber assessed and: werghed the -evidence, biit found that the -evidence
did not prevent it from arriving at its actual findings.*

In my view, without this addition, the quotation is an inaccurate representation of the legal
reasoning established in Kvocka et al. Appeal Judgement. The Majority thus misrepresents the
standard established.

36.  Second, in the third sentence of paragraph 197 of the Appeal Judgement, the Majority
misrepresents reality by stating that “[t]he Trial Chamber observed that Witness BDK'’s testimony

™ Trial Judgement, para. 724 reads as follows: “The Defence contends that BDK's testimony was fraught with
inconsistencies. It suggests that her-descriptions of the. tmung of her departure from the meeung was iniconsistent; that it
was unlikely that her brother-in-law would have forced her, a Tutsi, to attend the meeting; that if she had been forced to
attend, it was unlikely that she would leave and draw.attention to herself, especially when she had been married before
the war and was not among the .group who was threatened. None of the Defence's arguments were persuasive. The
passage of time since 1994 would explain difficulty in recalling time cxactly, further, BDK -gave convincing
explanations for her behaviour.” (internal citation omitted). .
I * See Trial Judgement, para. 724, -~

" See Nahimana et al. Appeal Judgement, para. 194. ' \\\J\
" Appeal Judgement, para, 195,
™ Halilovi¢ Appeal Judgement, para. 121, See also Kvocka et al. Appeal Judgement, para. 23.
" Kvodka et al. Appeal Judgement, para. 23.
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-regardmg this occasion was directly contradicted by Defence Witness AX88.""' In my view, this
enten_ce_ is incomplete and misleading because it submits that the testimony of Witness AX88

contradicts that of Wiltness BDK without mentioning the fact that the Trial Chamber found portions
-df 'Witnes—s AX88's testimony “not at all convinc[ing]” and described it as “convoluted and often

» 82

contradlctory as already mentioned above.

37.  Third, the 'Majority “notes the Trial Chamber’s uncertainty as t_oVWi'tness BDK’s ‘veracijty
with respect to one of two occasions where she claimed to have iden‘_fi‘ﬁéd Kalimanzira, Under these
circumstances, the Appeals ‘Chamber [...] considers that the Trial Chamber should have provided a
clearer explanation of its reasons for 'acceptinfg portions of Witness BDK’s testimony addressing
identification.”®® Here again, the focus of the Maijority on the Tria’l--Chamber."s_-uncertainty is highly
~misleading, as it fails to note that the Trial ‘Chamber explicitly explained that its reasons for not
relymg on W]tness BDK’s ev1dence in the prior occasion “do not apply to her ev1dence here, nor-do
they reflect upon [Witness] BDK’S genera.l credibility.”®

38.  Fourth, in ﬁnding an “error of law” based on ‘the fact that “[i]t is unclear from the Trial
Judgement [how much) cautlon was applied”® in its assessment of Witness BDK’ eV1dence the -
Majority simply employs a loose criterion to an already nondescript - standard of caution. To suggest
that this is the appropriate appellate standard of review with respect to caution appears parUcularly
questionable. Fmally, ‘having found an error of law, the Majonty also neglects to artlculate the
correct legal standard with respect to the degree of caution which in its view is necessary in the
context of identification evidence before reviewing the relevant ﬁndlngs of the Trial Chamber

accordingly as required by our strict standard of appellate review.
6. Conclusion

39.  For the foregoing reasons, I disagree with the reasons and conclusions of the Majority with
respect to the relevant portions of Kalimanzira’s third, fifth, sixth, seventh, tenth and eleventh

grounds of appeal.

40.  Inlight of the above, I also dissent on the reduction in the sentence decided by the Appeals
Chamber. I would leave the sentence imposed by the Trial Chamber undisturbed.

% Kvodka et al. Appeal Judgement para. 23, (\ v
i Appea.l Judgement, para, 197, referring to Trial Judgement, para. 388.
8 rPrial Judgement, para. 390.
" Appeal Judgement, para. 199.
* Trial Judgement, para. 727.
. % Appeal Judgement, para. 199.
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B. '-_S_epara‘te O.D'inion

41. - While I am m general agreement with the Appeal Judgement w1th respect o Kahmanzn'a 'S
COI'lVlCthl’l for: dlrect and public 1nc1tement to comrmt genocide based on his «conduict at the flaguar
roadblock and the Ka]yanama roadblock, in partlcular its conclusmn, I feel compelled 0 wiite
separately in order to-clarify a number of points of the Appeals Chamber’s reasoning with Wthh |

‘feel uncomfortable

42. F1rst in paragraphs 156 to 158 of the Appeal Judgement the Appeals Chamber rehes mostly
on the travaux preparatmres of the Genoc1de convenuon to interpret the deﬁmt:on and scope of the
crime of dlrect and pubhc 1nc1tement to comrmt genoc1de I am sl1ghtly uncomfonablc w1th th1s

japproach as T believe the travaux preparatmres of the Genocide conventlon provide’ httle gu1dance

¥ 6

as to the scope of the words “direct and publlc ‘which are at the core of the present 1ssue In my

opinion, .one must loak to -other - ‘sources for a comprehenswe deﬁnmon and scope -of the term

“public”, such as the work “of ”I:he htemahonal*’LaW Comrmssmn ‘or t'.he Ayesu Trial Judgement

43. ScCon’d, the App'eals-.'(}hamber limits i-tself to the application of the Nahimana et al. Appeal
Judgement to Kalimanzira’s convictions, but does not break down the crime into its elements, nor

-does it reVeal-ihow-the term “public” is defined.

44. In sett:ng out the elements of the offence, the Akayesu Trial- Charnber elaborated on the

requirement of “‘public: incitement” as follows:

[tThe public element of incitement to commit genocide tay be better appreciated in light of two
factors: the place where :the incitement. occurred ‘and whether or not assistance ‘was selective -or
limited. A line of autherity commonly followed i in le law [sic] systems would regard words as
being public where they were spoken aloud ‘ina place that were [sic] -public' by .definition,
According-to ‘the International Law Commission, public incitement is ¢haracterized by a call for
criminal action (¢ a8 number of individuals in a public place or to members of the general public at
large by such means as the mass media, for example, radio or television. It should be noted in this
respect that at the time [the] Convention on Genocide was adopted, the delegates specifically
agreed to rule out the possibility of including private incitement to-commit genocide as a-crime,
thereby. undersconng their commitment to set aside for punishment only the truly public forms of
1nc1tement

The Kajelijeli Trial Chamber emphasized that “ftlhe ‘public’ element of incitement to commit

genocide is appreciated by looking at the circumstances of the incitement—such as where the

™

8 This point has béen recognized by legal experts on the issue. See, e.g., Schabas, William A., Genocide in
Internananal Law. the Crime of Crimes, Cambridge- University Press, Cambridge, 2009 (2'“1 edition), p, 329

Akayesu Trial Judgement, para. 556 (internal citations omitted).
8 Kajelijeli Tridl judgement, para. 851.

incitement occurred and whether or not the audience was select or limited.”*®
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45,  However, in paragraphs 156 of the Appeal Judgement for example,” the Appeals Chamber
emphasiies, and make comparison wifh other cases, on the size of the audience required to satisfy
the pubhc element of the crime of incitement 1o comrmt genocide, Indeed, the Appeals: Chamber for
example states that “[t]hese convictions involved audlences which were by definition much broader
than the groups of individuals manning the Jaguar and Kajyanama roadblocks, who formed
Kalimanzira’s .a‘udience.”90 In my view, this establishes a dangerous and incorrect precedent linked
with the question of what minimum audience size is required to satisfy the “public” element eif the
crime of direct and public incitement to commit genocide. I believe, 1o threshold exists and none
should be estabhshed There is no clear mdlcat]on in the Junsprudence of the Tnbunal that a speech
must be made to a large group of people in order 1o quahfy as pubhc incitement. For the purposé of
the law, it suffices that the speech was directed at a number of individuals at a public place or at

members of the general public, as the International Law Commission confirmed.” In its report, the

International Law Commission .added that “,[t]_his publ_ie appeal for criminal action increases the -

‘likelihood that atleast one individual will respond to the appeal and, moreover, encourages the kind

of “mob violence® in which a number of individuals engage in criminal conduct,”

~

8 ~ See also Appeal Judgement, footnote 410,

Appeal Judgement, para. 156 {emphasis added).
%! See Atticle 2(3)(f)of ‘the Draft-Code of Crimes Against the Peace and Security of Mankind, in Report of the
International Law Commission to the General Assembly, UN doc. A/51/10 (1996}, .p.. 26: “The equally indispensable
element of public incitement requires communicating the call for criminal action to a numiber.of individuals in a pubhc
‘place or to memibers of the general public at large. Thus, an individual may communicate the call for criminal action in
person in a public place or by technical means of mass communication, such as by radic or television.”

See Article 2(3)(F) of the Draft Code of Crimes Against the Peace and Security of Mankind, in Report of the
International Law Commission to the General Assembly, UN doc. A/51/10 (1996), p. 27.
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Done in English and French, the English text being authoritative

Weencdiion

Judge Fausto Pocar

Done this 20™ day of October 2010,
At Arusha,

Tanzania.

[Seal of the Tribunal]

~ M
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VIII. ANNEX A - PROCEDURAL HISTORY

1. The main aspects of the appeal proceedings are summarized below.

'A. Notices of Appesl and Briefs

2. Trial Chamber IIT rendered the. j,ud-g.ement'in this case on 22 June 2009.
1. Kalimanzira’s Appeal

3. ‘On 20 J'ul_v 2009 the Pre Appeal Judge denied Kahmanzna 5 request for an extensron of
time to file hrs notlce -of appeal from the trans]atlon of ‘the Tnal Judgement mto French !
',Kalrmanmra ﬁled hlS Notlee of Appeal on 21 July 2009 On 31 AugUSt 2009, the Pre—Appeal Judge
_granted Kahmanzlra s request for.a 75 day extensmn of ‘time for the ﬁlmg of hrs Appellant 8 bnef
from the ﬁlmg of the French translation of the Tridl Judgement He ﬁled his Appellant 8 bnef on 1
' 'Fébruar'y 2010 * L '

4, On 5 Mare‘h 2010, t'h-’e -A;ppea]s Chamber granted Kalima.nz-ira"é request to file an Amen'ded .
‘Notice of Appeal and granted the Prosecutlon a 15-day extensron of time o ﬁle its’ ReSpondent s
brief.} Kalimanzira filed his Amended Notice of Appeal on 8 March 2010 The Prosecutlon filed '_
its ‘Respondent’s brief on 29 _March 2010." -On 6 April 2010, the-'Pre—Appea-l Judge den_lcd
K_a‘limanzﬁé’s ;re-q.uest_:for an.ertterlsion of time to ﬁle ‘hj.s.fRep'ly'-‘bﬁef fcnllowmg tl’lle;translation.,dfith'e_ -
Prosecution’s Respondents brief into Frenoh.* Klimanzira fled his Reply brief on 13 April 2010° _

2. Prosecution’s Appeal

5. The Prosecution filed its Notice of Appeal on 22 July 2009' and its Appellant’s brief on
5 Qctober 2009." On 26 October 2009, the Pre-Appeal Judge granted Kalimanzira’s request for a

! Decision on Callixte. Ka.lunanzrra s Motion for an Extension of Time for the F111ng of Notice of Appeal, 20 July 2009.
* Notice of Appeal, 21 July 2009.
* Decision on Callixte Kdlimanzira’s Motion for Leave to File an Amended Notice of Appeal and for an Extensmn of
Time for the Filing of his Appellant’s Brief, 31 August 2009. In this same decision, the Pre-Appeal Judge denied
Kalimanzira’s request to file an amended netice of appeal within 30 days of the filing of the French translation of the
Trial Judgemenit,
4:Callixte ‘Kalimanzira’s Appeal Brief, 1-February 2010. Kalimanzira ﬁled his brief confldenually On 5 March 2010,
the Pre-Appeal Judge granted the - Prosecution request to order him to file a public version. See Decision on the
Prosecition’s MotionReguésting a"Pulec Filing of Callixte Kalimanzira’s Appellant‘s Brief, 5 March 2010. The public
versron was filed.on 30 March 2010,

Dcclsmn on<Callixte Kalimanzira's Motion for Leave to Amend His Notice of Appeal, 5 March 2010.

5 Amended Notice of Appeal, 8 March 2010. _ ‘_l \\4
? Prosecutor’s Respondent Brief, 29" Match 2010.
¥ Decision onCallixte thr_rlanzjra s Motion for an Extension of Time for the Filing of His Reply Brief, 6 April 2010,
9. Callixte Kalimanzira’s Brief in Reply, 13 ‘April 2010.
" Prosecutor’s Notice of Appeal, 22 July 2009.
"' Prosecutor’s Appellant’s Brief, 5 October 2009.
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40-day extension of time for the filing of his Respondent’s brief from the filing of the Frcnch.
translations of the Prdseculii'on’-s Appellant’s Brief and the Trial Judgement. '2.0n 19 January 2010,
Kalimanzira filed his Respondent’s brief. > The Prosecution filed its Reply brief on 25 January
- 2010,

B. Assignment of Judges

6. On 10 July 2009, the Presiding Judge of the Appeals Chamber .assigned the following
Judges to hear the appeal: Judge Patrick Robinson, pre31d1ng, Judge Mehmet Guney, Judge Fausto
Pocar, Judge Andrésia Vaz, and Judgc Carmel AglUS On 20 July 2009, the Premdmg Judge
designated Judge Vaz as the Pre- -Appeal Judge.'® On § February 2010, the Presiding Judge of the
Appeals ‘Chamber replaccd himself with Judge Theodor Meron,'” The Bench then elected Judge
Meron as the .Prcsiding Judge in this .case_.18 On 4 Mafc_h 2010, Judge Meron designated himself as
the Pre-Appeal Jud ge.w

C. Motion Related to the Admission of Additional Evidence

.7. On 12 March 2010, Kalimanzira filed a motion for the admission of additional evidence.”®
The Prosecution responded on 12 April 2010.%' Kalimanzira did not file a reply. On 11 June 2010,
the .PresA-ppeé-l Judge, after consulting with the Bench, decided to defef co_nsideratibn of the motion
until after the appeal -heafin-g.n’On 21 September 2010, the Appeals Chamber denied Ka’liméniira’»s‘ _

" motion in a confidential decision.?

12 Decision on Callixte Kalimanzira’s Motion for an Extension of Time for the Filing of H1s Respondent’s Brief, 26
Qctober 2009,
3 Observations on the Prosecutor’s Appellant’s Brief Dated 5 October 2009, 19 January 2010. The Prosecution
challenged this submission because it was filed one day late and allegedly did not correspond to the requirements for a
Respondent’s brief. It also sought sanctions, The Appeals Chamber accepted the filing of the submission and considered
it as the Respondent’s brief, Tt denied the request for sanctions. See Decision on the Prosecution’s Requests Made in
Rclatlon to Kalimanzira's “Observations on the Prosecutor’s Appellant’s Brief Dated 5 October 2009”, 5 March 2010.

* The Prosecutor’s Response to Respondent Callixte Kalimanzira’s “Observations on the Prosecutor’s Appellant’s
Brief Dated 5 October 2009", 25 January 2010.
'* Order Assigning Judges'to a Case Before the Appeals Chamiber, 10 July 2009.
'® Order Designating & Pre-Appeal Judge, 20 July 2005.
'” Order Replacing a Judge in a‘Case Before the Appeals Chamber, 5 February 2010.
'* Order. Designating a Pre-Appeal Judge, 4 March 2010, (—§ \\’]
' Order Dosignating a Pre-Appeal Judlge, 4 March 2010,
2 Motion to Admit Additional Evidence, 12 March 2010 (“Motion™).
2! progecutor’s Response to “Motion to Admit Additional Evidence”, 12 April 2010 (“Response”).
22 Decision Deferring Consideration of Kalimanzira’s Motion for the Admission of Additional Evidence on Appeal, 11
June 2010.
2 Decision on Kalimanzira's Motion for the Admission of Additional Evidence on Appeal, 21 September 2010.
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D. Hearing of I._he Appeals

8. On 2 June 2010 thc Pre-Appeal Judge denied Kahmanmra 8 motion to postpone the heanng
in light of the arrest of & counsel for appellant in another case before the Tribunal by Rwandan
authorities.”* On 11 .J_u_ne 2010, the Pre-Appeal Judge denied a second motion to pestpone the
hearing on the same basis.”> On 14 June 2010, the parties presented their oral arguments ﬁt a
hearing held in Arusha, Ta:nzania,.in accordance with the Scheduling Order of 20 May 2010.%

* Decision on Kalimanzira’s Request to Postpone the Appeal Hearing, 2 June 2010,
 Decision on-Kalimanzira’s Second Request to Postpone the Appeal Hearing, 11 June 2010,
2 Scheduling Order, 20 May 2010,
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' IX. ANNEX B - CITED MATERIALS AND DEFINED TERMS

A. Jurisprudence
1. ICTR

- AKAYESU

The Prosecutor v, Jean-Paul Akayesu, Case No. ICTR- 96-4—T Judgement 2 September 1998
(“Akayesu Trial Judgement™).

The Prosecutor v. Jean-Paul Akayesu, Case No ICTR-96-4-A, Judgement 1 June 2001 (“Akayesu
Appeal Judgement”). : ,

BAGILISHEMA

The Prosecutor v. Ignace Bagilishema, Case No. ICTR-95-1A-A, Judgement (Reasons), 3 July
2002 (“Bagilishema Appeal Judgement”).

BTKIN‘I?)Z[
The Prosecutor v. Simon Bikindi, Case No. ICTR-01-72-T, Judgement 2 December 2008 (“Btkmdz
Trial Judgement™).

Simon Bikindi v. The Prosecutor, Case No. ICTR-01-72-A, Judgement 18 March 2010 (“Bikindi
Appeal Judgement”).

CACUMBITSI

Sylvestre -Gacumbitsi v. The Prosecutor, Case No ICTR-2001-64-A,- Judgement 7 July 2006
(“‘Gacwmbitsi Appeal Judgement™). o _ .

KAJELIJELTL

The Prosecutor v. Juvénal Kajelijeli, Case No. ICTR-98-44A-T, Judgement and Sentence,
1 December 2003 (“Kajelye[l Trial Judgement”).

Juvénal Kajelijeli v. The Prosecutor, Case No. ICTR-98-44A-A, Judgement 23 May 2005
(“Kajelijeli Appeal Judgement”).

KAMUHANDA

Jean de Dieu Kamuhanda v. The Prosecutor, Case No. ICTR-99-54A-A, Judgement,
19 September 2005 (“Kamuhanda Appeal Judgement™).

KARERA
Frangois Karera v. The Prosecutor, Case No. ICTR-01-74-A, Judgement, 2 February 2009

(“Karera Appeal Judgement”).
) T
KAYISHEMA and RUZINDANA

The Prosecutor v. Clément Kayishema and Obed Ruzindana, Case No.. ICTR-95-1-A, Judgement
(Reasons), 1 June 2001 (“Kayishema and Ruzindana Appeal Judgement™).

4
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MUHIMANA

Mikaeli Muhimana v. The Prosecutor, Case No. ICTR 95- 1B~A Judgement, 21 May 2007
(“Muhrmana Appeal Judgement”) i

MUSEMA
Alfred Musema v. The Prosecutor, Case No. ICTR-96-13-A, Judgement 6 November 2001
(“Musema Appeal Judgement”)

The Prosecutor v. Tharczsse Muvunyi, Case No. ICTR-2000-55A-T, Judgement and Sentence,
12 Septcmber 2006 (“Muvunyl Trial Judgement”) :

Tharcisse Muvunyt v, The Prosecutor, Case No ICTR—?.OOO 55A-A, Judgement 29 August 2008
(“Miunyi Appeal J. udgement”)

" NAHIMANA et al.

Ferdinand Nahzmana, Jean-Bosco Barayagwiza and Hassan Ngeze v. The Prosecutor Case No
ICTR 99-52-A, Judg.ement, 28 N@vember 2007 (“Nahzmanavet al. Appeal Judgement™).

NCHAMIHIGO

Siméon Nchamthtgo v. The Prosecutor, Case No. ICTR-2001-63-A, Judgement 18 March 2010
_ (“Nchamthtgo Appeal I udgement”)

NDNDABAI-IZ'I

Emmanuel Ndindabahiziv. The Prosecutor ‘Case No. ICTR-01-71-A, Judgement 16 January 2007
_(“Ndmdabahtzt Appeal Judgement ).

'.NIYITEGEKA

The Prosecutor v. Eliézer Niyitegeka, Case No. ICTR-96—14QT, Judgement -and Sentence,
16 May 2003 (“Niyitegeka Trial Judgement™).

Eliézer Niyitegeka v. The Prosecutor, Case No. ICTR-96-14-A, Judgement, 9 July 2004
(“Niyitegeka Appeal Judgement”). '

NTAGERURA et al.

The Prosecutor v. André Ntagerura, Emmanuel Bagamblkz and Samuel Imanishimwe, Case No.
ICTR-99-46-A, Judgement, 7 July 2006 (“Ntagerura et al. Appeal Judgement”).

NTAKIRUTIMANA

The Prosecutor v. Elizaphan Ntakirutimana and Gérard Ntakirutimana, Case Nos. ICTR-96-10-T
and ICTR-96-17-T, Judgement and Sentence, 21 February 2003 (“Ntakirutimana Trial
Judgement”). '

The Prosecutor v. Elizaphan Ntakirutimana and Gérard Ntakirutimana, Case Nos. ICTR:96-10-A
and ICTR-96-17-A, Judgement, 13 December 2004 (“Ntakirutimana Appeal Judgement”)

TM
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RUGGIU

The Prosecutor v. Georges Ruggiu, Case No. ICTR-97-32-1, Judgement and Sentence, 1 June 2000
(“Ruggzu Trial Judgement”) .

RUKUNDO
The Prosecutor v. Emmanuel Rukundo, Case No. ICTR-2001-70-T, Judgement, 27 Febr.uéry 2009
(“Rukundo Trial Judgement™).

RUTAGANDA

Georges Anderson Nderubumwe. Rutaganda v. The Prosecutor, Case No ICTR-96 3-A, Judgement,
26 May 2003, (“Rutaganda Appeal Judgement”),

SEMANZA

The Prasecutor v. Laurent Semanza, Case No. ICTR-97-20- T, Judgement and Sentence
15 May 2003 (“Semanza Trial Judgement™).

Laurent Semanza v. The Prosecutor, Case No. JCTR-97-20-A, Judgement 20 May 2005 (“Semanza
Appeal Judgement D). : .

'SEROMBA

The Prosecutor v. Athanase Seromba, Case No. ICTR-2001 66-A Judgement, 12 March 2008
(“Seromba Appeal Judgement .

SIMEBA

Aloys Simba v. The Prosecutor, Case No. ICTR-01-76-A, Judgement 27 November 2007 (“Simba
Appeal Judgement”) '

ZIGIRANYIRAZO

Protais Zigiranyirazo v. The Prosector, Case No. ICTR-01-73-A, Judgement, 16 November 2009
(“Zigiranyirazo Appeal Judgement”).

ALEKSOVSKI

Prosecutor v. Zlatko Aleksovski, Case No. IT-95-14/1-A, Judgement, 24 March 2000
(“Aleksovski Appeal Judgement™).

BLAGOJEVIC
Prosecutor v. Vidoje Blagojevi¢ and Dragan Jokic, Case No. IT-02-06-A, Judgement 9 May 2007
(¢ ‘B[ago;evzc' and Joki¢ Appeal Judgement”)
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BLASKIC

Prosecutor v. Tikomir Blaski¢, Case No. TT-95-14-A, Judgement, 29 July 2004 (“Blaski¢ Appeal
Judgement”).

BQSKQSKI

Prosecutor v. Ljube Bokoski and Johan Tarculovski, Case No. IT 04-82-A, Judgement,
19 May 2010 (“Boskoski and TarCulovski Appeal Judgement™),

BRDANIN

Prosecutor v. Radoslav Brdanm Case No. IT-99- 36 A, Judgement 3 April 2007 (“Brdanin Appeal
iludgement”)

'DELALIC et al,

Prosecutor v. Zejnil Delahc‘ Zdravko Mucic¢ (aka “Pava ”), Hazim Deli¢. and Esad LandZo (aka
“Zenga”), Case No. IT-96-21-A, Judgement, 20 February 2001 (“Delali¢ et al. Appeal
,Judgement”)

FURUNDZIIA

Prosecutor v. Anto Furundiija, Case No. IT-95-17/1-A, Judgemem 21 July 2000 (“Furundzt_,ra ..
Appeal Judgement”).

HADZIHASAN(D’VI(? and KUBURA )

Prosecutor v. Enver HadZihasanovi¢ and Amir Kubura, Case No. IT-01-47-A, Judgement,
22 April 2008 (“Hadz;hasanowc and Kubura Appel Judgement”)

HALILOVIC

Prosecutor v. Sefer Halilovi¢, Case No. IT 01-48- A Judgement 16 October 2007 (“Hahlovzc
Appea;l Judgement”).

KORDIC and CERKEZ
Prosecutor v. Dario Kordi¢ and Mario Cerkez, Case No. IT-95-14/2-A, Judgement, 17 December
2004 (“Kordic and Cerkez Appeal Judgement™).

KRSTIC

Prosecutor v. Radislav Krsti¢, Case No. IT-98-33-A, Judgement, 19 April 2004 (“Krsti¢ Appeal
Judgement”).

KUPRESKIC et al.

Prasecutor v. Zoran Kupreskic¢, Mirjan Kupreskic, Viatko Kupreski¢, Drago Josipovic and Viadimir
Santi¢, Case No. IT-95-16-A, Appeal Judgement, 23 October 2001 (“Kupreskic et al. Appeal

Judgement”).
YT
T ™
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KVOCKA et al.
Prosecutor v. Miroslav Kvodka, Mlado Radi¢, Zoran Zigic¢ and Dragoljub Prcac, Case No, IT-98-
30/1-A, Judgement, 28 February 2005 (“Kvocka et al. Appeal Judgement™),

LIMAJ et al.

Prosecutor v. Fatmir Limaj, Haradin Bala and Isak Musliu, Case No. IT-03-66-A, Judgement
27 September 2007 (“Limaj et al. Appeal Judgement”).

MRKSIC and SLITVANCANIN
Prosecutor v. Mile Mrisic and- Veselin Sljivancanin, Case No. IT-95- 13/1-A, Judgement, |
5 May 2009 (“Mrkﬁc and. Sljtvancanm Appeal Judgement”).

NALETILIC and MARTINOVIC

Prosecutor v, Mladen Naletilic, a.k.a. “Tuta” and Vinko Martinovic, a. k a. "S‘tela 7 Case No. 1T-
98-34-A, Judgement, 3 May 2006 .(“Nal_etzhc and Martinovi¢ Appeal Judgement™).

BLAGOJE SIMIC

Prosecutor v. Blagoje Simic, Case No. IT 95- 9-A Judgement, 28 November 2006 (“Blagoje Simic
Appeal Judgement™),

TADIC |
Prosecutor v. Dusko Tadlic, Case No. IT-94-1-A, Judgement, 15 July 1999 (“Tadic Appeal
Judgement”). '
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B. Defined Terms and Abbreviations

Defence
Callixte Kalimanzira or his defence team, as appropriate.
Genocide Convention

-Convention for the Prevenuon a.nd Punishment of the Crime of Genocide, adopted
9 December 1948, 78 UN.T.S. 277 (entered into force 12 January 1951)

ICTR

International Criminal Tnbunal for the Prosecution of Persons Responsible for Genomde and ‘Other
Serious Vlolatlons of Internatlonal Humanltanan Law Committed in the Terntery of Rwanda and
__-_-Rwandan C1t1zens Responsﬂ)le for Genoc1de and Other Such Vlolatlons Commltted in the Temtory_
of Nelghbourmg States between 13 anua.ry 1994 and 31 Decem’ber 1994 '

ICTY

International Tribunal for the Prosecution of Persons Responsible for Serious Violations of

International Humanitarian Law ‘Comimitted in the Territory of the Former Yu goslavia since 1991
Indictment

The Prosecutor v. Callixte Kalimanzira, Case No. ICTR-2005-88-1, Indictment Filed on 21 July
2005, 21 July 2005 |

Kalimanzira Appeal Brief

Callixte Kalimanzira’s Appellant’s Brief, 1 February 2010

Kalimanzira Final Trial Brief

The Prosecutor v. Callixte Kalimanzira, Case No. ICTR-05-88-T, Closing Brief, 2 April 2009
Kalimanzira Notice of Appea’l — \\J

)

Amended Notice of Appeal, 8 March 2010
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Kalimanzira Pre-Trial Brief

The Prosecutor v. Calli.x‘;e Kalimanzira, Case No. ICTR-05-88-T, Defence Pre-Trial Brief,
17 September 2008 - : |

Kalimanzira Reply Brief.
‘Callixte Kalimanzira’s Brief m Reply, 13 April 2010
Kalimanzira Response Brief |
Observations on the Prosecutor’s App.e.ll.ént’.s Brief Dated 5 Octobér' 2009, 19]anuary 20‘10
IRND .
Mouvemenr.R‘évolutionnaire Nationql pour la Démocratie et le Développement
N :(nh.) L :
footnote (footnotes)
p. (pp.)
page (pages)
" ‘para.-(paras.)
paragraph (paragraphs)
Prosecution Appeal Brief
ﬁosecutor’s Appeilant’s Brief, 5 October 2009
Prosecution Notice of Appeal
Prosecutor’s Notice of Appeal, 22 July 2009
Prosecution Pre-Trial Brief ‘_—_\’ \\A

The Prosecutor v, Callixte Kalimanzira, Case No, ICTR-2005-88-PT, Prosecutor’s Pre-Trial Brief,
16 April 2008
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Prosecution Reply Brief

~The _:Proscc_:'ut_(')r’--s Response to Respondent Callixte Kahmanﬁra"s “QObservations on the

Prpsecuic')r’.fiﬁ Appellant’s Brief Dat‘cd'f‘j Octaber 20097, 25 January 2010
. Prosecuﬁgdﬁ:iﬁ;ép:onse Brief

Prosecutor’s Respondent Brief, 29 March 2010

RPF |

Rwandan Patriétic Front

Rules

Ruleg-of%Procédure and Evidence of the International Criminal Tribunal for_;Rw:anda
RTLM

Radio Télévision Libre des Miles Collines

Sixth :Committee |

- The Sixth Comm:tteels one of the six main committees in the United Nations General ‘Assembly

_andits mnary forqm for:the consideration of legal questions.
Statute

Statute of the International Criminal Tribunal for Rwanda established by Security Council

Resolution 955
T.

Transcript
Trial Judgement _ r—'-\- \\/I

The Prosecutor v. Callixte Kalimanzira, Case No. ICTR-05-88-T, Judgement, 22 June 2009
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